Public Document Pack

PLANNING COMMITTEE B
Date of Meeting: TUESDAY, 12 APRIL 2022 TIME 7.30 PM
PLACE:

COUNCIL CHAMBER CIVIC SUITE LONDON
SE6 4RU
The public are welcome to observe via the Council's
website at:
https://lewisham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Members of the Committee are summoned to attend this meeting:
Membership
Councillors:
Suzannah Clarke (Chair)
Jacq Paschoud (Vice-Chair)
Tauseef Anwar
Aisling Gallagher
Liz Johnston-Franklin
Jack Lavery
Jim Mallory
John Muldoon
Lionel Openshaw
Alan Smith
The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however, occasionally committees
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of reports can be made available in
additional formats on request.

Kim Wright
Chief Executive
Lewisham Town Hall
London SE6 4RU
Date: 12 April 2022

For further information please contact:
clare.weaser@lewisham.gov.uk or
sarah.assibey @lewisham.gov.uk Committee
Co-ordinator
2nd Floor Civic Suite
Catford Road SE6 4RU
Telephone No:
Email: planning@lewisham.gov.uk

Order Of Business
Item
No

Title of Report

Ward

Page
No.

1.

Declarations of Interest

1-4

2.

Minutes

5 - 14

3.

The Dirty South, 162 Lee High Road, SE13 5PR
(DC/21/123592)

15 - 102

4.

52 Loampit Hill, SE13 7SW (DC/21/120340)

103 - 148

5.

144 Hither Green Lane, SE13 6QA
(DC/21/123739)

149 - 200

6.

1 Perry Rise, SE23 2QX (DC/21/121794)

201 - 266

7.

153 Sydenham Park Road, SE26 4LP
(DC/21/124773)

267 - 302

8.

21 Drakefell Road, SE14 5SL (DC/21/124360)

303 - 338

Agenda Item 1

Planning Committee (B)
Declarations of Interest
Date: 12 April 2022
Key decision: No
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: All
Contributors: Chief Executive

Outline and recommendations
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda.

1.

Summary

1.1. Members must declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. There
are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member Code of
Conduct:
(1) Disclosable pecuniary interests
(2) Other registerable interests
(3) Non-registerable interests.
1.2. Further information on these is provided in the body of this report.

2.

Recommendation

2.1. Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the
agenda.

Page 1

3.

Disclosable pecuniary interests

3.1

These are defined by regulation as:
(a)

Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or gain

(b)

Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than by the
Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the register in
respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member or towards
your election expenses (including payment or financial benefit from a Trade
Union).

(c)

Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they are a
partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of
which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, services or works.

(d)

Beneficial interests in land in the borough.

(e)

Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more.

(f)

Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the
Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of which
they have a beneficial interest.

(g)

Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:
(a)

that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land in the
borough; and

(b)

either:
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of the
total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant person*
has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued share capital of
that class.
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person
with whom they live as spouse or civil partner.

4.

Other registerable interests

4.1

The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the following
interests:
(a)

Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you were
appointed or nominated by the Council

(b)

Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable
purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or
policy, including any political party

(c)

Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated
value of at least £25.

Page 2

5.

Non registerable interests

5.1. Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely to
affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more than it
would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is not required
to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning
the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).

6.

Declaration and impact of interest on members’ participation

6.1. Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are present at a
meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must declare the nature of the
interest at the earliest opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered. The
declaration will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable
pecuniary interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and
withdraw from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest which has not
already been entered in the Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where
such an interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of
up to £5000
6.2. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary
interest they must still declare the nature of the interest to the meeting at the earliest
opportunity and in any event before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the
room, participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph 6.3
below applies.
6.3. Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable pecuniary
interest, the member must consider whether a reasonable member of the public in
possession of the facts would think that their interest is so significant that it would be
likely to impair the member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to influence the
outcome improperly.
6.4. If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a member, their,
family, friend or close associate more than it would affect those in the local area
generally, then the provisions relating to the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply
as if it were a registerable interest.
6.5. Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s personal judgement,
though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer.

7.

Sensitive information

7.1. There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not be
registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and advised to seek
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance.

8.

Exempt categories

8.1. There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in decisions
notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. These include:(a)

Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter relates
to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception)

(b)

School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent or
Page 3

guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless the matter
relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which you are a
governor
(c)

Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt

(d)

Allowances, payment or indemnity for members

(e)

Ceremonial honours for members

(f)

Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception).

Page 4

Agenda Item 2

Planning Committee (B)
Minutes
Date: 12 April 2022
Key decision: No
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: All
Contributors: Chief Executive

Outline and recommendations
Members are asked to consider the Minutes of the meeting of Planning
Committee (B), held on 1 February 2022

Recommendation
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee (B), held on 1 February
2022 be confirmed and signed.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

LEWISHAM COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE B
THURSDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2022 AT 7.30 PM
MINUTES
IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Suzannah Clarke (Chair) Councillor Jacq Paschoud (Vice
Chair) Councillors, Tauseef Anwar, Liz Johnston-Franklin, John Muldoon and Alan Smith.
MEMBER OF THE COMMITTEE JOINING THE MEETING VIRTUALLY Councillor.
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Councillors Gallagher, Lavery, Mallory and Openshaw
NB: Those Councillors listed as joining virtually were not in attendance for the purposes
of the meeting being quorate, any decisions taken, or to satisfy the requirements of s85
Local Government Act 1972.
OFFICERS: Service Group Manager, (SGM) Planning Officers and Committee Officer.
ALSO PRESENT: Legal Representative.
Item
No.
1

Declarations of Interest
None.

2

Minutes
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of Planning Committee B held on 14
September and 11 November 2021 are an accurate record

3

Dirty South, 162 Lee High Road, London, SE13 5PR

3.1

The Planning Officer, gave an illustrative presentation recommending granting
planning permission for the alteration and conversion of the first and second floors
of DirtySouth, 162 Lee High Road SE13 into 4 two bedroom self-contained flats,
together with the replacement of the existing windows and installation new
windows in the south facing elevation and the provision of bin and cycle storage,
subject to a S106 Legal Agreement and to the conditions and informatives in the
report:

3.2

The Committee noted the report and that the main issues were:
· Principle of Development
· Residential Quality
· Urban Design
· Impact on Adjoining Properties
· Transport
· Sustainable Development

Page 7

· Natural Environment

The application was recommended for approval subject to the conditions set out in
the report and the legal agreement that future local residents will be unable to
obtain parking permits for the CPZ.
3.3

The officer made a correction to an error in the report- condition 15 referenced
live amplified music, sound and the PA system- he stated it should only refer to
live acoustic music.

3.4

Members asked for clarity on what was meant by amplified music and live acoustic
music and why one is recommended for permission and not the other. The
presenting officer explained that the amplified music is controlled by the sound
system in the public house, subject to condition 5

3.5

Councillor Smith asked if there were any restriction or conditions attached to the
considerations of this application that ensure that people moving into the flats
above will be protected from the sound but also will not be able to get the pub
closed down on the basis of noise made by the normal operation of the pub. The
officer stated that conditions 4 and 5 set out conditions regarding noise prevention
windows and internal noise and vibration transferred through the building- this
would control the noise coming from the normal operations of the pub. It is also
outlined that there is a sound limiter for the sound system which is set at a certain
level to ensure there will be no unacceptable impact, so amplified sound would be
controlled.
He stated that it should be noted that this will not necessarily stop neighbours from
complaining so does not remove any statutory rights as a citizen- this cannot be
controlled.
The officer wanted it noted that the pub historically was a music venue which
ceased in 2012 and was vacant until 2017. It then became a more food-operated
pub operation then closed in 2020- so although it was a music venue, the weight
that could have been given to that in terms of the application, now not having
operated in that manner for 10 years, is quite low.
Officers stated that a material considerations would be that the pub being a
community asset of value, after being asked by Councillor Muldoon. The Legal
Representative stated that the weight given to this would be the decision of
Members.

3.6

The agent of application then gave their presentation. He said the following of the
application:
The proposal would retain the pub on the ground floor and a viability assessment
confirmed the pub would retain a profit as a ground unit if the upper floors were
converted to flats.there are minor works to be done to the external part of the
building which includes two new windows on the south elevation. Due to concerns
raised by public on the windows, the applicant has sought to revise the scheme by
ensuring one window on the first floor and two windows on the second, would be
fixed shut and obscure glazed. Sound insulation will be installed on the ground
floor between the apartments and the pub below. There will be 4 high quality flats
in a sustainable area and will retain a viable pub on the ground floor.

Page 8

Councillor Paschoud asked what was the objection made to the construction being
a community value asset, as an appeal against this was made. The agent stated
that this was at the liberty of the applicant and he would not be able to answer to
this decision as a consultant.
The objector then gave a presentation and made the following objection:
She stated that she believes the conversion is generally a good idea and she
welcomes the idea of the external metal staircase being removed. However, she
objected to the windows at the first floor level. She stated that the new windows
would be looking into her property and this is a loss of privacy for her. She
objected only one of the 4 new windows being obscured. She asked if, as a
compromise, two windows could be obscured and fixed shut. She aslo stated that
the application states there is only a 4m distance between the two properties
which is well below the 16 metres recommendation. She lastly pointed out that it is
common for customers of the pub to gather outside and make a lot of noise which
is of concern to residents.
Councillor Smith raised concerns about the overlooking into windows and said that
it was not clear from the plans what the levelling of the windows was like. The
presenting Officer stated that the reason one is obscured and the other is not is in
order to provide the balance between protecting the amenity of the neighbouring
properties but also providing outlook, ventilation and light for the property. If both
windows were obscured there would be no outlook or light for the room in the
property. In regards to privacy, he said there were no new windows being put in
but they are rather replacing the smaller window and door. The door had access to
a metal staircase which had a platform so it was arguable whether the proposal
was or was not preferable over what already existed.
Councillor Muldoon stated he understood the distinction regarding the music
played at the venue was about live music and recorded music and asked for
clarification to which the Presiding Officer stated that the conditions around noise
were produced from the applicants noise impact assessment of music playing
from the speakers but did not include live music in the assessment.
3.7

The Committee considered the submissions made at the meeting and
RESOLVED that planning permission be deferred on the basis that
more information is needed on the overlooking issue into the property
and much more clarification on the condition set out in paragraph 15
regarding the live music.

4
4.1

17 Minard Road SE6 1NS
The Planning Officer gave an illustrative presentation recommending granting
planning permission for the construction of a part two storey, part single storey
building, plus habitable roof space at 17 Minard Road, SE6, to provide 1, three
bedroom and 1, four bedroom dwelling houses, together with the provision of 1
off-street car parking space, bicycle and refuse storage facilities and associated
landscaping, subject to the conditions and informatives in the report.

Page 9

There was also a rear dormer to the roof proposed, as well as a two storey rear
extension. Officers had also assessed the impact of the neighbouring properties,
including relevant 25 and 45 degree tests and were satisfied the impacts would
not be harmful to the neighbouring properties. The building did have a slightly
larger footprint but the scheme was of very similar mass and scale of the
demolished building and would have commensurate impact on the adjoining
property.







Principle of Development
Housing Provision
Standard of Residential Accomodation
Impact and Design of Surrounding Area
Impact on Living Conditions of Neighbours
Impact on Highways

It was the officer recommendation to approve the application, subject to the
conditions set out in the report. The proposed development would increase the
housing potential of an underused residential site including on additional family
sized unit, with a high standard of accommodation for future residents. Officers
concluded the design was of an appropriate scale and takes account of the
existing context including impacts to neighbouring amenity and were satisfied that
the proposal would not cause any harm to the surrounding transport network.
4.2

The Chair asked the officer about the materials used for the proposed
development as the contrast in colour seemed very heavy against the streetscape.
The officer said there was an opportunity to assess the materials again if
Members are not satisfied, and an informative could be added to the proposal.

4.3

The objector to the application gave her presentation. She is the adjoining
neighbour to the proposed development. She raised the considerations of impact
on privacy, outlook and natural lighting. She stated that the 25 and 45 degree
rules are not met with this development and the addendum that was issued
provided measurements that were inaccurate due to the positioning of the
windows of her property in the drawings. The development is higher by at least 1.3
metres which is significant, and wider that the 45 degree lines, suggesting an
unacceptable loss of daylight to the window. She went on to say that the proposed
development would be overbearing and visually intrusive which would result in
loss of outlook and increase on the sense of enclosure. She also stated that the
report states that the proposed building will be of the same height as the adjoining
terrace and the roof pitch needs would match- the drawings show the proposed
development starting shrunk into the ground by at least 200mm to ensure roof
pitch needs would match in the drawings. However, having spoken to a surveyor,
she stated that it would not be possible to build from this depth as it would breach
the existing damp-proof course.

4.4

The Planning Officer stated that with the 25 and 45 degree lines are used by
officers as a guideline and they are not rules, when assessing the impact of
daylight. He stated that if the 45 degree line was taken from slightly further down
the door, officers would be still satisfied that it would touch the wall of the two

Page 10

storey extension as noted and would still pass the two-storey element extension.
This would not warrant refusal. It is also a south-easterly-facing orientation so has
less impact that, for example, a north, east or west facing elevation, because the
door would still receive a good amount of daylight or sunlight. He stated that the
impact of the two-storey element was very minor on daylight and sunlight and
would not have an overbearing effect or enclosing impact which are the main
impacts on amenity.
4.5

He stated that the plans, as shown, were acceptable in assessment of planning
considerations. The issue of the damp course cannot essentially be considered by
Members in the assessment of a planning application. The applicant had asserted
that through the build methods they were going to use that they could build the
proposal as shown. Although the objector may have sought independent advice,
contrary to that, the applicant has assured that is how the building will be built. If it
turned out that it could not be built by way of the proposed methods, there would
be a trigger of policy consideration that would require the applicant to make minor
material amendment which would need to be assessed and be consulted on or a
new application.

4.6

Councillor Smith expressed that it is a significant overdevelopment of the site and
he believed that the extension at the back of the property would leave a feeling of
enclosure of the neighbouring building. He also said he does not think the design
fits with the streetscape.

4.7

The Committee considered the submissions made at the meeting and
RESOLVED that planning permission be approved for the construction of a part
two storey, part single storey building, plus habitable roof space at 17 Minard
Road, SE6, to provide 1, three bedroom and 1, four bedroom dwelling houses,
together with the provision of 1 off-street car parking space, bicycle and refuse
storage facilities and associated landscaping, subject to the conditions and
informatives in the report.

5

209 BARING ROAD, LONDON, SE12 0PX

5.1

The Planning Officer, gave an illustrative presentation recommending granting
planning permission for the construction of a loft extension comprising dormer
window extensions to each flank roof slope and one dormer window to the rear
roof slope, at 209 Baring Road, SE12, together with installation of two roof lights to
the front roof slope and two to the rear roof slope, subject to conditions and
informatives in the report.
The Committee noted the report and that the main issues were:
Principle of Development
Urban Design
Impact on Adjoining Properties

Page 11

The Planning Officer stated that each of these considerations have been deemed
acceptable and it was recommended that the application be approved.
5.3

The applicant gave their presentation. She stated that it is a family home and they
are trying to build the extension to create more room for their family. The rooms
will be for her two children to provide space for themselves as they are getting
older. As parents who now work from home, some of the space is used for office
and study space, so the extra room will provide better space in their family
dwelling.

5.6

Councillor Smith withdrew from voting on the decision as he was unable to access
the documents to review the application.

5.7

The Committee considered the submissions made at the meeting and
RESOLVED unanimously that planning permission be granted planning
permission for the construction of a loft extension comprising dormer window
extensions to each flank roof slope and one dormer window to the rear roof slope,
at 209 Baring Road, SE12, together with installation of two roof lights to the front
roof slope and two to the rear roof slope, subject to conditions and informatives in
the report.

6.

28 BORDER ROAD, LONDON, SE26 6HB

6.1

The Planning Officer, gave an illustrative presentation recommending the granting
of planning permission for the demolition of existing shed and erection of a studio and
an adjoining shed at the rear end of the garden at 28 Border Road,SE26, subject to the
conditions and informatives in the report.

6.2

The Committee noted the report and that the main issues were:
Principle of Development
Urban Design
Impact on Adjoining Properties
The Planning Officer stated that they were satisfied that any noise will not have
any impact on the adjoining properties. The principle of development and the
urban design were also considered acceptable, complying with relevant policies.
Therefore it was recommended that the application be approved.

6.3

The Planning Officer confirmed that the studio will be for the sole use of the
applicant. The applicant was present but gave no further explanation to what the
Planning Officer presented as it satisfied his application.

6.4

The objector gave their statement. They said that they believe planning officers
have omitted the boundary lines of their neighbouring home, number 26, from the
report. They stated that the proposed application should be refused because
firstly, it will overshadow most of the garden of their home, which lies at a right

Page 12

angle of the proposed studio, causing a loss of light and amenity to their garden.
The height of 3m and the width of 4m would be overbearing and would impact the
acceptable use of the garden. The path is 7.76m and the proposal extends
beyond the boundary by 5.56m causing a huge overbearing and enclosure of the
pathway. Additionally, the connection of the block of flats beside 28 Baring Road
to its garden is over 69 years old, they said, which would be lost. They stated that
the noise would be a nuisance because the garden of 26 lies behind the proposed
studio.
6.5

Councillor Muldoon asked the planning officer to present the bird’s eye view of the
property in as much detail as possible, as the Committee discussed the potential
obstruction of the neighbouring properties. The Officer indicated where all of the
neighbouring properties were and their positioning beside the garden of the
proposed studio.

6.6

The applicant confirmed that as music is his line of work, music is practiced in the
house every day. He stated that it is practised with windows open during the
summertime and he had never received any complaints from neighbours. He said
that he is a pianist, so did not believe that his playing caused any loud or
disruptive noise, in comparison to other instruments. He explained that the studio
would be more soundproofed than playing inside the house, for the benefit of the
neighbours.

6.7

The Planning Officer stated that soundproofing is not a required for rear –house
development. The Presiding Officer added that it would be onorous to present
noise assessment, mitigation or insulation to the condition as it is not a
commercial studio, given that it is ancillary to the main dwelling. He also said there
was nothing enshrined in planning policy to protect an owner’s view of their
garden. They will rather look at the overall impact of neighbour amenity, enclosure
and outlook offered to neighbouring properties. Having assessed this, they were
satisfied that there would be no unreasonable impact on these issues.
The Committee considered the submissions made at the meeting, and
RESOLVED unanimously that planning permission be granted for the demolition
of existing shed and erection of a studio and an adjoining shed at the rear end of the
garden at 28 Border Road, SE26, subject to the conditions and informatives in the report.

7.

10 MANOR LANE, LONDON, SE13 5QP.

7.1

The Planning Officer, gave an illustrative presentation recommending granting
planning permission for the construction of a rear dormer extension and two front
roof lights at 10 Manor Lane SE13 subject of the conditions and informatives in the
report.

7.2

The Committee noted the report and that the main issues were:
•Principle of Development
• Urban Design and Impact on Heritage Assets

Page 13

• Impact on Adjoining Properties
The officer stated that each of these were considered acceptable by planning and
it was recommended that the planning application be approved.
7.3

The agent for the applicant gave his presentation. He stated that this was welldesigned extension which meets a high level of design standards. The scale and
width of the dormers were considered of high quality design- those at number 62
and 64 of Manor Lane are now prominent features of the conservation area which
were widely welcomed. Although they sit beyond the guidance of the SPD, he
stated that their quality is a positive contribution to the character of the
conservation area as well as its ongoing history. He said that of the 22 properties
on the stretch, 10 have full width dormers- the latest of these at number 6 was
consented in June 2020, a year after the publication of the SPD. 15 of the
properties have front-facing roof lights and full width dormers which were cited as
a main objection to the proposal.

7.4

The objector made his statement discussing the following. He said that the
argument is often made that this is high quality design which he said out of context
was poor design and that the development was out of context. The Japanese –
style cladding was not suitable for the Lee Manor conservation area. He stated
that officers claims that the scheme would not “further” erode the quality of the
area, implies that the designs have already cause such erosion.
Members had no questions for the applicant or objector.

7.5

The Committee considered the submissions made at the meeting, and

RESOLVED unanimously that planning permission be granted for the construction
of a rear dormer extension and two front roof lights at 10 Manor Lane SE13 subject of the
conditions and informatives in the report.

The meeting closed at 9.50 pm.

Chair
_________________________

Page 14

Agenda Item 3

Planning Committee B

Dirty South, 162 Lee High Road, London, SE13 5PR
Date: 12 April 2022
Key decision: No.
Class: Part 1
Ward affected: Lee Green
Contributors: Alfie Williams

Outline and recommendations
. This report sets out the Officer’s recommendation of approval for the above proposal. The
report has been brought before Committee for a decision due to the submission of four
objections from local residents and an objection from the Lee Neighbourhood Forum.

Page 15

Application details
Application reference number(s): DC/21/123592
Application Date:

21/09/2021

Applicant:

The Wellington Pub Company

Proposal:

The alteration and conversion of the first and second floors of Dirty
South, 162 Lee High Road SE12 into 4 two bedroom self-contained
flats, together with the replacement of the existing windows and
installation new windows in the south facing elevation and the
provision of bin and cycle storage.

Background Papers:

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

Designation:

Air Quality Management Area
Flood Risk Zone 3
PTAL 4

Submission Drawings
Submission technical reports and supporting documents
Internal consultee responses
External consultee responses

INTRODUCTION
1

This report sets out Officers recommendation in regard to the proposed conversion of
the upper floors of the public house to provide four residential units.

2

The report has been brought before members, as the application was deferred at the
previous meeting of Planning Committee B held on 1 February 2022. The original
committee report is attached at Appendix A. It was resolved that the decision be deferred
due to concerns with the impact of proposed Condition 15 on the operations of the public
house. Condition 15 would have prevented live acoustic and amplified music within the
public house. Members also requested clarification of the position of the existing first
floor side elevation windows at Waterside Court to the proposed first floor windows in the
southern south elevation of the application site.

3

In response the applicant has submitted a Technical Note prepared by KP Acoustics
dated 18 March 2022. The report provides clarification on the proposed sound
attenuation measures and restrictions necessary to protect the amenity of the proposed
residential units. Additionally, site photographs have been provided showing the external
staircase at the application site and the position of the side elevation windows at
Waterside Court.

4

Paragraphs 2 and 3 of the previous committee report (included as Appendix 1) refer to
the pubs inclusion on the list of the Council’s Assets of Community Value (ACV) and the
owner’s subsequent appeal against this decision. A decision on this appeal was issued
after the previous committee meeting on 7 March 2022. The appeal was dismissed by
the Council and the public house remains on the Council’s ACV list. The impact of the

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 16

ACV status on the proposed development is assessed at paras 42 and 43 of the
previous committee report (see Appendix 1).

POLICY CONTEXT
LEGISLATION
5

Planning applications are required to be determined in accordance with the statutory
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise (S38(6) Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and S70 Town & Country Planning Act 1990).

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
6

A material consideration is anything that, if taken into account, creates the real possibility
that a decision-maker would reach a different conclusion to that which they would reach
if they did not take it into account.

7

Whether or not a consideration is a relevant material consideration is a question of law
for the courts. Decision-makers are under a duty to have regard to all applicable policy
as a material consideration.

8

The weight given to a relevant material consideration is a matter of planning judgement.
Matters of planning judgement are within the exclusive province of the LPA. This report
sets out the weight Officers have given relevant material considerations in making their
recommendation to Members. Members, as the decision-makers, are free to use their
planning judgement to attribute their own weight, subject to aforementioned directions
and the test of reasonableness.

NATIONAL POLICY & GUIDANCE




National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Guidance 2014 onwards (NPPG)
National Design Guidance 2019 (NDG)

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
9

The Development Plan comprises:







London Plan (March 2021) (LPP)
Core Strategy (June 2011) (CSP)
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014) (DMP)
Site Allocations Local Plan (June 2013) (SALP)
Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan (February 2014) (LTCP)

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE
10

Lewisham SPD:

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 17



11

Alterations and Extensions (April 2019)
Small Sites (October 2021)

London Plan SPG:



Housing (March 2016)

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
12

The main issues are:




Principle of Development - impact to the operations of the public house
Impact on Adjoining Properties – privacy impact

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT
General policy
13

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at paragraph 11, states that there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development and that proposals should be
approved without delay so long as they accord with the development plan.

14

The London Plan (LP) sets out a sequential spatial approach to making the best use of
land set out in LPP GG2 (Parts A to C) that should be followed.
Policy

15

LPP H1 seeks to optimise the potential of housing delivery, especially on sites with good
public transport access level (PTALs) of 3-6 and close to town centres. The target set for
Lewisham in the LP is 16,670 homes between 2019-29, or 1,667 as an annualised
average. LPP H2 also recognised and supports the contribution of new homes on small
sites below 0.25 hectares.

16

LPP D13 Agent of Change seeks to ensure new noise-sensitive development takes
responsibility for mitigating the impact from existing noise and other nuisance generating
activities to ensure they remain viable.

17

LPP HC6 Supporting the night-time economy recognises the night-time economy as
being increasingly important to London’s economy and emphasises the importance of
promoting London as a 24-hour city.

18

LPP HC7 seeks to protect public houses where, amongst other things, they have
heritage, economic, social or cultural value to local communities. Development proposals
that would compromise the operation or viability of the public house should be resisted.
To overcome this, developers must put in place measures that would mitigate the
impacts of noise and other nuisance for new residents.

19

Planning controls the effect of noise from external sources on residential uses and noise
transmission between different uses. The relevant standard is BS: 8233:2014. This
states the internal noise levels within living rooms must not exceed 35dB(A) during the
daytime (0700-2300) and 30 dB(A) in bedrooms during the night–time (2300-0700). With

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 18

respect to external areas, BS 8233:2014 recommends that external noise level does not
exceed 50dB LAeq,T with an upper guideline of value of 55dB LAeq,T
20

DMP 20 aims to prevent the loss of public houses and imposes criteria for assessing
development proposals that would see the change of use of a public house.

21

DMP 26 attempts to reduce excessive noise or vibration that can be detrimental to
human health and well-being
Discussion

22

At the committee meeting members expressed concern with the proposed conditions
relating to the restriction of live music and the operations of the public house. In
particular, Condition 15 was assessed to be unreasonably onerous due to the prevention
of all live music. Condition 15 read as follows:
No live amplified music, live acoustic music (defined as acoustic instruments and
singing), public address system or any other amplified sound shall take place at the
site, and average noise levels (LAeq) from the proposed development should be at
least 5dB below background levels (LA90) at the location of nearby sensitive
receptors.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining premises and the area
generally and to comply with Paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policy D13 Agent of change of the London Plan (March 2021) and DM
Policies 26 Noise and Vibration and 32 Housing design, layout and space standards
of the Development Management Local Plan (November 2014).

23

During the meeting Officers clarified that the PA system should not have been included
within the condition as the Sound Limiter secured by Condition 5 would limit the sound
system to an acceptable level. Condition 5 read as follows:
a)
The residential accommodation shall not be occupied until details have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority demonstrating
that soundproofing of a specification for sound insulation against airborne noise and
structural vibration to meet 30dB LAeq (night) and 45dB LAmax (measured with F
time weighting) for bedrooms and 35dB LAeq (day) for other habitable rooms, would
be installed where walls and/or ceilings for the residential accommodation parties
non domestic use.
(b)
The residential accommodation shall not be occupied until the sound
insulation scheme approved pursuant to paragraph (b) has been implemented in its
entirety, including details of the noise limiter to comply with Section 6.2 of the Noise
Impact Assessment (KP Acoustics, August 2021), and a report detailing the results
of post-completion sound testing to demonstrate compliance with the part (a)
scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The report and installation of the noise limiter shall be undertaken by
qualified independent acoustician. Thereafter, the sound insulation scheme shall be
maintained in perpetuity in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of the proposed dwellings
and to comply with DM Policy 26 Noise and vibration and DM Policy 32 Housing
design, layout and space standards of the Development Management Local Plan
(November 2014).

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 19

24

Members also sought clarity on the proposed sound limiter and what type of activities
this would permit mentioning televised sport, a PA system for quizzes and background
music.

25

The Technical Note (KP Acoustics, March 2022) submitted subsequent to the committee
meeting directly addresses these questions. On live music the Technical Note is clear
that the noise attenuation proposed within the Noise Impact Assessment (KP Acoustics,
August 2021) would not be sufficient to allow amplified music. However, some live
acoustic music could be permitted prior to 23.00, which is the time more stringent nighttime (23.00-7.00) noise standards are applied. The acoustic music could include hand
held percussion and signing but would not allow drums or brass instruments. The
wording of Condition 15 has been updated accordingly.

26

The Technical Note also considers other types of typical pub activities and models a
worst-case scenario of high level patron conversation together with background music.
The report concludes that the floor upgrade and sound insulation recommended by the
Noise Impact Assessment (KP Acoustics, August 2021) would prove effective against
worst-case levels of typical noise. Therefore, typical activities such as televised sport
and a PA system for quizzes and other events would be permitted. The Technical Note
also concludes that the sound limiter would not be required on the basis that live
amplified music would be prevented.

27

The Technical Note demonstrates that the public house could operate as lock-up pub
operation with a typical range of activities including limited live acoustic music. The
public house would not be able to function as a live-music venue without causing
unacceptable disturbance to the proposed residential accommodation. Therefore, all live
amplified music and a range of acoustic instruments would be prevented by condition.
Officers are satisfied that the public house would remain viable and that these
restrictions would not be onerous or unreasonable. This is in part because the location is
not within a town centre designated for night-time economic activates but also that the
public house ceased being a live-music orientated operation approximately 10 years
ago.

28

A recent appeal allowed at the White Hart Public House, 184 New Cross Road (Appeal
Ref APP/C5690/W/19/3241119) supports this assessment, (see Appendix 2 for the
appeal decision). The White Hart is located within the New Cross District Centre and
was operated as a live-music orientated operation with live DJ sets Friday and Saturday
nights until 3am and live acoustic music Sunday lunchtime. In April 2018 an application
(DC/18/106613) was submitted proposing a similar development to the current proposal
for the conversion of the upper floors of the public house to provide four residential units.
The development would have necessitated restrictions on live music that would
effectively make the live music pub operation unviable. The Council concluded that
these measures would amount to an unreasonable restriction on the operations of the
public harm and would result in wider harm to the viability and vitality of the night-time
economy pf New Cross. Therefore, the application was refused in August 2019 for the
following reason:
The proposed conversion of the upper floors to residential use, by virtue of the
restrictions imposed by the building’s statutory listing which limit the maximum noise
attenuation that can be achieved, would result in unacceptable living conditions for
future residents, in terms of noise and vibration, that cannot be mitigated by
conditions as any such conditions would amount to unreasonable restrictions on the
use of the pub which is of a unique and intrinsic character that caters to a diverse
clientele and contributes materially to the economic, social and cultural lives of local
residents and the late night economy and culture of New Cross, contrary to the

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 20

NPPF (2019), NPPG, Polices 3.1, 4.6, 4.8 and 7.15 of the London Plan (2016),
Policies GG1, HC5, HC6, HC7, D1, D12 and D13 of the draft London Plan (2019),
Objective 5 and Policy 19 of the Core Strategy (2011), Policies 20, 26 and 43 of the
Development Management Local Plan (2014) and the provisions of the Culture &
the Night-Time Economy SPG (2017).
29

An appeal against this decision was considered at a public inquiry convened in October
2020 and the appeal was allowed in November 2020. In allowing the appeal the
Inspector reached the following conclusion at para 46:
“The pub could continue to open beyond 11pm and potentially until 3am based on
the premises licence. There are no draft conditions that seek to control or alter the
opening hours. It could continue to play music to a certain level and time, serve food
and drink, and host a range of events for the local community. The safe and
inclusive space that it provides could continue. The ACV status (if granted) would be
sustained. The unique and intrinsic character of the pub would be altered by the
reduction in live music, but it would not be lost. Therefore, the restrictions imposed
by the proposed development, including those imposed via planning conditions,
would not be unreasonable or place an undue burden on the pub operation.”

30

Condition 10 of the appeal decision is similar to the revised wording of Condition 15 and
was not considered to amount to an unreasonable restriction on a live-music orientated
public house within a district town centre. Accordingly, Officers have reached the same
conclusion in this case.
Principle of development conclusions

31

The Technical Note demonstrates that the public house could operate as a typical lockup pub operation commensurate with the previous pub operation. Therefore, Officers are
satisfied that the public house could continue to operate viably and make a full
contribution to the vitality of the surrounding area and its night-time economy as required
by the London Plan. This is subject to conditions securing full details of the noise
attenuation prior to the occupation of the residential accommodation as well as post
installation testing. In addition, a condition is recommended preventing live amplified
music and restricting certain types of acoustic music.

32

The provision of four residential units is a planning merit of the scheme and is afforded
weight within the overall planning balance. This weight is limited by the modest scale of
development.

LIVING CONDITIONS OF NEIGHBOURS
General Policy
33

NPPF para 130 sets an expectation that new development will be designed to create
places that amongst other things have a ‘high standard’ of amenity for existing and
future users. At para 180 it states decisions should ensure that new development is
appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative
effects) of pollution on health and living conditions.

34

This is reflected in relevant policies of the London Plan (LPP D3), the Core Strategy
(CP15), the Local Plan (DMP32) and associated guidance (London Plan Housing SPG
2017).

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 21

Privacy
Policy
35

DMP 32(1)(b) expects new developments to provide a ‘satisfactory level’ of privacy for its
neighbours. Additionally, the justification for DMP 32 at paragraph 2.250 advises that
there should be a minimum separation of 21m between directly facing habitable room
windows on the upper floors of main rear elevations. The new Small Sites SPD revises
this figure to 16m and is therefore considered more relevant.
Discussion

36

At the committee meeting members expressed concern with the introduction of new
windows in the first floor of the southern side elevation due to the modest distance to first
floor windows at Waterside Court. Officers considered this relationship to be acceptable
on balance due to the weight afforded to removing the external staircase and raised
platform directly adjacent to the windows. The staircase and gap between the buildings
are shown in Figure 1 below.
Figure 1. Photograph of the gap between the Dirty South and Waterside Court

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 22

37

Officers consider that intensive use of the staircase would result in greater harm to the
privacy of the side elevation window in Waterside Court, than the proposed windows,
although it is recognised that the staircase has not been in frequent use, as the upper
floors are currently vacant. However, the HMO could be brought back into use at any
time independent of this application and therefore the removal of the staircase should
carry weight.

38

The proposed development would insert two windows in the side elevation to provide
outlook and light for the Bedroom 2 of Flat 2, shown in Figure 2 below. The proposal as
submitted proposes to obscure glaze and fix shut the easternmost (right) window in
order to provide a balance between providing an acceptable standard of accommodation
for Flat 2 while protecting the privacy of the adjacent flat at Waterside Court.
Figure 2. Floor plan as initially proposed showing the position of southern elevation
windows

39

Following the Committee meeting the applicant submitted photographic evidence
demonstrating that the westernmost (left) window directly faces the large window in the
centre of five windows, see Figure 3 below. The window serves a communal corridor that
separates the flats. Either side of the central window are two small high level windows.
The windows adjacent to the central window appear to serve kitchens. The windows at
either end appear to be secondary windows for living rooms that have primary windows
in the front and rear elevations respectively. This was corroborated by Officers on site.
Figure 3. Photographs of the windows in the side elevation at Waterside Court taken from
the raised platform on the side elevation of the application site.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 23

40

The clear glazed window therefore faces the central corridor window, which is the least
sensitive in privacy terms. Officers acknowledge that this arrangement would permit a
degree of overlooking to windows serving habitable rooms. However, this overlooking
would be partial given the diminutive size of the windows. Therefore, as a matter of
planning judgement the proposed window arrangement is considered to achieve the
optimal solution to protecting privacy at waterside court while providing an adequate
standard of accommodation for Flat 2. In coming to this conclusion Officers have given
weight to the removal of the external staircase and raised platform. Obscure glazing and
fixing shut both windows would not be an acceptable solution as Bedroom 2 would
receive substandard living conditions.

Impact on neighbours conclusion
41

The amendment agreed to the glazing and opening of the proposed side elevation would
ensure that any adverse impacts to the surrounding residential properties would be
limited and weighed against the planning merits of the scheme would not warrant the
refusal of the application.

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS
42

43

Under Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), a local
finance consideration means:



a grant or other financial assistance that has been, or will or could be, provided to
a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown; or



sums that a relevant authority has received, or will or could receive, in payment of
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

The weight to be attached to a local finance consideration remains a matter for the
decision maker.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 24

44

The CIL is therefore a material consideration.

45

£0 Lewisham CIL and £0 MCIL is estimated to be payable on this application, subject to
any valid applications for relief or exemption, and the applicant has completed the
relevant form. This would be confirmed at a later date in a Liability Notice.

EQUALITIES CONSIDERATIONS
46

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the equality
duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, disability,
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

47

In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its function, have due regard to the
need to:



eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act;



advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not;



foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

48

The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is a
matter for the decision maker, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and
proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination,
advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations.

49

The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical Guidance on
the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010
Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council must
have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is drawn
to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance
also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have
statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical
guidance can be found at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publicationdownload/technical-guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england

50

The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five guides
for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:






51

The essential guide to the public sector equality duty
Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making
Engagement and the equality duty
Equality objectives and the equality duty
Equality information and the equality duty

The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including the
general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what public

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 25

authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are legally required, as well as
recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on
key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources are available
at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equalityduty-guidance
52

The planning issues set out above do not include any factors that relate specifically to
any of the equalities categories set out in the Act, and therefore it has been concluded
that there is no impact on equality.

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS
53

In determining this application the Council is required to have regard to the provisions of
the Human Rights Act 1998. Section 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 prohibits
authorities (including the Council as local planning authority) from acting in a way which
is incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. ‘’Convention’’ here
means the European Convention on Human Rights, certain parts of which were
incorporated into English law under the Human Rights Act 1998. Various Convention
rights are likely to be relevant including:




Article 8: Respect for your private and family life, home and correspondence
Protocol 1, Article 1: Right to peaceful enjoyment of your property

54

This report has outlined the consultation that has been undertaken on the planning
application and the opportunities for people to make representations to the Council as
Local Planning Authority.

55

Members need to satisfy themselves that the potential adverse amenity impacts are
acceptable and that any potential interference with the above Convention Rights will be
legitimate and justified. Both public and private interests are to be taken into account in
the exercise of the Local Planning Authority’s powers and duties. Any interference with a
Convention right must be necessary and proportionate. Members must therefore,
carefully consider the balance to be struck between individual rights and the wider public
interest.

56

This application has the legitimate aim of providing new residential accommodation. The
rights potentially engaged by this application, including Article 8 and Protocol 1, Article 1
are not considered to be unlawfully interfered with by this proposal.

CONCLUSION
57

This application has been considered in the light of policies set out in the development
plan and other material considerations.

58

The Technical Note (KP Acoustics, March 2022) confirms that the public house can
operate as a typical lock-up public house operation with a limited live acoustic music
offer. Therefore, the restrictions required to protect the amenity of the proposed
residential accommodation are not considered unreasonable or harmful to the long-term
viability of the public house. The development would therefore be compliant with the
agent of change principle and policies D13, HC6 and HC7 of the London Plan.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 26

59

Following the submission of photographs and a site visit, Officers are satisfied that the
proposed arrangement, design and glazing of the first floor windows in the southern
elevation would limit the harm to the privacy of the neighbouring properties at Waterside
Court. When weighed against the planning merits of the scheme, which includes the
provision of four residential units, the modest level of harm is not considered to warrant
the refusal of the application.

60

Therefore, subject to the imposition of conditions and planning obligations, the
development is judged acceptable and would accord with the Development Plan.

RECOMMENDATION
61

That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to a S106 Legal
Agreement and to the following conditions and informatives:

CONDITIONS

1.

Full Planning Permission Time Limit
The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date on which the permission is granted.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.

Approved Plans
The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the application plans,
drawings and documents hereby approved and as detailed below:
0128 - KLA - 00 - GF - DR - 18 001 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - GF - DR - 18 002 Rev
P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - B1 - DR - 19 001 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - GF - DR - 19 002
Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - 01 - DR - 19 003 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - 02 - DR - 19
004 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - RF - DR - 19 005 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR
- 29 001 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 29 002 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX
- DR - 29 003 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 29 004 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00
- XX - DR - 33 001 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 33 002 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA
- 00 - B1 - DR - 10 001 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - GF - DR - 10 002 Rev P01; 0128 KLA - 00 - 01 - DR - 10 003 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - RF - DR - 10 005 Rev P01;
0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 21 001 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 21 004 P01;
0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 30 001 Rev P01 received 27 September 2021;

0128 - KLA - 00 - 02 - DR - 10 004 Rev P02; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 21 002 Rev
P02; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 21 003 Rev P02; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 30 002
Rev P02 received 13 January 2021;

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 27

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved documents, plans and drawings submitted with the application and is
acceptable to the local planning authority.

3.

Construction Logistics Plan
No development shall commence on site until a Construction Logistics Management
Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
plan shall demonstrate the following:(a)

Rationalise travel and traffic routes to and from the site.

(b)
Provide full details of the number and time of construction vehicle trips to the
site with the intention and aim of reducing the impact of construction vehicle activity.
(c)

Measures to deal with safe pedestrian movement.

The measures specified in the approved details shall be implemented prior to
commencement of development and shall be adhered to during the period of
construction.

Reason: In order to ensure satisfactory vehicle management and to comply with Policy
14 Sustainable movement and transport of the Core Strategy (June 2011), and Policy
T7 Deliveries, servicing and construction of the London Plan (March 2021).

4.

External Sound Insulation
(a)
The residential accommodation shall not be occupied until a scheme of sound
insulation against external noise and vibration has been submitted to and approved in
writing by local planning authority. The sound insulation shall achieve levels not
exceeding 30dB LAeq (night) and 45dB LAmax (measured with F time weighting) for
bedrooms, 35dB LAeq (day) for other habitable rooms, with window shut and other
means of ventilation provided.
(b)
The residential accommodation shall not be occupied until the sound insulation
scheme approved pursuant to paragraph (b) has been implemented in its entirety.
Thereafter, the sound insulation scheme shall be maintained in perpetuity in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining premises and the area generally
and to comply with Paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies
D13 Agent of change and D14 Noise of the London Plan of the London Plan (March
2021) and DM Policies 26 Noise and Vibration and 32 Housing design, layout and space
standards of the Development Management Local Plan (November 2014).

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 28

5.

Internal Soundproofing
(a) Prior to the first occupation of the residential accommodation hereby permitted,
the floor upgrade soundproofing detailed in Noise Impact Assessment ref
21712.NIA.01 Rev A (KP Acoustics, August 2021), shall be implemented in full.
(b) Following the installation of the floor upgrade soundproofing approved in part
(a) and prior to the first occupation of the residential accommodation, a report
detailing the results of post-completion sound testing to demonstrate
compliance with part (a), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The report shall be undertaken by qualified independent
acoustician. Thereafter, the sound insulation scheme shall be maintained in
perpetuity in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining premises and the area generally
and to comply with Paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies
D13 Agent of change and D14 Noise of the London Plan (March 2021) and DM Policies
26 Noise and Vibration and 32 Housing design, layout and space standards of the
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014).

6.

Windows
(a) The residential accommodation shall not be occupied until detailed drawings,
including sections at scale 1:5, of the windows have been be submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority.
(b) The works shall then be carried in full accordance with the approved details prior to
the first occupation of the residential accommodation, and retained thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the high design quality demonstrated in the plans and
submission is delivered so that local planning authority may be satisfied as to the
external appearance of the buildings and to comply with Policy 15 High quality design
for Lewisham of the Core Strategy (June 2011) and Development Management Local
Plan (November 2014) DM Policy 30 Urban design and local character.

7.

Refuse and Recycling Facilities
(a)
Prior to the occupation of the residential accommodation, details of the refuse
and recycling facilities shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority.
(b)
The facilities as approved under part (a) shall be provided in full prior to
occupation of the residential accommodation and shall thereafter be permanently
retained and maintained.

Reason: In order that the local planning authority may be satisfied with the provisions
for recycling facilities and refuse storage in the interest of safeguarding the amenities
of neighbouring occupiers and the appearance of the area in general, in compliance
with Development Management Local Plan (November 2014) DM Policy 30 Urban

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 29

design and local character and Core Strategy Policy 13 Addressing Lewisham waste
management requirements (2011).

8.

Cycle Parking Facilities
(a)
Prior to first occupation of the residential accommodation, full details of the cycle
parking facilities providing a minimum of 8 long stay spaces for the development shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
(b)
All cycle parking spaces shall be provided and made available for use prior to
occupation of the residential accommodation and maintained thereafter.

Reason: In order to ensure adequate provision for cycle parking and to comply with
Policy T5 cycling and Table 10.2 of the London Plan (March 2021) and Policy 14:
Sustainable movement and transport of the Core Strategy (2011).

9.

Mechanical Ventilation Heat Recovery System (MVHR)
(a) Prior to the occupation of the residential accommodation, a Mechanical Ventilation
Heat Recovery (MVHR) system report, to comply with the recomendations of the
Air Quality Assessment (Hoare Lea, July 2021) and Noise Impact Assessment
(KP Acoustics, August 2021), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Council. The report shall include the following information:



Details and locations of the air intake locations of the mechanical
ventilation system, or



Details of filtration system to remove airborne pollutants. The
filtration system shall have a minimum efficiency of 75% in the
removal of Nitrogen Oxides/Dioxides, and Particulate Matter
(PM2.5, PM10) in accordance with BS EN ISO 10121-1:2014 and
BS EN ISO 16890.

Ventilation intakes shall be positioned a suitable distance away from chimney/boiler
flues, ventilation extracts, and roads. The maintenance and cleaning of the systems
shall be undertaken regularly in accordance with manufacturer specifications, and shall
be the responsibility of the primary owner of the property.
(b) The facilities as approved under part (a) shall be provided in full prior to
occupation of the residential accommodation and shall thereafter be permanently
retained and maintained.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of the proposed dwellings and to
comply with Policy SI1 Improving Air Quality of the London Plan (March 2021) and DM
Policy 32 Housing design, layout and space standards of the Development
Management Local Plan (November 2014).

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 30

10.

Obscured Glazed Windows
Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
Order 2015 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order), the proposed
obscure glazed windows in the southern elevation as identified on drawing 0128 - KLA
- 00 - XX - DR - 21 002 Rev P02 shall be fitted as obscure glazed to a minimum of Level
3 on the ‘Pilkington Scale’ and fixed shut and retained in perpetuity.

Reason: To avoid the direct overlooking of adjoining properties and consequent loss
of privacy thereto and to comply with DM Policy 31 Alterations and extensions to
existing buildings including residential extensions and DM Policy 32 Housing design,
layout and space standards of the Development Management Local Plan (November
2014).

11.

No works or deliveries in connection with construction works shall be undertaken other
than between the hours of 8 am and 6 pm on Mondays to Fridays and 8 am and 1 pm
on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Public Holidays.

Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining occupants at unsociable
periods and to comply with Paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework
and DM Policy 26 Noise and Vibration and DM Policy 32 Housing design, layout and
space standards of the Development Management Local Plan (November 2014).

12.

Mains water consumption shall be compliant with the Optional Requirement set out in
Part G of the Building Regulations of 105 litres or less per head per day.

Reason: In order to minimise the use of mains water and to comply with Policy SI5
Water infrastructure of the London Plan (March 2021)

13.

In the event gas boilers are proposed, details of the Ultra-Low NOx Gas fired boilers
proposed to be installed shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority prior to installation. The Ultra-Low NOx Gas fired boilers to be
provided for space heating and hot water shall have dry NOx emissions not exceeding
40 mg/kWh (at 0% O2). Where any installations do not meet this emissions standard,
they should not be operated without the fitting of suitable NOx abatement equipment or
technology as determined by a specialist to ensure comparable emissions. Following
installation, emissions certificates will need to be provided to the council to verify boiler
emissions. The approved details shall be fully implemented prior to the occupation/use
of the development and thereafter permanently retained and maintained.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 31

Reason: To manage and prevent further deterioration of existing low quality air across
London in accordance with Policy SI1 Improving Air Quality of the London Plan (March
2021).

14.

Flood Risk
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment (Motion, June 2021) and the following mitigation measure:


residential accommodation shall be set at the first floor level and
above, and no lower than 11.95 metres above Ordnance Datum
(mAOD).

This mitigation measure shall be fully implemented prior to the occupation of the
residential accommodation and shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout
the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the development and future occupants and
to comply with Policy 10 Managing and reducing the risk of flooding of the Core Strategy
(June 2011).

15.

Live Music
(a) No live amplified music shall be played within the ground floor of the building
(public house) at any time.
(b) No live acoustic music (defined as acoustic instruments and singing) shall be
played within the ground floor of the building (public house) at all between
23:00 and 12:00 on any day of the week.
(c) Other than handheld percussion, no drums or brass instruments shall be
played at any time within the public house in accordance with the
recommendations of Noise Impact Assessment ref 21712.NIA.01 Rev A (KP
Acoustics, August 2021).

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining premises and the area generally
and to comply with Paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework,
Policies D13 Agent of change and D14 Noise of the London Plan of the London Plan
(March 2021) and DM Policies 26 Noise and Vibration and 32 Housing design, layout
and space standards of the Development Management Local Plan (November 2014).

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 32

INFORMATIVES
1)

Positive and Proactive Statement: The Council engages with all applicants in a
positive and proactive way through specific pre-application enquiries and the
detailed advice available on the Council’s website. On this particular application,
positive discussions took place which resulted in further information being
submitted.

2)

As you are aware the approved development is liable to pay the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) which will be payable on commencement of the
development. An 'assumption of liability form' must be completed and before
development commences you must submit a 'CIL Commencement Notice form'
to the council. You should note that any claims for relief, where they apply, must
be submitted and determined prior to commencement of the development. Failure
to follow the CIL payment process may result in penalties. More information on
CIL is available at: - http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/myservices/planning/applyfor-planning-permission/application-process/Pages/CommunityInfrastructure-Levy.aspx

3)

The applicant be advised that the implementation of the proposal will require
approval by the Council of a Street naming & Numbering application. Application
forms are available on the Council's web site.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
(1) Submission Drawings
(2) Submission technical reports and supporting documents
(3) Internal consultee responses
(4) External consultee responses

REPORT AUTHOR AND CONTACT
Report Author: Alfie Williams (Senior Planning Officer)
Email: alfie.williams@lewisham.gov.uk

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 33

Telephone: 020 8314 9336

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 34

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

162 Lee High Road (DC/21/123592)
Appendix 1 – First Committee Report

Page 37

Planning Committee B

Dirty South, 162 Lee High Road, London, SE13 5PR
Date: 1 February 2022
Key decision: No.
Class: Part 1
Ward affected: Lee Green
Contributors: Alfie Williams

Outline and recommendations
. This report sets out the Officer’s recommendation of approval for the above proposal. The
report has been brought before Committee for a decision due to the submission of four
objections from local residents and an objection from the Lee Neighbourhood Forum.

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 38

Application details
Application reference number(s): DC/21/123592
Application Date:

21/09/2021

Applicant:

The Wellington Pub Company

Proposal:

The alteration and conversion of the first and second floors of Dirty
South, 162 Lee High Road SE12 into 4 two bedroom self-contained
flats, together with the replacement of the existing windows and
installation new windows in the south facing elevation and the
provision of bin and cycle storage.

Background Papers:

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

Designation:

Air Quality Management Area
Flood Risk Zone 3
PTAL 4

Submission Drawings
Submission technical reports and supporting documents
Internal consultee responses
External consultee responses

SITE AND CONTEXT
Site description and current use
1

The application site is a three-storey property located on the south-western side of Lee
High Road at the junction with Weardale Road. The site is a brick building with ornate
detailing including a bay window rising through the second and third storeys to the front
elevation. The building accommodates a public house known as the Dirty South. The
pub is arranged over the ground floor with ancillary space at basement level. The upper
floors have historically been used as a HMO but have been vacant for approximately 12
years. The public house is currently vacant and has been since early 2020 due to the
Covid-19 Pandemic.

2

On 2nd December 2021 the Dirty South was included on the list of the Council’s Assets of
Community Value (ACV), see Appendix 1 for the decision notice. In making this decision
the Council concluded the following:

3



There is a time in the recent past when the actual and main use of the Dirty
South Pub, namely as a pub and music venue, offering a range of events and
activities, furthered the social wellbeing or social interests of the local community
and;



It is realistic to think that there can continue to be a main use of the building or
land which will further the social wellbeing or social interests of the local
community.

This decision has subsequently been appealed by the freeholders of the property.

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 39

4

The site area is 0.053 ha, therefore this is a Small Site for purposes of LPP H2 and
Lewisham’s Small Sites SPD.
Figure 1. Site Location Plan

Character of area
5

Lee High Road is approximately 1.7km long and connects Lee Green and Lewisham
Town Centre. The road has a mixed character comprising areas of shopping parades
interspersed with residential accommodation. This section of Lee High Road has a
commercial character with parades of shops on both sides of the road and residential
accommodation largely confined to the upper floors. The side roads off of Lee High
Road, including Weardale Road and Eastdown Road, are predominately residential in
character. The buildings on this part of Lee High Road are mainly three storey in height
and are of similar architecture to the public house. Waterside Court, directly to the south
of the application site, is a more modern flatted block and is slightly higher at four
storeys.

6

Lewisham Town Centre is located approximately 500m to the north-west, where Lee
High Road meets Lewisham High Street. The site lies within an Air Quality Management
Area and is within the recently expanded Ultra-Low Emissions Zone (ULEZ).
Heritage

7

The application site is not located within a conservation area and neither is the building
statutorily listed. However, the building is identified as a Non-Designated Heritage Asset
on the Council’s local list with the following listing entry:

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 40

“Of architectural and social historic interest. 162 Lee High Road is a public house c1900,
previously called the Rose of Lee. It is three storeys with a corner turret, feature chimney
stack and broken pedimented gable with central clock, constructed of red brick with
render banding and detailing and a slate tiled roof. Some arched headed casement
windows and some plain. There is a continuous original decorative glazed frontage with
ornate fanlights at ground floor level with two entrances. To the left of the building there
is an arched entrance providing access to the rear of the building. Distinctive features of
the building are the Dutch gable featuring a clock and a turret to the southwestern corner
of the building. British singer Kate Bush made her first public performance here, fronting
the KT Bush Band in March 1977. It is also a local landmark in this section of Lee High
Road and is prominent in views in both directions.”
Local environment
8

The River Quaggy runs along the rear of the site so consequently the application site is
located within Flood Risk Zone 3.
Transport

9

The site has a PTAL of 4, which is a good level of public transport accessibility. The
closest train station is Hither Green Station located approximately 750m to the south.
Lewisham Station is also within walking distance, approximately1km to the north-west,
and provides National Rail and DLR services. Lee High Road (A2) forms part of the TfL
Road Network and is served by several bus routes.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
10

None relevant to this application.

CURRENT PLANNING APPLICATION
11

The proposed development would see the alteration and conversation of the upper floors
of the building to provide four two-bedroom self-contained flats. In order to facilitate the
conversion two new timber sash windows would be installed in the southern side
elevation at first floor level. The proposal also includes the replacement of the existing
windows in designs and materials to match the existing. The residential units would be
accessed via the existing residential entrance in the side (southern) elevation.

12

At ground floor level a timber structure would be provided in the side access to
accommodate separate cycling and refuse facilities for the residential accommodation. A
second timber structure would be constructed to enclose the refuse facilities for the
public house. The works within the side access also include the provision of a new
timber gate and a timber planter. The external metal staircase on the side (south)
elevation would be removed as part of the works.

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 41

CONSULTATION
APPLICATION PUBLICITY
13

Site notices were displayed and letters were sent to residents and business in the
surrounding area and to the relevant ward Councillors on 1 October 2021.

14

Five responses were received, comprising four objections from local residents and an
objection from the Lee Neighbourhood Forum.
Comments in objection
Comment

Para where addressed

Impact to the public house (location of WC
and Kitchen)

50

Lack of detail regarding the design of the
windows and stores

85

Loss of Privacy

111

Increase noise and disturbance

118-119

Security
15

121

An objection also raised matters relating to fire safety, which is not a material
consideration for this scale of development but is addressed within Building Regulations.

INTERNAL CONSULTATION
16

The following internal consultees were notified on 30 September 2021.

17

Conservation: no objection subject to a condition securing detailed drawings of the
windows.

18

Environmental Protection: raised no objection to the proposal subject to conditions
securing further details of the gas boilers and securing the recommendations of the Air
Quality Assessment and Noise Impact Assessment.

19

Highways: did not submit comments.

EXTERNAL CONSULTATION
20

The following External Consultees were notified on 30 September 2021:

21

Environment Agency: raised no objections subject to a condition securing the
recommendations of the Flood Risk Assessment.

22

Quaggy Waterways Action Group: did not submit comments.

23

TfL: raised no objections subject to conditions securing further details of the cycle
parking, a Construction Logistics Plan and Delivery and Servicing Plan. TfL also
requested that access to parking permits for the CPZ be prevented in order to secure a
car-free development.

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 42

POLICY CONTEXT
LEGISLATION
24

Planning applications are required to be determined in accordance with the statutory
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise (S38(6) Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and S70 Town & Country Planning Act 1990).

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
25

A material consideration is anything that, if taken into account, creates the real possibility
that a decision-maker would reach a different conclusion to that which they would reach
if they did not take it into account.

26

Whether or not a consideration is a relevant material consideration is a question of law
for the courts. Decision-makers are under a duty to have regard to all applicable policy
as a material consideration.

27

The weight given to a relevant material consideration is a matter of planning judgement.
Matters of planning judgement are within the exclusive province of the LPA. This report
sets out the weight Officers have given relevant material considerations in making their
recommendation to Members. Members, as the decision-makers, are free to use their
planning judgement to attribute their own weight, subject to aforementioned directions
and the test of reasonableness.

NATIONAL POLICY & GUIDANCE




National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Guidance 2014 onwards (NPPG)
National Design Guidance 2019 (NDG)

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
28

The Development Plan comprises:







London Plan (March 2021) (LPP)
Core Strategy (June 2011) (CSP)
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014) (DMP)
Site Allocations Local Plan (June 2013) (SALP)
Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan (February 2014) (LTCP)

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE
29

Lewisham SPD:




Alterations and Extensions (April 2019)
Small Sites (October 2021)

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 43

30

London Plan SPG:



Housing (March 2016)

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
31

The main issues are:











Principle of Development
Residential Quality
Urban Design
Impact on Adjoining Properties
Transport
Sustainable Development
Natural Environment
[Other site specific considerations]
Planning Obligations

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT
General policy
32

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at paragraph 11, states that there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development and that proposals should be
approved without delay so long as they accord with the development plan.

33

The London Plan (LP) sets out a sequential spatial approach to making the best use of
land set out in LPP GG2 (Parts A to C) that should be followed.
Policy

34

LPP H1 seeks to optimise the potential of housing delivery, especially on sites with good
public transport access level (PTALs) of 3-6 and close to town centres. The target set for
Lewisham in the LP is 16,670 homes between 2019-29, or 1,667 as an annualised
average. LPP H2 also recognised and supports the contribution of new homes on small
sites below 0.25 hectares.

35

LPP D13 Agent of Change seeks to ensure new noise-sensitive development takes
responsibility for mitigating the impact from existing noise and other nuisance generating
activities to ensure they remain viable.

36

DLPP HC6 Supporting the night-time economy recognises the night-time economy as
being increasingly important to London’s economy and emphasises the importance of
promoting London as a 24-hour city.

37

LPP HC7 seeks to protect public houses where, amongst other things, they have
heritage, economic, social or cultural value to local communities. Development proposals
that would compromise the operation or viability of the public house should be resisted.
To overcome this, developers must put in place measures that would mitigate the
impacts of noise and other nuisance for new residents.

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 44

38

Planning controls the effect of noise from external sources on residential uses and noise
transmission between different uses. The relevant standard is BS: 8233:2014. This
states the internal noise levels within living rooms must not exceed 35dB(A) during the
daytime (0700-2300) and 30 dB(A) in bedrooms during the night–time (2300-0700). With
respect to external areas, BS 8233:2014 recommends that external noise level does not
exceed 50dB LAeq,T with an upper guideline of value of 55dB LAeq,T

39

DMP 20 aims to prevent the loss of public houses and imposes criteria for assessing
development proposals that would see the change of use of a public house.

40

DMP 26 attempts to reduce excessive noise or vibration that can be detrimental to
human health and well-being
Discussion

41

The building is located within an accessible location in close proximity to a Town Centre
and therefore the site is considered a sustainable location for intensification and
increasing housing density. The contribution of four residential units towards the small
sites and overall housing targets set by the London Plan is a planning merit of the
scheme, which carries weight within the overall planning balance.

42

The public house has been identified as an Asset of Community Value (ACV). The
London Plan identifies two main areas in which ACV designation is relevant to Public
Houses. At para 7.7.5 the London Plan details that ACV designation gives local
community groups the right to bid for public houses put up for sale. At paras 7.7.5 and
7.7.6 the London Plan highlights that ACV status is a material consideration for
applications proposing a change of use resulting in the loss of a public house and can
used to establish the cultural and social value of pubs.

43

As the public house would be retained as part of the proposed development the ACV
designation is not considered to have a significant impact on the assessment of this
application.

44

The conversion of the upper floors of an existing building would also comply with the
principles of the London Plan, making use of vacant floor space. However, the
introduction of private residents separate to the pub use creates the potential for conflict
between the right of residents to the quiet enjoyment of their homes and the operation of
the pub. Therefore, the ‘Agent for Change’ principle is considered relevant. The ‘Agent of
Change’ principle is defined within the NPPF and London Plan and is the maxim that the
party responsible for any change in the noise environment is responsible for managing
the impact of the change.

45

There is an increasing recognition that pubs are an important community resource,
which can enhance the vitality of an area, particularly in terms of the night-time
economy. Pubs can also be hubs for generating social interactions and can provide
important space for community groups to meet. LPPs HC5, HC6 and HC7 support this
interpretation.

46

BS:8233:2014 states that internal noise levels within living rooms must not exceed
35dB(A) during the daytime (0700-2300) and 30 dB(A) in bedrooms during the night–
time (2300-0700).

47

A Noise Impact Assessment (KP Acoustics, August 2021) has been submitted in
supported of the application and confirms that the noise impacts from the public house
could be mitigated, to comply with BS:8233:2014. The assessment has been modelled

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 45

using the criteria for acceptable night-time sound levels. The report provides a
recommendation for the installation of sound insulation between the ground floor and
first floor levels in order to control the internal transfer of noise and vibration between the
floors. The report has been reviewed by the Council’s Environmental Protection Officer
who has accepted the conclusions of the report.
48

The noise impact of the public house has been modelled on a standard lock-up pub
operation without significant noise generating activities such as live/amplified music.
Officers recognise that the public house was a live music orientated operation in the
past, as identified within the assessment of the ACV application and the local listing. This
ceased approximately 10 years ago and the most recent pub operation was foodorientated and has been characterised as a gastropub by the applicant. A review of
social media supports this characterisation, although it does appear that some form of
live music offer remained. Notwithstanding this, the public house is currently vacant so
there is no existing live-music orientated operation to protect.

49

Officers are satisfied that the assumptions made within the NIA are reasonable and are
largely consistent with the most recent pub operation, taking into account the location
which is not within a designated town centre. The report also recommends a
specification for the glazing to mitigate external noise from the public house operation
and wider noise environment, which have also been supported by the Environmental
Protection Officer. Therefore, it has been demonstrated that the public house could
operate beyond 11pm without harming the amenity of future residents.

50

The proposed development does not include any internal alterations to the public house
at ground floor or basement level so there would be no loss of floor space or loss of
facilities such as the kitchen or WCs. Therefore, Officers are satisfied that the
development would not compromise the viability of the public house.
Principle of development conclusions

51

In summary, the NIA demonstrates that the residential accommodation could coexist
with a fully operational public house, similar to the previous pub operation. Furthermore,
no onerous conditions on opening hours or the operations of the pub would be required.
As such the public house could continue to operate viably and make a full contribution to
the vitality of the surrounding area and its night-time economy as required by the London
Plan. This is subject to conditions securing full details of the noise attenuation prior to
the occupation of the residential accommodation as well as post installation testing. In
addition a condition is recommended preventing live music and other amplified sound.

52

The provision of four residential units is a planning merit of the scheme and is afforded
weight within the overall planning balance. This weight is limited by the modest scale of
development.

RESIDENTIAL QUALITY
General Policy
53

NPPF para 130 sets an expectation that new development will be designed to create
places that amongst other things have a ‘high standard’ of amenity for existing and
future users. This is reflected in relevant policies of the London Plan (LPP D6), the Core
Strategy (CS P15), the Local Plan (DMP 32) and associated guidance (Housing SPD
2017, GLA; Alterations and Extensions SPD 2019, LBL).

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 46

54

The main components of residential quality relevant to this application are: (i) space
standards; (ii) outlook and privacy; (iii) daylight and sunlight; (iv) noise and disturbance;
and (v) air quality.
Internal and external space standards
Policy

55

LP Policy D6 and Table 3.1 sets minimum standards for new housing developments.
This is supported by CS Policy 15 and DMLP Policy 32. Table 3 below sets out proposed
dwelling sizes in regards to the minimum internal space standard that needs to be
provided.

56

LPP D6 states that for 1-2 person dwellings, a minimum 5sqm is required, with an extra
1sqm for every additional occupant. Additional guidance is provided within the London
Plan Housing SPG at Standard 26.
Discussion

57

The table below sets out proposed dwelling sizes.
Table 1: Internal space standards – proposed v target
Flat No.

Unit size

Required GIA M2

GIA m2

External
amenity
space

1

2b4p

70

78

0

2

2b4p

70

70

0

3

2b4p

70

76

0

4

2b4p

70

72

0

58

All of the proposed flats would either meet or exceed the requirements of LP Policy D6 in
terms of total floorspace, bedroom size and built-in storage. The floor to ceiling height for
all of the dwellings would be a minimum of 2.7m throughout exceeding the 2.5m target
for at least 75 per cent of the dwelling required by LPP D6.

59

None of the proposed dwellings would benefit from private external amenity space. This
is because it would not be desirable or practical to attach balconies to the building due to
the visual harm to the non-designated heritage asset and the potential loss of privacy to
neighbouring buildings. The London Plan Housing SPG advises that failure to provide
external amenity space is only justified in exceptional circumstances. The constraints
imposed by converting the existing building qualify as a justified reason. In such
circumstances the Housing SPG advises that future residents are compensated
internally through oversized internal floor space. This has been achieved for Units 1 and
3, however, Units 2 and 4 are not adequately oversized.

60

In this case the failure to adequately compensate for the absence of external amenity
space for the two units is balanced by the general high quality of the proposed
accommodation, which includes dual aspect units, generous floor to ceiling heights and

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 47

efficient layouts with minimal circulation space. Therefore, as a matter of planning
judgement, the failure to provide policy complaint external amenity space throughout the
development is not considered to warrant the refusal of the application.
Outlook, Privacy and Ventilation
Policy
61

DMLP Policy 32 expects all new development to provide a satisfactory level of privacy,
outlook and ventilation for both its future residents.
Discussion

62

All of the proposed flats would be dual aspect as a minimum with the allocation of
windows providing good levels of outlook for all of the habitable rooms. The provision of
windows would also provide passive cross ventilation providing mitigation against
overheating.

63

In privacy terms, the 4m distance between the southern side elevation and the north
elevation of Waterside Court is below the 16m recommended for directly facing windows
in the Small Sites SPD. The development has been designed to address this as far as is
practical by proposing to obscure glaze and fix shut the secondary windows. This would
leave one bedroom window per floor clear glazed and openable (Bedroom 2 – Flats 2
and 4). This is not ideal in privacy terms but it would not be desirable to have these
window fixed shut or obscure glazed as it would limit light and outlook to the bedrooms.

64

The proposed solution is considered a reasonable compromise that balances levels of
outlook, light and privacy for the bedrooms and is therefore supported by Officers. In
coming to this conclusion Officers have given weight to the difficulties in converting
existing buildings and the dense urban environment where levels of outlook, light and
privacy are often more constrained.
Daylight and Sunlight
Policy

65

DM Policy 31 (1) (b) expects new development to provide a ‘satisfactory level’ of natural
lighting for its future residents.

66

Daylight and sunlight is generally measured against the Building Research
Establishment (BRE) standards. This is not formal planning guidance and should be
applied flexibly according to context. The BRE standards set out below are not a
mandatory planning threshold.

67

In new dwellings, the BRE minimum recommended average daylight factor (ADF) is 1 %
for bedrooms, 1.5% for living rooms and 2 % for kitchens. For sunlight the measure is
Annual Probable Sunlight Hours (APSH) with a target of achieving a minimum of 25% of
annual sunlight hours.
Discussion

68

A Daylight and Sunlight Report (Herrington, September 2021) has been submitted with
the application. The report provides an analysis of the internal levels of sunlight (APSH)
and daylight (ADF) for the proposed residential accommodation against the relevant
BRE standard. The report confirms that all of the habitable rooms would be compliant
with BRE guidelines for daylight and all of the principle living spaces would be BRE

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 48

compliant for sunlight. Therefore, the development is considered acceptable in regard to
daylight and sunlight.
Noise & Disturbance
Policy
69

Planning controls the effect of noise from external sources on residential uses and noise
transmission between different uses. The relevant standard is BS: 8233:2014. This
states the internal noise levels within living rooms must not exceed 35dB(A) during the
daytime (0700-2300) and 30 dB(A) in bedrooms during the night–time (2300-0700). With
respect to external areas, BS 8233:2014 recommends that external noise level does not
exceed 50dB LAeq,T with an upper guideline of value of 55dB LAeq,T

70

DMP 26 attempts to reduce excessive noise or vibration that can be detrimental to
human health and well-being
Discussion

71

An assessment of noise and disturbance from internal and external noise is provided at
paras 43 to 47 above. The assessment concludes that the impact would be acceptable
subject to conditions securing the recommendations of the Noise Impact Assessment in
terms of the specification of the window glazing and sound insulation between floors.
The EPO supports this position.
Air Quality
Policy

72

NPPF para 170 states that planning decisions should among other things prevent new
and existing development being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely
affected by, unacceptable levels of air pollution.
Discussion

73

The proposed development would introduce new residential accommodation and with it
additional sensitive receptors to an Air Quality Management Area. An Air Quality
Assessment (AQA) has been submitted in support of the application. The AQA found
that mechanical ventilation would be required to ensure that air quality for the proposed
residential accommodation would be within acceptable levels. The AQA has been
reviewed by an Environmental Protection Officer who accepted the recommendations of
the report. Therefore, a condition is recommended securing details of a mechanical
ventilation system prior to the occupation of the development.
Summary of Residential Quality

74

The quality of the residential accommodation is considered to be acceptable and
compliant with the relevant policies of the Development Plan.

URBAN DESIGN & HERITAGE IMPACT
General Policy

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 49

75

The NPPF at para 126 states the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process
should achieve.
Policy

76

The NPPF at para 126 states the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process
should achieve.

77

Within Chapter 16, the NPPF makes clear that heritage assets may be designated or
non-designated. DMP 37 sets out a framework for the protection of the borough's nondesignated heritage assets. LPP HC1 and CSP 16 are also relevant.

78

London Plan (Policy D3) and Core Strategy (Policy 15) design policies further reinforce
the principles of the NPPF setting out a clear rationale for high quality urban design,
whilst the Development Management Local Plan, most specifically DM Policy 30, seeks
to apply these principles.

79

LPP D3 states that development proposal should respond positively to the existing
character of a place by identifying the special characteristics and features of the locality.

80

CSP 18 relates to tall buildings and states that these need to be of the highest design
quality and appropriately located

81

DMP 30 requires a site specific response that creates a positive relationship to the
existing townscape, natural landscape, open spaces and topography to preserve and /
or create an urban form which contributes to local distinctiveness such as plot widths,
building features and uses, roofscape, open space and views, panoramas and vistas
including those identified in the London Plan, taking all available opportunities for
enhancement.

82

DMP 31 states that development proposals for alterations and extensions, including roof
extensions, will be required to be of a high, site specific, and sensitive design quality,
and respect and/or complement the form, setting, period, architectural characteristics,
detailing of the original buildings, including external features such as chimneys, and
porches. High quality matching or complementary materials should be used,
appropriately and sensitively in relation to the context. Specific guidance is contained
with the Alterations and Extensions SPD.

83

DM Policy 37 states that the Council will protect the local distinctiveness of the borough
by sustaining and enhancing the significance of non-designated heritage assets.
Discussion

84

The site is locally listed so is considered to be non-designated heritage asset. The
building therefore does not benefit from the protections afforded to statutorily listed
buildings. However, the Development Plan is clear that that non-designated heritage
assets should be sustained and protected. The proposed development would require
some modest alterations to the exterior of the building. The most significant of which
would be the installation of two timber sash windows in the side (south) elevation at first
floor level. The windows would reflect the alignment, material and design of the existing
second floor windows above and as such are not considered to introduce any visual
harm to the building. Furthermore, the external staircase serving the door would be
removed as part of the works, which would enhance the appearance of the building.

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 50

85

The development would also see the replacement of the existing windows with timber
windows to match the existing designs. The replacement of the windows is not
considered objectionable as it is necessary to facilitate the upgrade of the glazing
advised within the Noise Impact Assessment. A condition is recommended securing
detailed drawings of the windows to ensure that the windows would be a close match to
the design of the originals.

86

The proposed cycle and refuse stores would be installed within the side access thereby
limiting their prominence from public viewpoints and with it the visual impact to the
building. The use of timber is considered appropriate for secondary structures and is
therefore supported. Full details of the design will be secured by condition to ensure a
high standard of design quality.

Urban design conclusion
87

The proposed development is considered acceptable in urban design terms and would
ensure that the character and appearance of the non-designated heritage asset would
be sustained.

TRANSPORT IMPACT
General policy
88

Nationally, the NPPF requires the planning system to actively manage growth to support
the objectives of paragraph 106. This includes: (a) addressing impact on the transport
network; (b) realise opportunities from existing or proposed transport infrastructure; (c)
promoting walking, cycling and public transport use; (d) avoiding and mitigating adverse
environmental impacts of traffic; and (e) ensuring the design of transport considerations
contribute to high quality places. Significant development should be focused on locations
which are or can be made sustainable, through limiting the need to travel and a choice of
transport modes.

89

Para 111 states “Development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds
if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative
impacts on the road network would be severe”.

Local Transport Network
Policy
90

The NPPF at paragraph 106 states that significant impacts on the transport network (in
terms of capacity and congestion) should be mitigated to an acceptable degree.
Discussion

91

The application site has a PTAL of 4, which is a good level of public transport
accessibility. Officers are therefore satisfied that the relatively modest scale of
development could be accommodated by the existing transport infrastructure and
network without any significant mitigation

Servicing and refuse
Policy

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 51

92

LPP T7 states that development proposals should facilitate sustainable freight
movement by rail, waterways and road.

93

CSP13 sets out the Council’s waste management strategy for new development and
states that major developments should be designed to incorporate the existing and
future long-term needs of waste management and disposal.

94

Storage facilities for waste and recycling containers should meet at least BS5906:2005
Code of Practice for waste management in Buildings in accordance with London Plan
Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016) standard 23.
Discussion

95

The site would be provided with an internal refuse store at ground floor level to be
accessed from Mornington Road. The store would provide five 360L to be split between
refuse and recycling provision. This would exceed the requirement for the development
and is therefore acceptable. The refuse storage for the public house would be provided
in separate area as required by the London Plan. A condition is recommended securing
final details of the refuse facilities, including the appearance of the store, prior to the
occupation of the development.

96

No details have be provided for deliveries and servicing connected to the public house.
However, as the pub could be brought back into use without requiring further planning
permission these details are not required. Officers are satisfied that deliveries relating to
the residential accommodation could be undertaken from Weardale Road preventing
potential obstruction to Lee High Road.

Transport modes
Cycling
Policy
97

Development is required to provide cycle parking in accordance with the requirements of
Policy T5 and Table 10.2 of the London Plan.
Discussion

98

Eight long-stay spaces are required to comply with Table 10.2 of the London Plan. Cycle
storage meeting this requirement would be provided within the side access. TfL have
reviewed the cycle parking facilities and have assessed that the store is not large
enough to accommodate cycle parking that would comply with the London Cycle Design
Standards in terms of the spacing between the stands. However, TfL acknowledge that
there is sufficient space within the side access to provide a policy compliant store and
therefore final details of the cycle facilities, including the appearance, will be secured by
condition.
Car Parking
Policy

99

LP Policy T6, supported by CSP 14 and DMP 29, requires developments to take a
restrained approach to parking provision to ensure a balance is struck to prevent
excessive car parking provision that can undermine cycling, walking and public transport
use.

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 52

100

LP Policy T6.1 and Table 10.3 states that maximum residential parking for sites in PTAL
4 and above should be car free.
Discussion

101

No off-street parking would be provided by the development, which is supported given
the good PTAL. TfL consider that the PTAL justifies securing a car-free development in
order to accord with the principles of LPPs T6 and T6.1. Therefore, future residents of
the development would be prevented from obtaining permits for the local CPZ by legal
agreement.

Construction impact
Policy
102

LPP T7 states that development proposals should facilitate sustainable freight
movement by rail, waterways and road. Additionally, LPP T7 requires that construction
logistic plans should be development in accordance with TfL guidance.
Discussion

103

No details have been provided for transport logistics. Therefore, a Construction Logistics
Plan will be secured by condition to be submitted and approved prior to the
commencement of the development. The CMP should include details of how disruption
to London’s strategic road network and to pedestrians and cyclists will be avoided and/or
mitigated.

Transport impact conclusion
104

The proposed development is considered to have an acceptable impact on the
surrounding highway and transport network subject to the imposition of the conditions
recommended above and the relevant planning obligations.

LIVING CONDITIONS OF NEIGHBOURS
General Policy
105

NPPF para 130 sets an expectation that new development will be designed to create
places that amongst other things have a ‘high standard’ of amenity for existing and
future users. At para 180 it states decisions should ensure that new development is
appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative
effects) of pollution on health and living conditions.

106

This is reflected in relevant policies of the London Plan (LPP D3), the Core Strategy
(CP15), the Local Plan (DMP32) and associated guidance (London Plan Housing SPG
2017).

107

The main impacts on amenity that generally arise from this type of development include:
(i) overbearing enclosure/loss of outlook; (ii) loss of privacy; (iii) loss of daylight within
properties and loss of sunlight to amenity areas; and (iv) noise and disturbance.
Enclosure and Outlook
Policy

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 53

108

DMP 32(1)(b) expects new developments to provide a ‘satisfactory level’ of outlook for
its neighbours.
Discussion

109

No extensions are proposed as part of the works and the only additional built form would
be cycle and refuse stores that would be relatively modest in scale. Therefore, the
proposed development would not introduce any material impacts to outlook at the
neighbouring properties.

Privacy
Policy
110

DMP 32(1)(b) expects new developments to provide a ‘satisfactory level’ of privacy for its
neighbours. Additionally, the justification for DMP 32 at paragraph 2.250 advises that
there should be a minimum separation of 21m between directly facing habitable room
windows on the upper floors of main rear elevations. The new Small Sites SPD revises
this figure to 16m and is therefore considered more relevant.
Discussion

111

The new windows in the first floor of the southern side elevation would be located
approximately 4m from the side elevation of Waterside Court, which is significantly below
the 16m recommended in the Small Sites SPD. One of the new windows would be
obscure glazed and fixed shut thus preventing intrusive views. The second window
replaces an existing door that adjoins a raised platform and external staircase. The
removal of the door and staircase would be beneficial to privacy levels at the
neighbouring properties and therefore the views from the replacement window are not
considered materially harmful. Above that, at second floor level, two of the three
windows would be obscure glazed and fixed shut in keeping with the glazing of the
existing windows. As such, no additional overlooking would be introduced.

Daylight and Sunlight
Policy
112

DMP 32(1)(b) expects new developments to provide a ‘satisfactory level’ of sunlight and
daylight for its neighbours.

113

Daylight and sunlight is generally measured against the Building Research
Establishment (BRE) standards however this is not formal planning guidance and should
be applied flexibly according to context.
Discussion

114

No extensions or significant additional built form are proposed as part of the works.
Therefore, the development would have a negligible impact on existing light levels and
detailed analysis is not required.

Noise and disturbance
Policy

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 54

115

The NPPF at para 174 states decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural
and local environment by preventing new and existing development from contributing to,
being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels
of soil, air , water or noise pollution or land instability. At para 180(a) of the NPPF states
that planning decisions should mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse
impacts resulting from noise from new development – and avoid noise giving rise to
significant adverse impacts on health and the quality of life

116

LPP D14 states that residential development should avoid significant adverse impacts to
quality of life.

117

DMP 26 states that the Council will require a Noise and Vibration Assessment for noise
and/or vibration generating development or equipment and new noise sensitive
development, where appropriate, to identify issues and attenuation measures, prepared
by a qualified acoustician
Discussion

118

No long-term impacts are likely to arise from the provision of a residential development
within a residential area. However, there is potential for short-term impacts during the
construction phase of development. Therefore, a condition is recommended limiting the
time of works and deliveries relating to the construction phase of development.

119

The proposed development does not include any significant alterations to the public
house or its operations. As such, noise generated by the public house is not considered
relevant to the assessment of the impacts to the amenity of the neighbouring properties.

Security
Policy
120

Paragraph 92 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should aim to achieve healthy,
inclusive and safe places which are safe and accessible, so that crime and disorder, and
the fear of crime, do not undermine quality of life.
Discussion

121

The proposed development would introduce activity to the vacant floor space on the
upper floors of the building thereby increasing passive surveillance at the property and
towards the neighbouring properties. Therefore, the proposed development is
considered to be beneficial to the security of the neighbouring properties.

Impact on neighbours conclusion
122

No adverse impacts have been identified to the surrounding residential properties and
therefore the proposed development is considered acceptable and compliant with the
relevant policies of the development plan.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
General Policy
123

Para. 152 of the NPPF requires Local Planning Authorities to take a proactive approach
to mitigating and adapting to climate change, taking into account the long-term
implications for flood risk, coastal change, water supply, biodiversity and landscapes,

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 55

and the risk of overheating from rising temperatures. Policies and decisions should
support appropriate measures to ensure the future resilience of communities and
infrastructure to climate change impacts.
124

CS Objective 5 reflect the principles of the NPPF and sets out Lewisham’s approach to
climate change and adapting to its effects. CSP 7, CSP 8 and DMP 22 support this.

Energy and carbon emissions reduction
Policy
125

LPP SI2 stated that major development should achieve zero carbon and should
minimise peak energy demand in accordance with the following energy hierarchy: Be
lean: use less energy; Be clean: supply energy efficiently; and Be green: use renewable
energy.

126

CSP 8 also states that developments of greater than 1,000sqm should fully contribute to
CO2 emission reductions in line with the regional and national requirements, and make a
financial contribution to an offset fund if this cannot be adequately achieved on site.
Discussion

127

The proposed development falls below the threshold for a major development so the
requirements of LPP SI2 and CSP 8 are not applicable to this application. However, the
conversion of an existing building is consistent with paragraph 152 of the NPPF, which
encourages the reuse of existing resources as part of the transition towards a low carbon
future.

Flood risk
Policy
128

NPPF para 159 expects inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding to be
avoided by directing development away from areas at highest risk. Para 163 states
development should only be allowed in areas at risk of flooding where mitigation
measure can be included.

129

LPP SI 12 expects development proposals to ensure that flood risk is minimised and
mitigated.

130

CSP 10 requires developments to result in a positive reduction in flooding to the
Borough.
Discussion

131

A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been submitted in support of the application. The
FRA has been reviewed by the EA who have accepted the conclusions of the FRA and
have recommended that a condition be imposed ensuring that the development would
be carried out in full accordance with the FRA and that the residential accommodation
shall be set at the first floor level and above, and not lower than 11.95 metres above
Ordnance Datum (mAOD). Therefore, the proposed development is considered
acceptable terms of flood risk vulnerability.

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 56

Sustainable Infrastructure conclusion
132

The proposal is acceptable in terms of Sustainable development, subject to the
conditions detailed above.

NATURAL ENVIRONMENT
133

General Policy

134

Contributing to conserving and enhancing the natural environment and reducing
pollution is a core principle for planning.

135

The NPPF and NPPG promote the conservation and enhancement of the natural
environment (chapter 15) and set out several principles to support those objectives.

136

The NPPF at para 185 states decisions should ensure that new development is
appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative
effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural environment, as well as
the sensitivity of the site or wider area to impacts that could arise from the development.
Air pollution
Policy

137

NPPF para 174 states decisions should among other things prevent new and existing
development from contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk from, or being
adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of air pollution. Development should,
wherever possible, help to improve local environmental conditions such as air quality.
Proposals should be designed and built to improve local air quality and reduce the extent
to which the public are exposed to poor air quality. Poor air quality affects people’s living
conditions in terms of health and well-being. People such as children or older people are
particularly vulnerable.

138

LPP SI1, CSPs 7 and 9 and DMP 23 reflect the national guidance and are relevant.
Further guidance is given in the Mayor of London’s Air Quality Strategy.
Discussion

139

An Air Quality Assessment (AQA) has been submitted in support of the application and
demonstrates that the development would be air quality neutral for the construction and
operational phase of development. As such, the propose development is considered
acceptable in air quality terms. The Council’s Environmental Protection Officer has
recommended that a condition be imposed to ensure that in the event that gas boilers
are installed, the units would be Ultra-Low NOx Gas fired boilers.
Natural Environment conclusion

140

Officers are satisfied that there would not be any significant adverse impacts to the
natural environment.

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS
141

Under Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), a local
finance consideration means:

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 57



a grant or other financial assistance that has been, or will or could be, provided to
a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown; or



sums that a relevant authority has received, or will or could receive, in payment of
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

142

The weight to be attached to a local finance consideration remains a matter for the
decision maker.

143

The CIL is therefore a material consideration.

144

£0 Lewisham CIL and £0 MCIL is estimated to be payable on this application, subject to
any valid applications for relief or exemption, and the applicant has completed the
relevant form. This would be confirmed at a later date in a Liability Notice.

EQUALITIES CONSIDERATIONS
145

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the equality
duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, disability,
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

146

In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its function, have due regard to the
need to:



eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act;



advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not;



foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

147

The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is a
matter for the decision maker, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and
proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination,
advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations.

148

The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical Guidance on
the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010
Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council must
have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is drawn
to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance
also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have
statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical
guidance can be found at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publicationdownload/technical-guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england

149

The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five guides
for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 58







The essential guide to the public sector equality duty
Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making
Engagement and the equality duty
Equality objectives and the equality duty
Equality information and the equality duty

150

The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including the
general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what public
authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are legally required, as well as
recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on
key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources are available
at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equalityduty-guidance

151

The planning issues set out above do not include any factors that relate specifically to
any of the equalities categories set out in the Act, and therefore it has been concluded
that there is no impact on equality.

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS
152

In determining this application the Council is required to have regard to the provisions of
the Human Rights Act 1998. Section 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 prohibits
authorities (including the Council as local planning authority) from acting in a way which
is incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. ‘’Convention’’ here
means the European Convention on Human Rights, certain parts of which were
incorporated into English law under the Human Rights Act 1998. Various Convention
rights are likely to be relevant including:




Article 8: Respect for your private and family life, home and correspondence
Protocol 1, Article 1: Right to peaceful enjoyment of your property

153

This report has outlined the consultation that has been undertaken on the planning
application and the opportunities for people to make representations to the Council as
Local Planning Authority.

154

Members need to satisfy themselves that the potential adverse amenity impacts are
acceptable and that any potential interference with the above Convention Rights will be
legitimate and justified. Both public and private interests are to be taken into account in
the exercise of the Local Planning Authority’s powers and duties. Any interference with a
Convention right must be necessary and proportionate. Members must therefore,
carefully consider the balance to be struck between individual rights and the wider public
interest.

155

This application has the legitimate aim of providing new residential accommodation. The
rights potentially engaged by this application, including Article 8 and Protocol 1, Article 1
are not considered to be unlawfully interfered with by this proposal.

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 59

LEGAL AGREEMENTS
156

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that in dealing with planning
applications, local planning authorities should consider whether otherwise unacceptable
development could be made acceptable through the use of conditions or planning
obligations. Planning obligations should only be used where it is not possible to address
unacceptable impacts through a planning condition. It further states that where
obligations are being sought or revised, local planning authorities should take account of
changes in market conditions over time and, wherever appropriate, be sufficiently flexible
to prevent planned development being stalled. The NPPF also sets out that planning
obligations should only be secured when they meet the following three tests:
(a)

Necessary to make the development acceptable

(b)

Directly related to the development; and

(c)

Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development

157

Paragraph 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (April 2010) puts the
above three tests on a statutory basis, making it illegal to secure a planning obligation
unless it meets the three tests.

158

In addition to planning obligations that are entered into pursuant to the provisions of
S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 the Council can pursuant to Section
16 of the Greater London Council (General Powers) Act 1974 enter into an agreement
with the owner of land in connection with that land. In relation to the proposed
obligations in the present application the Council will rely upon both powers to secure
the necessary requirements.

159

The following are the draft Heads of Terms to which the applicant has agreed in writing:
Car Free Development


160

Prevent future occupiers from access to residents parking permits for the local
CPZ (save for a disabled person’s “blue badge” issued pursuant to section 21 of
the Chronically Sick and Disabled Persons Act 1970).

Officers consider that the obligations outlined above are appropriate and necessary in
order to mitigate the impacts of the development and make the development acceptable
in planning terms. Officers are satisfied the proposed obligations meet the three legal
tests as set out in the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (April 2010).

CONCLUSION
161

This application has been considered in the light of policies set out in the development
plan and other material considerations.

162

The principle of the proposed development is supported given that onerous conditions
would not be required to restrict the operations of the public house. Therefore, the public
house would remain viable and could continue to contribute to the vitality of the
surrounding area and its night-time economy. The provision of four residential units
would contribute to local housing targets and as such carries weight within the overall

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 60

planning balance. The standard of the accommodation provided by the residential units
is considered to be of good quality and is generally compliant with the London Plan.
163

The application proposal would not result in any unacceptable impacts to the character
and appearance of the locally listed building, the living conditions of neighbours,
sustainable development or the natural environment. The proposed conditions and
planning obligations are considered to ensure that any potentially adverse impacts to the
local transport network would be mitigated.

164

Therefore, subject to the imposition of conditions and planning obligations, the
development is judged acceptable and would accord with the Development Plan.

RECOMMENDATION
165

That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to a S106 Legal
Agreement and to the following conditions and informatives:

CONDITIONS

1.

Full Planning Permission Time Limit

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date on which the permission is granted.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.

Approved Plans
The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the application plans,
drawings and documents hereby approved and as detailed below:
0128 - KLA - 00 - GF - DR - 18 001 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - GF - DR - 18 002 Rev
P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - B1 - DR - 19 001 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - GF - DR - 19 002
Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - 01 - DR - 19 003 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - 02 - DR - 19
004 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - RF - DR - 19 005 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR
- 29 001 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 29 002 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX
- DR - 29 003 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 29 004 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00
- XX - DR - 33 001 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 33 002 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA
- 00 - B1 - DR - 10 001 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - GF - DR - 10 002 Rev P01; 0128 KLA - 00 - 01 - DR - 10 003 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - RF - DR - 10 005 Rev P01;
0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 21 001 Rev P01; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 21 004 P01;
0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 30 001 Rev P01 received 27 September 2021;

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 61

0128 - KLA - 00 - 02 - DR - 10 004 Rev P02; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 21 002 Rev
P02; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 21 003 Rev P02; 0128 - KLA - 00 - XX - DR - 30 002
Rev P02 received 13 January 2021;

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved documents, plans and drawings submitted with the application and is
acceptable to the local planning authority.

3.

Construction Logistics Plan

No development shall commence on site until a Construction Logistics Management
Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
plan shall demonstrate the following:-

(a)

Rationalise travel and traffic routes to and from the site.

(b)
Provide full details of the number and time of construction vehicle trips to the
site with the intention and aim of reducing the impact of construction vehicle activity.

(c)

Measures to deal with safe pedestrian movement.

The measures specified in the approved details shall be implemented prior to
commencement of development and shall be adhered to during the period of
construction.

Reason: In order to ensure satisfactory vehicle management and to comply with Policy
14 Sustainable movement and transport of the Core Strategy (June 2011), and Policy
T7 Deliveries, servicing and construction of the London Plan (March 2021).

4.

External Sound Insulation

(a)
The residential accommodation shall not be occupied until a scheme of sound
insulation against external noise and vibration has been submitted to and approved in
writing by local planning authority. The sound insulation shall achieve levels not
exceeding 30dB LAeq (night) and 45dB LAmax (measured with F time weighting) for
bedrooms, 35dB LAeq (day) for other habitable rooms, with window shut and other
means of ventilation provided..

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 62

(b)
The residential accommodation shall not be occupied until the sound insulation
scheme approved pursuant to paragraph (b) has been implemented in its entirety.
Thereafter, the sound insulation scheme shall be maintained in perpetuity in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of the proposed dwellings and
to comply with DM Policy 26 Noise and vibration and DM Policy 32 Housing design,
layout and space standards of the Development Management Local Plan (November
2014).

5.

Internal Soundproofing

(a)
The residential accommodation shall not be occupied until details have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority demonstrating that
soundproofing of a specification for sound insulation against airborne noise and
structural vibration to meet 30dB LAeq (night) and 45dB LAmax (measured with F time
weighting) for bedrooms and 35dB LAeq (day) for other habitable rooms, would be
installed where walls and/or ceilings for the residential accommodation parties non
domestic use.

(b)
The residential accommodation shall not be occupied until the sound insulation
scheme approved pursuant to paragraph (b) has been implemented in its entirety,
including details of the noise limiter to comply with Section 6.2 of the Noise Impact
Assessment (KP Acoustics, August 2021), and a report detailing the results of postcompletion sound testing to demonstrate compliance with the part (a) scheme have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The report
and installation of the noise limiter shall be undertaken by qualified independent
acoustician. Thereafter, the sound insulation scheme shall be maintained in perpetuity
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of the proposed dwellings and
to comply with DM Policy 26 Noise and vibration and DM Policy 32 Housing design,
layout and space standards of the Development Management Local Plan (November
2014).

6.

Windows

(a) The residential accommodation shall not be occupied until detailed drawings,
including sections at scale 1:5, of the windows have been be submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority.

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 63

(b) The works shall then be carried in full accordance with the approved details prior to
the first occupation of the residential accommodation, and retained thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the high design quality demonstrated in the plans and
submission is delivered so that local planning authority may be satisfied as to the
external appearance of the buildings and to comply with Policy 15 High quality design
for Lewisham of the Core Strategy (June 2011) and Development Management Local
Plan (November 2014) DM Policy 30 Urban design and local character.

7.

Refuse and Recycling Facilities

(a)
Prior to the occupation of the residential accommodation, details of the refuse
and recycling facilities shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority.

(b)
The facilities as approved under part (a) shall be provided in full prior to
occupation of the residential accommodation and shall thereafter be permanently
retained and maintained.

Reason: In order that the local planning authority may be satisfied with the provisions
for recycling facilities and refuse storage in the interest of safeguarding the amenities
of neighbouring occupiers and the appearance of the area in general, in compliance
with Development Management Local Plan (November 2014) DM Policy 30 Urban
design and local character and Core Strategy Policy 13 Addressing Lewisham waste
management requirements (2011).

8.

Cycle Parking Facilities

(a)
Prior to first occupation of the residential accommodation, full details of the cycle
parking facilities providing a minimum of 8 long stay spaces for the development shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

(b)
All cycle parking spaces shall be provided and made available for use prior to
occupation of the residential accommodation and maintained thereafter.

Reason: In order to ensure adequate provision for cycle parking and to comply with
Policy T5 cycling and Table 10.2 of the London Plan (March 2021) and Policy 14:
Sustainable movement and transport of the Core Strategy (2011).

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 64

Mechanical Ventilation Heat Recovery System (MVHR)

9.

(a) Prior to the occupation of the residential accommodation, a Mechanical Ventilation
Heat Recovery (MVHR) system report, to comply with the recomendations of the
Air Quality Assessment (Hoare Lea, July 2021) and Noise Impact Assessment
(KP Acoustics, August 2021), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Council. The report shall include the following information:



Details and locations of the air intake locations of the mechanical
ventilation system, or



Details of filtration system to remove airborne pollutants. The
filtration system shall have a minimum efficiency of 75% in the
removal of Nitrogen Oxides/Dioxides, and Particulate Matter
(PM2.5, PM10) in accordance with BS EN ISO 10121-1:2014 and
BS EN ISO 16890.

Ventilation intakes shall be positioned a suitable distance away from chimney/boiler
flues, ventilation extracts, and roads. The maintenance and cleaning of the systems
shall be undertaken regularly in accordance with manufacturer specifications, and shall
be the responsibility of the primary owner of the property.

(b) The facilities as approved under part (a) shall be provided in full prior to
occupation of the residential accommodation and shall thereafter be permanently
retained and maintained.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of the proposed dwellings and to
comply with Policy SI1 Improving Air Quality of the London Plan (March 2021) and DM
Policy 32 Housing design, layout and space standards of the Development
Management Local Plan (November 2014).

10.

Obscured Glazed Windows

Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
Order 2015 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order), the proposed
obscure glazed windows in the southern elevation as identified on drawing 0128 - KLA
- 00 - XX - DR - 21 002 Rev P02 shall be fitted as obscure glazed to a minimum of Level
3 on the ‘Pilkington Scale’ and fixed shut and retained in perpetuity.

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 65

Reason: To avoid the direct overlooking of adjoining properties and consequent loss
of privacy thereto and to comply with DM Policy 31 Alterations and extensions to
existing buildings including residential extensions and DM Policy 32 Housing design,
layout and space standards of the Development Management Local Plan (November
2014).

11.

No works or deliveries in connection with construction works shall be undertaken other
than between the hours of 8 am and 6 pm on Mondays to Fridays and 8 am and 1 pm
on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Public Holidays.

Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining occupants at unsociable
periods and to comply with Paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework
and DM Policy 26 Noise and Vibration and DM Policy 32 Housing design, layout and
space standards of the Development Management Local Plan (November 2014).

12.

Mains water consumption shall be compliant with the Optional Requirement set out in
Part G of the Building Regulations of 105 litres or less per head per day.

Reason: In order to minimise the use of mains water and to comply with Policy SI5
Water infrastructure of the London Plan (March 2021)

13.

In the event gas boilers are proposed, details of the Ultra-Low NOx Gas fired boilers
proposed to be installed shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority prior to installation. The Ultra-Low NOx Gas fired boilers to be
provided for space heating and hot water shall have dry NOx emissions not exceeding
40 mg/kWh (at 0% O2). Where any installations do not meet this emissions standard,
they should not be operated without the fitting of suitable NOx abatement equipment or
technology as determined by a specialist to ensure comparable emissions. Following
installation, emissions certificates will need to be provided to the council to verify boiler
emissions. The approved details shall be fully implemented prior to the occupation/use
of the development and thereafter permanently retained and maintained.

Reason: To manage and prevent further deterioration of existing low quality air across
London in accordance with Policy SI1 Improving Air Quality of the London Plan (March
2021).

14.

Flood Risk

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 66

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment (Motion, June 2021) and the following mitigation measure:


residential accommodation shall be set at the first floor level and
above, and no lower than 11.95 metres above Ordnance Datum
(mAOD).

This mitigation measure shall be fully implemented prior to the occupation of the
residential accommodation and shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout
the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the development and future occupants and
to comply with Policy 10 Managing and reducing the risk of flooding of the Core Strategy
(June 2011).
15.

Live Music
No live amplified music, live acoustic music (defined as acoustic instruments and
singing), public address system or any other amplified sound shall take place at the
site, and average noise levels (LAeq) from the proposed development should be at
least 5dB below background levels (LA90) at the location of nearby sensitive
receptors.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the adjoining premises and the area generally
and to comply with Paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy
D13 Agent of change of the London Plan (March 2021) and DM Policies 26 Noise and
Vibration and 32 Housing design, layout and space standards of the Development
Management Local Plan (November 2014).

INFORMATIVES
1)

Positive and Proactive Statement: The Council engages with all applicants in a
positive and proactive way through specific pre-application enquiries and the
detailed advice available on the Council’s website. On this particular application,
positive discussions took place which resulted in further information being
submitted.

2)

As you are aware the approved development is liable to pay the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) which will be payable on commencement of the
development. An 'assumption of liability form' must be completed and before
development commences you must submit a 'CIL Commencement Notice form'
to the council. You should note that any claims for relief, where they apply, must
be submitted and determined prior to commencement of the development. Failure
to follow the CIL payment process may result in penalties. More information on
CIL is available at: - http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/myservices/planning/applyfor-planning-permission/application-process/Pages/CommunityInfrastructure-Levy.aspx

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 67

3)

The applicant be advised that the implementation of the proposal will require
approval by the Council of a Street naming & Numbering application. Application
forms are available on the Council's web site.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
(1) Submission Drawings
(2) Submission technical reports and supporting documents
(3) Internal consultee responses
(4) External consultee responses

REPORT AUTHOR AND CONTACT
Report Author: Alfie Williams (Senior Planning Officer)
Email: alfie.williams@lewisham.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 8314 9336

Is this report easy to understand?

Please
Please give
give us
us feedback
feedback so
so we
we can
can improve.
improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 68

Dirty South

162 Lee High Road
Page 69

London
SE13 5PR

Application No. DC/21/123592
This presentation forms no part of a planning application
and is for information only.
END

1 of 13

Page 70

The alteration and conversion of the first and
second floors of Dirty South, 162 Lee High Road
SE12 into 4 self-contained flats, together with the
replacement of the existing windows and
installation new windows in the south facing
elevation and the provision of bin and cycle
storage.

2 of 13

Page 71

Site Location Plan

3 of 13

Page 72

Front Elevation Photograph

4 of 13

Page 73

Aerial View

5 of 13

Updated Noise Report – Key findings

Page 74

Activity

Permitted

Background Music

Yes

high level patron conversation

Yes

PA System

Yes

Televised Sport

Yes

Live Amplified music

No

Limited Live Acoustic Music
(prior to 11pm)
Live Acoustic Music
(after 11pm)

Yes
No

6 of 13

Page 75

Photographs showing external staircase fixed to the South Elevation

7 of 13

Page 76

Habitable rooms

Side elevation of Waterside Court (south-west)

8 of 13

Habitable rooms

Page 77

Side elevation of Waterside Court (facing south-east)

9 of 13

Page 78

Habitable room

Corridor

Side elevation of Waterside Court (facing opposite)

10 of 13

As Existing

As Proposed

Page 79

Existing and proposed side elevation (south)

11 of 13

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
 Principle of Development
 Residential Quality
 Urban Design
Page 80

 Transport Impact
 Living Conditions of Neighbouring Properties

 Sustainable Development
 Natural Environment
12 of 13

Page 81

End of Presentation

13 of 13

Page 82

Proposed Front Elevation

14 of 13

Page 83

Proposed Ground Floor

15 of 13

Page 84

Proposed First Floor Plan

16 of 13

Page 85

Proposed Second Floor Plan

17 of 13

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 87

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Planning Committee B

52 Loampit Hill, London, SE13 7SW
Date: 12 April 2022
Key decision: No.
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: Ladywell
Contributors: Alfie Williams

Outline and recommendations
This report sets out the Officer’s recommendation of approval for the above proposal. The
report has been brought before Committee for a decision due to the submission of three
objections from local residents.

Page 103

Application details
Application reference number(s): DC/21/120340
Application Date:

8 February 2021

Applicant:

Mr Alistair Higgins

Proposal:

The demolition of the existing rear conservatory and construction of
a two storey extension to the rear of 52 Loampit Hill, SE13,
together with alterations to the roof of the existing rear outrigger
and side addition in connection with the formation of a rear and
side roof terrace at second floor level.

Background Papers:

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

Designation:

Air Quality Management Area
Local Open Space Deficiency
PTAL 6a

Submission Drawings
Submission technical reports and supporting documents
Internal consultee responses
External consultee responses

SITE AND CONTEXT
Site description and current use
1

The application site is a three-storey Victorian property located on the northern side of
Loampit Hill. The property is constructed from London stock bricks with a slate roof and
timber sash windows. The front elevation is decorated with ornate stucco detailing to the
facade and window surrounds. To the side the property is a two storey side addition with
identical decoration. The front elevation also features a two storey bay. To the front of
the property is a large front garden, part of which has been converted to form a drive
with vehicle access facilitated by a dropped kerb.

2

At the rear, the property has a two storey outrigger aligned to the eastern side adjoining
an identical structure at No.50. The rear garden is relatively shallow at 9m in length from
the rear of the outrigger.
Figure 1. Site Location Plan

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 104

Character of area
3

The property forms part of a terrace of identical residential properties. This section of
Loampit Hill is largely residential as are the surrounding side roads. The opposite side of
the road features terraces of two storey Victorian residential properties in addition to the
rear boundaries of back gardens. St Johns Medical Centre is located to the east of the
property.

4

Further to the west Loampit Hill has a more commercial character with parades of shops
either side of the road as Loampit Hill becomes Loampit Vale at the boundary of
Lewisham Town Centre. From this point the scale of development increases
substantially.
Heritage

5

The site is not located within a Conservation Area and neither is the property listed.
Somerset Gardens Conservation Area is located approximately 60m to the north-west of
the site and contains the nearest listed buildings.
Transport

6

The site has a PTAL of 6a, which is an excellent level of public transport accessibility.
Loampit Hill (A20) is a red route and forms part of the TfL Road Network.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 105

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
7

Conditional temporary permission was granted in November 1996 for the use of the
ground and first floors for educational purposes together with the conversion of the
second floor to provide a one bedroom self contained flat, together with the erection of a
conservatory at the rear. The permission attached a condition that required the cessation
of the use on or before 31 December 1998.

8

DC/03/53577: The change of use of the second floor of 52 Loampit Hill SE13 for
educational purposes in connection with the continued use of parts of the ground and
first floors for educational purposes and the remainder of the property as a one bedroom
residential unit – granted subject to the condition that the permission would be personal
to the applicant.

9

DC/20/116511: The demolition of the existing rear conservatory and construction of a
two storey extension to the rear of 52 Loampit Hill, SE13, together with alterations to the
roof of the rear outrigger, the formation of a rear and side roof terrace at second floor
level and alterations to the front elevation – withdrawn.

CURRENT PLANNING APPLICATION
THE PROPOSALS
10

The proposed development would see the demolition of the existing conservatory and
construction of a two storey extension infilling the side return adjacent to the outrigger.
The extension would measure 6.1m deep x 6m high (including balustrade) with a width
of between 4.5m and 2.6m. The extension would be constructed from London stock
bricks to match the existing with large areas of crittal style glazing at ground and first
floor level. The form of the original outrigger would be retained.

11

The extension would have a flat roof that would adjoin the outrigger and the roof of the
side addition. The pitched roof of the outrigger would be removed to form a continuous
flat roof adjoining the extension. These works would facilitate the provision of a 2nd floor
terrace with an area of 35sqm. Screening would be installed on the party wall with No.50
Loampit Hill and a store constructed to form the side boundary of the terrace set in 0.5m
from the party wall. A glazed balustrade would be installed at the perimeter of the
terrace. A planter would be installed set back 1.7m from the rear elevation to form the
rear boundary of the terrace.

CONSULTATION
APPLICATION PUBLICITY
12

Site notices were displayed on 16 February 2021. Letters were also sent to residents
and business in the surrounding area as well as to the relevant ward Councillors on 15
February 2021.

13

Three responses were received, comprising three objections.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 106

Comments in objection
Comment

14

Para where addressed

Loss of privacy

43-50

Increased noise & disturbance

51-63

Matters raised in relation to the structural impact and impact to the party wall are not
material planning considerations as they are suitably addressed by Building Regulations
and party wall legislation. It is established planning practice to avoid duplicating the
control given by other legislation.

POLICY CONTEXT
LEGISLATION
15

Planning applications are required to be determined in accordance with the statutory
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise (S38(6) Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and S70 Town & Country Planning Act 1990).

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
16

A material consideration is anything that, if taken into account, creates the real possibility
that a decision-maker would reach a different conclusion to that which they would reach
if they did not take it into account.

17

Whether or not a consideration is a relevant material consideration is a question of law
for the courts. Decision-makers are under a duty to have regard to all applicable policy
as a material consideration.

18

The weight given to a relevant material consideration is a matter of planning judgement.
Matters of planning judgement are within the exclusive province of the LPA. This report
sets out the weight Officers have given relevant material considerations in making their
recommendation to Members. Members, as the decision-makers, are free to use their
planning judgement to attribute their own weight, subject to aforementioned directions
and the test of reasonableness.

NATIONAL POLICY & GUIDANCE




National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Guidance 2014 onwards (NPPG)
National Design Guidance 2019 (NDG)

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
19

The Development Plan comprises:




London Plan (March 2021) (LPP)
Core Strategy (June 2011) (CSP)

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 107





Development Management Local Plan (November 2014) (DMP)
Site Allocations Local Plan (June 2013) (SALP)
Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan (February 2014) (LTCP)

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE
20

Lewisham SPD:


21

Alterations and Extensions Supplementary Planning Document (April 2019)

London Plan SPG:



Character and Context (June 2014)

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
22

The main issues are:





Principle of Development
Urban Design
Impact on Adjoining Properties

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT
General policy
23

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at paragraph 11, states that there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development and that proposals should be
approved without delay so long as they accord with the development plan.

24

The London Plan (LP) sets out a sequential spatial approach to making the best use of
land set out in LPP GG2 (Parts A to C) that should be followed.
Discussion

25

The application property is in residential use and it is considered that its alteration and
expansion for the purposes of continued residential occupation is acceptable in principle,
subject to matters of urban design and impact on neighbouring amenity. These matters
are considered in detail in the following sections of the report.
Principle of development conclusions

26

The Development Plan is generally supportive of people extending or altering their
homes thus the principle of development is supported, subject to details.

URBAN DESIGN
General Policy

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 108

27

The NPPF at para 126 states the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process
should achieve.

28

London Plan (Policy D3) and Core Strategy (Policy 15) design policies further reinforce
the principles of the NPPF setting out a clear rationale for high quality urban design,
whilst the Development Management Local Plan, most specifically DM Policy 30, seeks
to apply these principles.
Policy

29

LPP D3 states that development proposal should respond positively to the existing
character of a place by identifying the special characteristics and features of the locality.

30

DMP 30 requires planning applications to demonstrate a site specific response which
creates a positive relationship with the existing townscape whereby the height, scale and
mass of the proposed development relates to the urban typology of the area.

31

DMP 31 requires development proposals for alterations and extensions to be of a high,
site specific, and sensitive design quality, and respect and/or complement the form,
setting, period, architectural characteristics, detailing of the original buildings, including
external features such as chimneys, and porches. High quality matching or
complementary materials should be used, appropriately and sensitively in relation to the
context.

32

The Alterations and Extensions SPD highlights that the extra height and bulk of a two or
extension compared to a single storey structure increases the visual prominence
necessitating a high quality of design response.
Discussion

33

The proposed extension would feature a combination of matching brickwork and high
quality contemporary design features that would complement the existing architecture.
The height and massing of the extension would be proportionate, taking into account the
width of the extension and three storey height of the host property. The retention of the
outrigger form would ensure that the extension would be subservient to the original
architecture. The use of glazing would result in a visually lightweight appearance and
would assist in distinguishing the new built form from the original.

34

The rear elevation of the property is visible from public viewpoints from Grover Court and
the adjacent path. The extension would be most prominent from the path adjacent to the
site that connects Grover Court with Loampit Hill. This pathway is not used intensively as
it is gated and only accessible for residents of Grover Court. The extension would be
visible from Grover Court but would not be prominent given the distance and screening
provided by the trees that line the path. As such, the extension would not have a
significant visual impact of the appearance of the surrounding area.

35

The roof terrace would introduce additional bulk at third floor level in the form of the
balustrades and planter. On balance, this additional bulk is assessed to be acceptable
given that the glazed design of balustrades would mirror the high proportion of glazing in
the extension and would be visually lightweight. Officers have also given weight to the
limited impact to the streetscene of Grover Court. Moreover, the physical additions
required for the roof terrace would be the minimum necessary for health and safety
purposes and the screening of sensitive views.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 109

36

A condition would be imposed securing final details of all of the external features prior to
above ground works, excluding the demolition of the conservatory.

Urban design conclusion
37

In summary, the proposed development would result in a sensitive addition to the
property by virtue of the high quality design and proportionate scale of the extension.

LIVING CONDITIONS OF NEIGHBOURS
General Policy
38

NPPF para 130 sets an expectation that new development will be designed to create
places that amongst other things have a ‘high standard’ of amenity for existing and
future users.

39

Core Strategy Policy 15 states that new development should be designed in a way that
is sensitive to the local context. More specific to this, DMP 31 seeks to ensure that new
residential development should not result in any significant loss of privacy and amenity to
adjoining houses and their back gardens.

Enclosure, Outlook Daylight and Sunlight Levels
Policy
40

DMP 32(1)(b) expects new developments to provide a ‘satisfactory level’ of outlook,
sunlight and daylight for its neighbours.

41

The guidance within the Alterations and Extensions SPD (2019) states that extensions
should not have an overbearing or enclosing effect on adjacent properties by way of
their height, position or depth.
Discussion

42

The proposed extension would be confined to the side return adjacent to the outrigger so
would not introduce any material impacts to light or outlook levels at No.50 Loampit Hill.
The 9m separation distance from the rear boundary would prevent any harmful impacts
to No.1 Sunninghill Road in terms of enclosure, outlook or light levels, taking into
account the scale of the proposed extension.

Privacy
Policy
43

DMP 31 states that roof terraces and balconies and non-residential extensions adjacent
to dwellings should result in no significant loss of privacy to adjoining houses and their
back gardens.

44

Sections 4.7 and 5.16 of the Alterations and Extensions SPD advise that the Council will
not support external platforms where they are likely to give rise to a loss of privacy.
Discussion

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 110

45

The relationship between the proposed roof terrace and the properties to rear on
Sunninghill Road and towards the east to the adjoining terrace would mean that there is
potential to introduce direct overlooking. However, the roof terrace has been designed to
mitigate these impacts.

46

Taking views towards the adjoining terrace of properties first, the principle concern would
be direct views towards the rear garden and into the first and second floor windows at
the adjoining property No.50. To combat these views the terrace would feature screening
1.7m above the stair level and 2.2m above the floor level of the terrace, see Figure 2
below. The screening combined with the chimney would be sufficient to prevent intrusive
views thereby ensuring that there would be no harmful loss of privacy at No.50 or the
wider terrace.
Figure 2. Section through the roof terrace

47

Solid screening would not be appropriate at the rear of the roof terrace as solid
screening would introduce addition bulk at second floor level detracting from the overall
appearance and subservience of the extension. Instead the terrace would feature a
planter set back 1.7m from the rear elevation of the extension, see figure 3 below. The
planter would form the rear boundary of the roof terrace increasing the distance between
the roof terrace and the properties on Sunninghill Road. Officers, as a matter of planning
judgement, are satisfied that the position of the terrace would ensure that views towards
the rear would not be intrusive. In coming to this conclusion Officers have also given
weight to the physical barriers between the rear gardens and the terrace including
boundary fences, the extension/outrigger and the rear balustrade and planter on the roof
terrace. Furthermore, overlooking of rear gardens is a typical feature of urban
environments such as this, albeit not always from elevated external positions.
Figure 3. Proposed roof terrace plan

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 111

48

Final details of the terrace screening, balustrades and planter would be secured by
condition. The condition would also ensure that these features would be installed prior to
the occupation of the development.

49

The windows in the rear of the proposed extension would permit views already possible
from the existing windows in the property and therefore would not introduce any
additional impacts to the privacy of neighbours.

50

Outlook from side elevations windows in the extension would be towards the medical
centre overlooking the pathway to Grover Court. As such, there would be no perceptible
loss of privacy to any residential properties. The same is true for views from the roof
terrace towards the west and north-west.

Noise and disturbance
Policy
51

PPG states LPAs should consider noise when new developments may create additional
noise and when new developments would be sensitive to the prevailing acoustic
environment.

52

Noise can constitute a statutory nuisance and is subject to the provisions of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 and other relevant law. This includes noise affecting
balconies and gardens.

53

Planning controls the effect of noise from external sources on residential uses and noise
transmission between different uses. The relevant standard is BS: 8233:2014. This
states the internal noise levels within living rooms must not exceed 35dB(A) during the
daytime (0700-2300) and 30 dB(A) in bedrooms during the night–time (2300-0700). With
respect to external areas, BS 8233:2014 recommends that external noise level does not
exceed 50dB LAeq,T with an upper guideline of value of 55dB LAeq,T

54

A range of other legislation provides environmental protection, principally the Control of
Pollution Act.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 112

55

LLP D14 states that residential development should avoid significant adverse impacts to
quality of life.

56

DMP 26 aims to reduce excessive noise or vibration which can be detrimental to human
health and well-being and can impact negatively on natural habitats.

57

Paragraph 5.16.3 of the SPD may be permitted if it can be demonstrated that noise
transmission would not be possible.
Discussion

58

Concern has been raised by neighbours about the risk of harm to their living conditions
from airborne noise and disturbance resulting from the use of the roof terrace.

59

Officers have assessed the existing sound environment and consider the existing sound
environment to be different to other parts of the borough with similar density of
residential land uses due to the proximity to a busy A Road, which is heavily trafficked.
The traffic would therefore generate ambient noise in addition to the day-to-day activities
typical in a residential area, which would include residents using their gardens for
amenity purposes. Officers would expect the night-time noise environment to be
noticeably quieter due to lower levels of activity but with higher levels than within a
suburban area.

60

The nearest windows are within the rear elevation of No.50 Loampit Hill. The window
closest to the boundary serves a second floor half-landing, which is less sensitive than a
bedroom. The nearest bedroom window is located on the eastern side of the property.
There would be no direct line of sight between the terrace and either of the two windows
due to the screening to be installed on the boundary.

61

The application states the terrace would be used for residential amenity and it is on this
basis that Officers have made their assessment. The terrace would measure
approximately 35sqm and so would be similar in size to small rear garden, which
supports this characterisation. Therefore, potential sources of noise and disturbance
from the terrace include those similar to the normal use of existing neighbouring
gardens: voices, music, scraping of chairs.

62

Officers recognise that disturbance from an elevated terrace, at a similar height to the
affected windows, can be a more intrusive, and therefore more aggravating for
neighbours. However, the size of the terrace, degree of screening and distance to the
closest habitable window (approximately 4m) would mean that disturbances would be
within appropriate levels. In making this assessment Officers have given weight to the
urban character of the area where a degree of disturbance from neighbouring properties
is a typical feature.

63

Structural noise transference via vibration is not likely to be significant given that works
to the outrigger are limited to the provision of the new roof and screening. Furthermore,
the works would be required to comply with Building Regulations.

Impact on neighbours conclusion
64

Officers are satisfied that, as a matter of planning judgement, the proposed development
would have an acceptable impact on the living conditions of the neighbouring properties
in terms of sense of enclosure, loss of privacy, loss of light and noise and disturbance
(including vibration).

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 113

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS
65

Under Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), a local
finance consideration means:



a grant or other financial assistance that has been, or will or could be, provided to
a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown; or



sums that a relevant authority has received, or will or could receive, in payment of
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

66

The weight to be attached to a local finance consideration remains a matter for the
decision maker.

67

The CIL is therefore a material consideration, however, this application would not
generate a CIL contribution.

EQUALITIES CONSIDERATIONS
68

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the equality
duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, disability,
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

69

In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its function, have due regard to the
need to:



eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act;



advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not;



foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

70

The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is a
matter for the decision maker, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and
proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination,
advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations.

71

The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical Guidance on
the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010
Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council must
have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is drawn
to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance
also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have
statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical
guidance can be found at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publicationdownload/technical-guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 114

72

The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five guides
for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:







The essential guide to the public sector equality duty
Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making
Engagement and the equality duty
Equality objectives and the equality duty
Equality information and the equality duty

73

The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including the
general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what public
authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are legally required, as well as
recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on
key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources are available
at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equalityduty-guidance

74

The planning issues set out above do not include any factors that relate specifically to
any of the equalities categories set out in the Act, and therefore it has been concluded
that there is no impact on equality.

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS
75

In determining this application the Council is required to have regard to the provisions of
the Human Rights Act 1998. Section 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 prohibits
authorities (including the Council as local planning authority) from acting in a way which
is incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. ‘’Convention’’ here
means the European Convention on Human Rights, certain parts of which were
incorporated into English law under the Human Rights Act 1998. Various Convention
rights are likely to be relevant including:




Article 8: Respect for your private and family life, home and correspondence
Protocol 1, Article 1: Right to peaceful enjoyment of your property

76

This report has outlined the consultation that has been undertaken on the planning
application and the opportunities for people to make representations to the Council as
Local Planning Authority.

77

Members need to satisfy themselves that the potential adverse amenity impacts are
acceptable and that any potential interference with the above Convention Rights will be
legitimate and justified. Both public and private interests are to be taken into account in
the exercise of the Local Planning Authority’s powers and duties. Any interference with a
Convention right must be necessary and proportionate. Members must therefore,
carefully consider the balance to be struck between individual rights and the wider public
interest.

78

This application has the legitimate aim of extending a residential building. The rights
potentially engaged by this application, including Article 8 and Protocol 1, Article 1 are
not considered to be unlawfully interfered with by this proposal.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 115

CONCLUSION
79

This application has been considered in the light of policies set out in the development
plan and other material considerations.

80

The proposed development would result in an acceptable visual impact to the application
property and the surrounding area by virtue of the high quality complementary materials
proposed and the proportionate scale of the extension. Officers are also satisfied that
the development would not result in any unacceptable impacts to the amenity of the
neighbouring occupiers subject to conditions securing the provisions of screening and
the planter prior to the occupation of the development. Accordingly, the application is
recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION
81

That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to the following
conditions and informatives:

CONDITIONS
1.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date on which the permission is granted.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the application plans,
drawings and documents hereby approved and as detailed below:
DWG_01; DWG_02_Existing First Floor Plan BB; DWG_02_Existing Second Floor
Plan CC; DWG_04; DWG_05; DWG_06; DWG_07; DWG_08; DWG_09; DWG_10;
DWG_11; DWG_12; DWG_13; DWG_14; DWG_15; DWG_16; DWG_17; DWG_18;
Site Plan received 23 December 2021;
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved documents, plans and drawings submitted with the application and is
acceptable to the local planning authority.

3.

Materials and Design Quality
(a) No above ground works shall commence on site (excluding demolition) until a
detailed schedule and specification including manufacturer's literature or detailed
drawings, in respect of the following:
(i) brickwork, mortar, pointing & bond;
(ii) windows and reveals;
(iii) external doors;
(iv) roofing materials and junctions (scale 1:5);
has been be submitted to and approved in writing by the Council.
(b) The works shall then be carried in full accordance with the approved details prior to
the first occupation of the development, and retained thereafter.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 116

Reason: To ensure that the local planning authority may be satisfied as to the external
appearance of the building(s) and to comply with Policy 15 High quality design for
Lewisham of the Core Strategy (June 2011) and Development Management Local Plan
(November 2014) DM Policy 30 Urban design and local character.
4.

Terrace Screening
a) The roof terrace hereby permitted shall not be occupied until full details of the
siting, appearance and specification of the screening, planter and balustrades has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
b) The details approved by part (a) shall be installed prior to the occupation of the
roof terrace and maintained permanently thereafter.
Reason: To avoid the direct overlooking of adjoining properties and consequent loss
of privacy thereto and to comply with DM Policy 31 Alterations and extensions to
existing buildings including residential extensions of the Development Management
Local Plan (November 2014).

5.

Roof Terrace
The roof terrace shall be provided and used in full accordance with drawing DWG_12
and all other areas of the flat roof shall only be used in the case of essential
maintenance or repair, or escape in case of emergency.
Reason: To avoid the direct overlooking of adjoining properties and consequent loss
of privacy thereto and to comply with DM Policy 31 Alterations and extensions to
existing buildings including residential extensions of the Development Management
Local Plan (November 2014).

INFORMATIVES
1)

Positive and Proactive Statement: The Council engages with all applicants in a
positive and proactive way through specific pre-application enquiries and the
detailed advice available on the Council’s website. On this particular application,
positive discussions took place which resulted in further information being
submitted.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
(1) Submission Drawings
(2) Submission technical reports and supporting documents
(3) Internal consultee responses

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 117

(4) External consultee responses

REPORT AUTHOR AND CONTACT
Report Author: Alfie Williams (Senior Planning Officer)
Email: alfie.williams@lewisham.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 8314 9336

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 118

Page 119

This page is intentionally left blank

52 Loampit Hill
London
Page 121

SE13 7SW
Application No. DC/21/120340
This presentation forms no part of a planning application
and is for information only.
END

1 of 25

Page 122

The demolition of the existing rear
conservatory and construction of a two storey
extension to the rear of 52 Loampit Hill, SE13,
together with alterations to the roof of the
existing rear outrigger and side annex in
connection with the formation of a rear and
side roof terrace at second floor level.

2 of 30

Page 123

Site Location Plan

3 of 30

Page 124

Front Elevation Photograph

4 of 30

Page 125

Rear Elevation Photographs

5 of 30

Page 126

Aerial View

6 of 30

Page 127

Proposed Rear & Side Elevations

7 of 30

Page 128

Proposed Roof Terrace

8 of 30

Page 129

View from Grover Court

9 of 30

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
 Principle of Development
 Urban Design
Page 130

 Living Conditions of Neighbouring Properties

10 of 30

Page 131

End of Presentation

11 of 30

Page 132

CGI View

12 of 30

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 133

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Planning Committee B

Report title:

144 HITHER GREEN LANE, LONDON, SE13 6QA
Date: 12 April 2022
Key decision: No.
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: Lewisham Central
Contributors: Samuel James

Outline and recommendations
The application is reported to Planning Committee as there have been more than
three material planning objections, and planning permission is recommended to be
approved.

Page 149

Application details
Application reference number(s): DC/21/123739
Application Date:

04 October 2021

Applicant:

Mr Ertosun of Excel Care Holdings

Proposal:

The change of use of 144 Hither Green Lane SE13 from C3
(dwellinghouse) to C2 (residential institutions), comprising
supported living care rooms for 8 individuals.

Background Papers:

(1) Submission Drawings
(2) Submission technical reports and documents

Designation:

None

Screening:

N/A

SITE AND CONTEXT
Site description and current use

1

The application site is located on the western side of Hither Green Lane, opposite the
junction with Ennersdale Road. The GIA of the property is approximately 157m² and the
garden is relatively large, measuring approximately 171m². There is an existing
outbuilding in the rear garden.

2

The lawful use of the site is as a C3 dwellinghouse, however there are enforcement
investigations of the property, for its use as an unauthorised (Sui Generis) HMO. The
applicant has stated the existing use is as a HMO for no more than 6 persons, which
would be a lawful use (as the change of use from a C3 family dwellinghouse to a C4
(small) HMO is Permitted Development in this part of Lewisham) .
Character of area

3

The surrounding area is predominantly residential, with a mixture of semi-detached and
terraced properties. To the north and south on hither green lane there are mixed use
parades with commercial uses at ground floor level and residential above.
Heritage/archaeology

4

The subject property is not located within a conservation area and is not subject to an
Article 4 Direction.
Surrounding area

5

The surrounding area has a number of shopping facilities in close walking distance.
Lewisham Park and Mountsfield Park are both within 10 minutes walk.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 150

Local environment

6

There are no known flooding issues relevant to the case, nor any issues with
contaminated land.
Transport

7

The site has a PTAL rating of 3, based on a scale of 0-6b with 6b having the highest
degree of accessibility to public transport. It is noted that Hither Green rail station is
within 10 minutes walking distance.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
8

DC/21/119888: The change of use of 144 Hither Green Lane SE13 from C3
(dwellinghouse) to C2 (residential institutions), comprising supported living care rooms
for 9 individuals. Refused 9 July 2021 for the following reasons:
1. The proposed communal living space in the existing outbuilding would be
undersized, inconvenient and impractical for the nine proposed residents and
therefore the supported living residential institution (Use Class C2) has not been
demonstrated to be acceptable in principle as a result of its poor design, which would
not meet the particular needs of future residents, contrary to Paragraph 127 of the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019); Policy H12 Supported and specialised
accommodation of the London Plan (2021) and Policy 5 Specialist accommodation
for older people of the Development Management Local Plan (2014).
2. The proposed use of the outbuilding, as the only communal living area for nine
unrelated residents of a supported living institution, would lead to significant harm to
the amenity of neighbours, due to unreasonable levels of noise and disturbance for a
domestic garden setting, as well as loss of privacy, contrary to Paragraph 127 of the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019); Policy D14 Noise of the London Plan
(2021); Policy 15 of the Lewisham Core Strategy (2011); and Policy 32 Housing
design, layout and space standards of the Development Management Local Plan
(2014).

9

DC/17/103522: Lawful Development Certificate (Proposed) for the construction of a
detached flat roof garden room/home gym building at 144 Hither Green lane, SE13.
Granted 6 November 2017.

10

DC/17/103521: Lawful Development Certificate (Proposed) for the construction of a
single storey rear roof extension at 144 Hither Green lane, SE13. Granted 6 Nov 2017.

CURRENT PLANNING APPLICATION
THE PROPOSALS
11

The application is for the change of use of the property from C3 (dwellinghouse) to C2
(residential institutions). The proposal includes 8 supported living care rooms for 8

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 151

individuals. Communal space would be provided at ground floor level, as well as a staff
room.

12

The existing outbuilding is proposed to be used for storage and utilities.

COMPARISON WITH PREVIOUS SCHEME
13

The key difference between the current proposal, and the proposal that was refused by
officers in July 2021 is that the outbuilding is no longer proposed to be used as the only
communal living area for residents.

14

In the refused application, there were 9 supported living rooms proposed for the same
number of residents, and communal living space, including a kitchen and living area
were proposed to be provided in the outbuilding.

15

The current proposal is for 8 supported living rooms, for 8 residents, and would now
provide a communal living area at ground floor level within the main property, including a
kitchen. A separate staff room would also now be provided.

16

As set out in the following report, officers consider these previous reasons for refusal
have been overcome.

CONSULTATION
PRE-APPLICATION ENGAGEMENT
17

None.

APPLICATION PUBLICITY
18

A site notices was displayed and Letters were sent to residents and business in the
surrounding area and the relevant ward Councillors on 2nd November 2021 and 26th
November 2021.

19

7 number responses received, comprising 6 objections, and 1 comments.
Comments in objection
Comment

Para where addressed

Loss of privacy

119

Noise and disturbance

124

Highway safety concerns for future
residents

97

Communal living space still inadequate

60

Loss of family sized housing

43

Continued concern of use of garden
outbuilding for residents

126

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 152

Acessibility for future residents, questions
whether there would be residents with
disabilities, and if the property would be
suitable.

74

20

A number of other comments were also raised as follows:

21

Anti-social behaviour of future residents – This is expected to be suitably managed by
the operator, however possible anti-social behaviour of future residents is not material to
planning. This would be a civil or legal issue.

22

Allege that the change of use appears to have already occurred – Officers understand
the property is currently in use as a small HMO for up to 6 people (Use Class C4) and
this use does not require planning permission. Regardless, any existing alleged breach
of planning control relevant to this current planning application would not be a material
consideration when determining the current application.

INTERNAL CONSULTATION
23

The following internal consultees were notified on 26 October 2021

24

Social Care and Health: Confirmed there is need for additional supported living
bedspaces in the borough as demand outstrips supply.

EXTERNAL CONSULTATION
25

None required.

POLICY CONTEXT
LEGISLATION
26

Planning applications are required to be determined in accordance with the statutory
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise (S38(6) Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and S70 Town & Country Planning Act 1990).

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
27

A material consideration is anything that, if taken into account, creates the real possibility
that a decision-maker would reach a different conclusion to that which they would reach
if they did not take it into account.

28

Whether or not a consideration is a relevant material consideration is a question of law
for the courts. Decision-makers are under a duty to have regard to all applicable policy
as a material consideration.

29

The weight given to a relevant material consideration is a matter of planning judgement.
Matters of planning judgement are within the exclusive province of the LPA. This report
sets out the weight Officers have given relevant material considerations in making their
recommendation to Members. Members, as the decision-makers, are free to use their

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 153

planning judgement to attribute their own weight, subject to aforementioned directions
and the test of reasonableness.

NATIONAL POLICY & GUIDANCE




National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Guidance 2014 onwards (NPPG)
National Design Guidance 2019 (NDG)

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
30

The Development Plan comprises:







London Plan (March 2021) (LPP)
Core Strategy (June 2011) (CSP)
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014) (DMP)
Site Allocations Local Plan (June 2013) (SALP)
Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan (February 2014) (LTCP)

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE
31

Lewisham SPG/SPD:



32

Alterations and Extensions Supplementary Planning Document (April 2019)
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (February 2015)

London Plan SPG/SPD:







Planning for Equality and Diversity in London (October 2007)
Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive Environment (October 2014)
Social Infrastructure (May 2015)
Housing (March 2016)
Energy Assessment Guidance (October 2018)

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
33

The main issues are:








Principle of Development
Residential Quality
Specialist residential uses
Urban Design
Impact on Adjoining Properties
Transport

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 154

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT
General policy

34

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at paragraph 11, states that there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development and that proposals should be
approved without delay so long as they accord with the development plan.

35

The London Plan (LP) sets out a sequential spatial approach to making the best use of
land set out in LPP GG2 (Parts A to C) that should be followed.

36

DMP 2 seeks to prevent the loss of housing stating that Council will only grant planning
permission for the loss of housing by demolition, redevelopment or change of use in the
following circumstances:
-

the proposed redevelopment would result in housing gain which regenerate and
replace older housing estates in line with an agreed plan or strategy

-

the land or premises are allocated for another use in an adopted Local Plan

-

a change of use to a local community service or facility is proposed that
meets an identified need

-

an economic viability study confirms that the dwelling(s) cannot be rehabilitated to a
satisfactory standard at reasonable cost

-

evidence shows that environmental problems are such that demolition and
redevelopment is the only effective option.

37

Policy H12 of the London Plan Supported and specialised accommodation states the
delivery, retention and refurbishment of supported and specialised housing, including
accommodation (short-term or long-term), which meets an identified need should be
supported. The form this takes will vary, and it should be designed to satisfy the
requirements of the specific use or group it is intended for, whilst providing options within
the accommodation offer for the diversity of London’s population, including disabled
within a wider inclusive community setting. This includes reablement accommodation
(intensive short-term) for people who are ready to be discharged from hospital but who
require additional support to be able to return safely to live independently at home, or to
move into appropriate long-term accommodation, and accommodation (short-term or
long-term) for people with mental health issues who require intensive support.

38

CSP 19 states that the Council will apply London Plan policies relating to healthcare,
education and community and recreational facilities to ensure the preferred location for
new areas will be in areas that are easily accessible and located within close proximity of
public transport, other community facilities and services and town and local centres.

39

DM Policy 5 Specialist accommodation for older people is relevant, and states The
Council will support proposals for specialist accommodation for older people including
sheltered housing, care homes and other appropriate models of accommodation for the
elderly and those with particular needs (referred to hereafter as extra care
accommodation) provided that the development:
-

is well designed to meet the particular requirements of residents with social,
physical, mental and/or health care needs

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 155

-

will be easily accessible to public transport, shops, local services, community
facilities and social networks for residents, carers and their visitors.

Discussion

40

The proposed development would result in the loss of a single family dwellinghouse (Use
Class C3). The loss of housing arising from redevelopment is not consistent with the
general principles of the NPPF and development plan. However, DMP 2 sets out
circumstances where a loss of housing can be justified. In this case, DMP 2.1(c) is
considered relevant and allows a change of use to a local community service where it
would meet an identified need.

41

The design and access statement states: The care facility will be supported living
accommodation with appropriate and tailored support services. All residents will be
referred from the local authority social services. The client has a long standing
relationship with the local authority providing this much needed care type in a number of
facilities around the south of England. The residents will typically have mild learning
difficulties such as autism and any other related disabilities of the same manner and
magnitude.

42

As a supported living healthcare facility, the proposed residential care home (Use Class
C2) would meet the definition of a community service as set out in CSP 19. Regarding
Policy H12 of the London Plan and DM Policy 5(a), there is demand for additional
supported living institutions in the borough, and the provision of 8 additional care
bedspaces is therefore a planning merit which is given significant weight by officers.

43

Officers are therefore satisfied that the proposed loss of a residential unit has been
justified in accordance with the provisions of DMP 2.

44

It is also necessary to consider whether the area and property are suitable for the
residential care home. LPP H12 is supportive of the delivery of specialised
accommodation but is clear that the accommodation should meet the specialised needs
of the relevant group. This requirement is supported by DMP 5.

45

The Management Plan document states that the average length of stay would be 2
years. It outlines that everyone considered for the scheme will have been accepted by
the Lewisham Supported Housing Pathway. It states that residents would all be
Lewisham residents and, in many cases, will be in hospital and in need to move to
accommodation that offers support as they are considered by professional staff, i.e.
doctors, nurses and social workers, currently unable to manage in their own homes.
There will be blocking beds needed for acutely ill patients. Some residents will be in
other supported accommodation or living in their own homes, but they will have been
unable to manage daily living tasks. They would not be accepted unless they had a
proven substantial need for support with day-to-day living which would include support
with personal care and support with any medical treatment that they are receiving.

46

The design and access statement states that staff will be present at various hours. It
states the floating support workers will visit the site on an agreed schedule with the
ability to carry out additional visits if required. The submitted ‘Management Plan’
document states there would be 24 hour staffing.

47

A communal living area, and staff room would be provided at ground level. The private
bedrooms also contain all the facilities required for independent living. Officers are
satisfied the proposal would meet the specific needs of the proposed tenants.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 156

48

DMP 5 also requires that specialist accommodation is located in accessible locations in
terms of public transport and proximity to local services and facilities. The site has PTAL
of 3, which is a good level of public transport accessibility and is within walking distance
to several parade of shops on Hither Green Lane as well as Lewisham Town Centre.
Mountsfield Park and Lewisham Park are also within easy walking distance. Therefore,
Officers considered that the site is an appropriate location for a residential care home
and would satisfy the requirements of LPP H12, CSP 19 and DMP 5.
Principle of development conclusions

49

In summary, although the proposal would result in the loss of a single family
dwellinghouse, as there is an identified need for additional supported housing (C2) in the
borough and the location is suitable, the principle of development is supported on this
occasion.

Residential Quality
General Policy

50

NPPF para 130 sets an expectation that new development will be designed to create
places that amongst other things have a ‘high standard’ of amenity for existing and
future users. This is reflected in relevant policies of the London Plan (LPP D6), the Core
Strategy (CS P15), the Local Plan (DMP 32) and associated guidance (Housing SPD
2017, GLA; Alterations and Extensions SPD 2019, LBL).

51

The main components of residential quality are: (i) space standards; (ii) outlook and
privacy; daylight and sunlight (iii) noise and disturbance; (iv) accessibility and inclusivity.
Internal space standards
Policy

52

There are no specific standards in planning policy for specialist accommodation so the
general standards set out within LPP D6 and DMP32 are therefore considered relevant.

53

Each care room would be provided for a single occupant, and would include en-suite
and kitchenette facilities to enable independent living.
Discussion

54

The table below sets out proposed dwelling sizes.
Table [1 ]: Internal space standards – proposed v target

Room No.

Unit type (min requirement sq.m)

Room size excluding en-suite (GIA)
(sq.m)

1 Ground

Single care room

20.3

2 Ground

Single care room

17.9

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 157

3 First

Single care room

19.5

4 First

Single care room

15.3

5 First

Single care room

20.3

6 Second

Single care room

18.7

7 Second

Single care room

15.2

8 Second

Single care room

17.8

Staff Office
Ground

Staff welfare / working room

9.1

Communal
Ground

Communal socialising / cooking

19.5

55

Each proposed care bedroom is of an appropriate size, exceeding the minimum space
standards for a single bedroom by a generous amount. Each room would provide private
sleeping, cooking and bathroom facilities. This is considered acceptable for a supported
living institution of this kind, and future residents would be provided with a high standard
of amenity.

56

The previous application was refused on the basis the proposed communal space was
insufficient for the number of residents proposed. In that application, the only proposed
communal space would be located in the outbuilding, and this was considered
inappropriate and to represent a poor design choice as the only communal living space
as it was detached from the main house.

57

In the current application, the communal living space is proposed to be inside the main
house at ground level, and the number of proposed residents has been decreased from
9 to 8.

58

Although the proposed communal space would be smaller than before, as it would now
be inside the main house, it is now considered appropriate. It is noted that officers
previously raised concern that the communal space would not be an adequate size for
the 9 proposed residents.

59

The currently proposed 19.5m² communal space would provide an average of 2.4m² per
resident, the staff room is immediately adjacent, and so staff have not been included
when calculating this average.

60

There are no planning policies which specify the minimum requirement of communal
space per resident. Lewisham’s standards for licensable HMOs requires shared kitchens
for up to 10 people to be 11m², which the current proposal would exceed significantly. It

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 158

is also noted that each room would be provided with private kitchen facilities, so
residents would have choice of where to prepare and eat their meals. The application is
not for a HMO, it is for a supported care facility (C2), however the reference to the HMO
standards is considered a good point of reference in the absence of specific standards
for C2 care facilities to demonstrate the suitability of the provision of communal space.

61

The laundry and storage are proposed to be within the outbuilding, and officers consider
this to be an appropriate use of the outbuilding.

62

Officers consider that the previous reason for refusal, relating to the inadequate
communal space in the outbuilding has been overcome in the current submission.

Outlook & Privacy, Daylight and Sunlight
Policy

63

London Plan Policy D1(8) requires development to achieve ‘appropriate outlook, privacy
and amenity”. Within the same document, policy D4 seeks to maximise the provision of
dual-aspect dwellings (i.e. with openable windows on different elevations).

64

The London Housing SPD and the Lewisham Alterations and Extensions SPD promote
access to sunlight and natural daylight as important amenity factors, particularly to living
spaces. LPP Table 3.2 states that site layout, orientation and design of dwellings should
provide privacy and adequate daylight for residents.

65

DMP 32(1)(b) expects new developments to provide a ‘satisfactory level’ of privacy,
outlook and natural lighting for its future residents.
Discussion

66

As an existing dwellinghouse the property provides a high standard of accommodation
with dual aspect providing a good levels of outlook, light and ventilation. The conversion
would not change this as all of the existing windows would be retained and unaltered.

67

Each room would be served by at least one good sized window, and as these are
existing windows, they would not be expected to result in privacy issues for future
residents.
Noise & Disturbance
Policy

68

DMP26 requires new noise sensitive developments to be located away from existing or
planned sources of noise pollution, except if it can be demonstrated through design or
mitigation that internal and external noise levels can be satisfactorily controlled and
managed by the noise sensitive development and there will be no adverse impact on the
continued operation of any existing or proposed business or operation.

69

Discussion

70

As an existing residential property in a residential area, future residents would not be
expected to be subjected to any unreasonable levels of noise or disturbance.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 159

Accessibility and inclusivity
Policy

71

CSP 1 requires major schemes to provide 10% of all units and each tenure type to be
constructed as accessible. DMP 32 states that the Council will require new build housing
to be designed to ensure that internal layout and external design features provides
housing that is accessible to all intended users.

72

Policy H12 requires specialised accommodation to be designed to satisfy the
requirements of the specific use or group it is intended for, whilst providing options within
the accommodation offer for the diversity of London’s population, including disabled
within a wider inclusive community setting.

73

LPP D7 applies to new dwellings created to which Part M, Volume 1 of the building
regulations apply, and required 10% of all dwellings created to be wheelchair user, or
wheelchair accessible and adaptable dwellings. Application of this policy is therefore
generally limited to new build dwellings.
Discussion

74

The current proposal is for the change of use of an existing dwellinghouse into a C2
residential institution. It is not a major development.

75

Part M Volume 2 of the building regulations apply to this development, meaning
reasonable provision is required to made to ensure that buildings are accessible and
usable and that individuals, regardless of their age, gender or disability are able to,
‘...gain access to buildings and to gain access within buildings and use their facilities,
both as visitors and as people who live and work in them.’ This is a building control
requirement for the current development.

External space standards
Policy

76

LPPD6H requires all new one bedroom dwellings to be provided with at least 5m² private
external amenity space, and another 1m² for each additional occupant.
Discussion

77

The existing rear garden will be provided for use by residents, and this greatly exceeds
the minimum required 13m², and therefore access to external amenity space is
considered to be acceptable.
Conclusion of Residential Quality

78

A high standard of accommodation would be provided to future residents of the
proposed supported living institution (C2).

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 160

OTHER USES
79

LPP 3.1 seeks to ensure equal life changes for all. As a means of tackling inequality
across London, development proposals should protect and enhance facilities and
services that meet the needs of particular groups and communities. Loss of these
facilities without adequate justification or replacement should be resisted. Boroughs are
encouraged to consider the needs of specific groups such as those who experience
particular disadvantage and social exclusion.

SPECIALIST RESIDENTIAL USES
Policy

80

Policy H12 of the London Plan Supported and specialised accommodation states the
delivery, retention and refurbishment of supported and specialised housing, including
accommodation (short-term or long-term) for people with mental health issues who
require intensive support, which meets an identified need should be supported. The form
this takes will vary, and it should be designed to satisfy the requirements of the specific
use or group it is intended for, whilst providing options within the accommodation offer
for the diversity of London’s population, including disabled within a wider inclusive
community setting.

81

CSP 19 states that the Council will apply London Plan policies relating to healthcare,
education and community and recreational facilities to ensure the preferred location for
new areas will be in areas that are easily accessible and located within close proximity of
public transport, other community facilities and services and town and local centres.
Discussion

82

As discussed in the principle of development section, there is an identified need for
additional supported housing bedspaces in the borough, and therefore officers support
the proposal for 8 additional C2, supported living bedspaces.

URBAN DESIGN
General Policy

83

The NPPF at para 126 states the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process
should achieve.

84

LP Policy D4, CS Policy 15, DMLP Policies 30 and 31 as well as the provisions of the
Alterations and Extensions reflect this and are relevant.
Discussion

85

No external alterations are proposed to the main building, and the outbuilding is already
in existence. It is noted that the proposed outbuilding was built under Class E
householder permitted development rights.

86

No objections are raised to the design of the proposed cycle store in the rear garden.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 161

Accessibility and inclusivity
Policy

87

CSP 1 requires major schemes to provide 10% of all units and each tenure type to be
constructed as accessible. DMP 32 states that the Council will require new build housing
to be designed to ensure that internal layout and external design features provides
housing that is accessible to all intended users.

88

Policy H12 requires specialised accommodation to be designed to satisfy the
requirements of the specific use or group it is intended for, whilst providing options within
the accommodation offer for the diversity of London’s population, including disabled
within a wider inclusive community setting.

89

LPP D7 applies to new dwellings created to which Part M, Volume 1 of the building
regulations apply, and required 10% of all dwellings created to be wheelchair user, or
wheelchair accessible and adaptable dwellings. Application of this policy is therefore
generally limited to new build dwellings.
Discussion

90

The current proposal is for the change of use of an existing dwellinghouse into a C2
residential institution. It is not a major development and it is not for new build dwellings.

91

Part M Volume 2 of the building regulations apply to this development as a change of
use to a residential intuition. This means reasonable provision is required to made to
ensure that buildings are accessible and usable and that individuals, regardless of their
age, gender or disability are able to, ‘...gain access to buildings and to gain access
within buildings and use their facilities, both as visitors and as people who live and work
in them.’ This is a building control requirement for the current development.

Urban design conclusion
92

As no external alterations are proposed to the main building, the urban design
considerations are limited, and no objections are raised.

TRANSPORT IMPACT
General policy

93

Nationally, the NPPF requires the planning system to actively manage growth to support
the objectives of para 102. This includes: (a) addressing impact on the transport
network; (b) realise opportunities from existing or proposed transport infrastructure; (c)
promoting walking, cycling and public transport use; (d) avoiding and mitigating adverse
environmental impacts of traffic; and (e) ensuring the design of transport considerations
contribute to high quality places. Significant development should be focused on
locations, which are or can be made sustainable, through limiting the need to travel and
a choice of transport modes.

94

The Council supports the NPPF’s guidance on promoting sustainable transport methods.
For this reason, the Council requires residential development to provide cycle parking in
accordance with the requirements of Policy T5 and Table 10.2 of the London Plan. LPP

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 162

T6 seeks to ensure a balance is struck to prevent excessive car parking provision that
can undermine cycling, walking and public transport use and through the use of wellconsidered travel, plans aim to reduce reliance on private means of transport. Table 10.3
of the London Plan sets the maximum parking standards for residential development.

95

The Core Strategy, at Objective 9 and CSP14, reflects the national and regional
priorities.

Access
Policy

96

The NPPF requires safe and suitable access for all users.
Discussion

97

The access to the property would not change as a result of the proposal, and as it is an
existing residential property officers therefore consider it to be safe and suitable for
future residents.

Local Transport Network
Policy

98

Policy T4 of the London Plan states consideration of the cumulative impacts of
development on public transport and the road network capacity including walking and
cycling, as well as associated effects on public health, should be taken into account and
mitigated.
Discussion

99

The proposed change of use would likely result in an intensification of the use of the site
in terms of visitors and servicing. However, this is not likely to be significant given the
relatively modest size of the property and therefore Officers are satisfied that
surrounding transport network could absorb the increased demand taking into account
the good public transport accessibility of 3. The development is not likely to result in a
significant increase parking stress. Given the proposed use of the property, future
residents are unlikely to own cars.

100

Staff and visitors may choose to drive to work, but this would not materially increase
parking stress in the surrounding area. Furthermore, it is noted that on-street parking in
the immediately surrounding area is restricted by the Rushey Green East, as well as the
Hither Green West Controlled Parking Zones, meaning any persons driving to the site
would need to pay for parking.

Servicing and refuse
Policy

101

The NPPF states development should allow for the efficient delivery of goods and
access by service and emergency vehicles.

102

DM Policy 32 requires new developments to have appropriate regard for servicing of
residential units, including refuse.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 163

103

Storage facilities for waste and recycling containers should meet at least BS5906:2005
Code of Practice for waste management in Buildings in accordance with London Plan
Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (2016) standard 23.
Discussion

104

Storage space for 2x 240l recycling bins, and 2x 240l refused bins is proposed to the
front of the property. This is an acceptable location, and of sufficient capacity for the
proposed number of residents.

105

To ensure the bin stores are enclosed and of an acceptable appearance, final details of
this are recommended to be secured by condition.

Transport modes
Walking and cycling
Policy

106

Policy T5 of the Publication London Plan states development proposals should create a
healthy environment in which people choose to cycle, and should provide cycle parking
in accordance with the minimum standards set out in table 10.2.

107

Development should give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements, both within
the scheme and with neighbouring area. Development should create places that are
safe, secure and attractive, minimising the scope for conflicts between pedestrians,
cyclists and vehicles.
Discussion

108

The site is a in a residential street and is well accessible for pedestrians.

109

A bicycle store would be provided in the rear garden for 10 bicycles. This is sufficient for
the proposed use, providing one space for each resident, as well as space for staff and a
visitor, exceeding the requirements of table 10.2 of the London Plan.
Public transport
Policy

110

LPPT4 states development proposals should reflect and be integrated with current and
planned transport access, capacity and connectivity. The cumulative impacts of
development on public transport and the road network capacity including walking and
cycling, as well as associated effects on public health, should be taken into account and
mitigated.
Discussion

111

It is considered that the scale of development would have a negligible impact on the
local public transport network, and that the site is suitably accessible for residential
development of this scale.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 164

Transport impact conclusion
112

The proposed development would have an acceptable impact on the surrounding
transport network. The pedestrian access would result in no material safety implications,
and the development would have no significant impact on the wider transport network, in
line with the relevant local and national policies.

LIVING CONDITIONS OF NEIGHBOURS
General Policy

113

NPPF para 130 sets an expectation that new development will be designed to create
places that amongst other things have a ‘high standard’ of amenity for existing and
future users. This is reflected in relevant policies of the Publication London Plan
PLPPD3, the Core Strategy (CP15), the Local Plan (DMP32) and associated guidance
(Housing SPD 2017, GLA).

114

The main impacts on amenity arise from: (i) overbearing enclosure/loss of outlook; (ii)
loss of privacy; (iii) loss of daylight within properties and loss of sunlight to amenity
areas; and (iv) noise and disturbance.
Enclosure and Outlook, Daylight and Sunlight
Policy

115

Policy DM32 expects new residential development to result in no harmful increased
sense of enclosure and no significant loss of outlook to neighbouring dwellings.
Discussion

116

No external alterations to the main building are proposed, and therefore would be no
impact on neighbours with regard to enclosure, outlook, daylight or sunlight.

Privacy
Policy

117

DMP32(1)(b) expects new developments to provide a ‘satisfactory level’ of privacy,
outlook and natural lighting for its neighbours.

118

Privacy concerns generally arise from new upper floor windows or balconies.
Discussion

119

No new upper floor windows are proposed, and therefore there would not be an impact
on neighbouring privacy as a result of the proposal. The change of use from C3 to C2
would not result in any impact on levels of privacy.

120

Officers note that in assessment of the previously refused application, officers raised
concern that the use of the outbuilding could raise privacy issues if it were used as the
sole communal amenity space for the C2 use. As the main communal amenity space
has now been moved into the main house, this concern is considered to be overcome.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 165

Noise and disturbance
Policy

121

Policy D14 of the London Plan (2021) Noise states in order to reduce, manage and
mitigate noise to improve health and quality of life, residential proposals should manage
noise by avoiding significant adverse noise impacts on health and quality of life, by
mitigating and minimising the existing and potential adverse impacts of noise on, from,
within, as a result of, or in the vicinity of new development, and by improving and
enhancing the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

122

DM policy 32 requires new residential development to be neighbourly, and development
in residential areas should not result in harm to existing residents through unsociable
noise and disturbance.
Discussion

123

Eight unrelated individuals, who have additional care needs, living together could
generate more intensive and differing patterns of residential noise and disturbance than
a general C3 dwellinghouse, and this would be noticed by neighbours. If not suitably
mitigated and managed, this would be detrimental to neighbouring amenity, and
ultimately quality of life.

124

The previous application was refused as it was considered the use of the outbuilding as
the sole communal living area for residents would lead to significant harm to the amenity
of neighbours, due to unreasonable levels of noise and disturbance arising from this.

125

The current proposal includes a communal living room inside the main house, meaning
that the outbuilding is no longer proposed to be used for this purpose. The outbuilding is
still proposed to be used as a storage space and for utilities such as laundry, which
officers consider to be an appropriate use of this space.

126

In order to control any possible noise and disturbance impacts arising from the use of the
outbuilding, officers recommend a condition restricting the use of the outbuilding to just
four residents at one time, and restricting the hours of use to between 8am and 10pm.

127

Subject to compliance with this condition, officers do not consider the proposed use
would result in harmful levels of noise and disturbance to neighbours.

Impact on neighbours conclusion
128

The proposed use of the property as a C2 supported living facility would be noticed by
neighbours, however would not result in increased levels of noise and disturbance that
would result in significant harm to neighbouring amenity.

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS
129

Under Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), a local
finance consideration means:



a grant or other financial assistance that has been, or will or could be, provided to
a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown; or

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 166



sums that a relevant authority has received, or will or could receive, in payment of
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

130

The weight to be attached to a local finance consideration remains a matter for the
decision maker.

131

The CIL is therefore a material consideration.

132

0 Lewisham CIL and 0 MCIL is estimated to be payable on this application, subject to
any valid applications for relief or exemption, and the applicant has completed the
relevant form. This would be confirmed at a later date in a Liability Notice.

EQUALITIES CONSIDERATIONS
133

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the equality
duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, disability,
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

134

In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its function, have due regard to the
need to:



eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act;



advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not;



foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

135

The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is a
matter for the decision maker, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and
proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination,
advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations.

136

The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical Guidance on
the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010
Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council must
have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is drawn
to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance
also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have
statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical
guidance can be found at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publicationdownload/technical-guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england

137

The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five guides
for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:



The essential guide to the public sector equality duty

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 167






Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making
Engagement and the equality duty
Equality objectives and the equality duty
Equality information and the equality duty

138

The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including the
general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what public
authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are legally required, as well as
recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on
key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources are available
at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equalityduty-guidance

139

The planning issues set out above do not include any factors that relate specifically to
any of the equalities categories set out in the Act, and therefore it has been concluded
that there is no impact on equality.

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS
140

In determining this application the Council is required to have regard to the provisions of
the Human Rights Act 1998. Section 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 prohibits
authorities (including the Council as local planning authority) from acting in a way which
is incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. ‘’Convention’’ here
means the European Convention on Human Rights, certain parts of which were
incorporated into English law under the Human Rights Act 1998. Various Convention
rights are likely to be relevant including:




Article 8: Respect for your private and family life, home and correspondence
Protocol 1, Article 1: Right to peaceful enjoyment of your property

141

This report has outlined the consultation that has been undertaken on the planning
application and the opportunities for people to make representations to the Council as
Local Planning Authority.

142

Members need to satisfy themselves that the potential adverse amenity impacts are
acceptable and that any potential interference with the above Convention Rights will be
legitimate and justified. Both public and private interests are to be taken into account in
the exercise of the Local Planning Authority’s powers and duties. Any interference with a
Convention right must be necessary and proportionate. Members must therefore,
carefully consider the balance to be struck between individual rights and the wider public
interest.

143

This application has the legitimate aim of providing supported living residential uses. The
rights potentially engaged by this application are not considered to be unlawfully
interfered with by this proposal.

CONCLUSION
144

This application has been considered in the light of policies set out in the development
plan and other material considerations.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 168

145

Although the proposal would result in the loss of an existing C3 single family dwelling, as
there is an identified need for the proposed use as supported housing facility (C2) in the
borough, and the location is suitable, the principle of development is supported.

146

The proposed C2 institution would meet the specific and specialised needs of the
proposed tenants who require care, but also need to be supported to live independently,
and would provide a high standard of accommodation.

147

The proposed use would not result in significant harm to the amenity of neighbours, nor
the surrounding transport network.

148

Given the acceptability of the proposed use and policy compliance, the proposal is
considered to be in accordance with the development plan as a whole.

149

The revised NPPF is underpinned by a presumption in favour of sustainable
development. Officers consider that with the recommended mitigation and planning
conditions in place, the scheme is consistent with national policy

150

In light of the above, the application is recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION
151

That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to the following
conditions and informatives:

CONDITIONS
1.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date on which the permission is granted.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the application plans,
drawings and documents hereby approved and as detailed below:
EOS10129-25.PL1 Received 4 January 2022;
EOS10129-21; EOS10129-22; EOS10129-23; EOS10129-24; EOS10129-26;
EOS10129-27; EOS10129-28; Design and Access Statement (Stephen Bradbury
Architects, October 2021); Management Plan (Stephen Bradbury Architects, October
2021) Received 6 October 2021
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved documents, plans and drawings submitted with the application and is
acceptable to the local planning authority.

3.

(a)

The C2 use shall not commence until the refuse and recycling facilities shown
on Plan No.EOS10129-28 hereby approved have been provided in full.

(b)

The facilities as approved shall be permanently retained and maintained for the
lifetime of the development.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 169

Reason: In order that the local planning authority may be satisfied with the provisions
for recycling facilities and refuse storage in the interest of safeguarding the amenities
of neighbouring occupiers and the area in general, in compliance with Development
Management Local Plan (November 2014) DM Policy 30 Urban design and local
character and Core Strategy Policy 13 Addressing Lewisham waste management
requirements (2011).
4.

(a)

Prior to first occupation, the cycle parking facilities as shown on Plan
No.EOS10129-28 hereby approved shall be provided in full.

(b)

All cycle parking spaces shall be made available for use prior to occupation of
the development and maintained thereafter.

Reason: In order to ensure adequate provision for cycle parking and to comply with
Policy T5 cycling and Table 10.2 of the London Plan (March 2021) and Policy 14:
Sustainable movement and transport of the Core Strategy (2011).
5.

(a)

A scheme of soft landscaping (including details of any trees or hedges to be
retained and proposed plant numbers, species, location and size of trees and
tree pits) and details of the management and maintenance of the landscaping
for a period of five years shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority prior to construction of the above ground works.

(b)

All planting, seeding or turfing shall be carried out in the first planting and
seeding seasons following the completion of the development, in accordance
with the approved scheme under part (a). Any trees or plants which within a
period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or
become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting
season with others of similar size and species.

Reason: In order that the local planning authority may be satisfied as to the details of
the proposal and to comply with Core Strategy Policy 12 Open space and
environmental assets, Policy 15 High quality design for Lewisham of the Core
Strategy (June 2011), and DM Policy 25 Landscaping and trees and DM Policy 30
Urban design and local character of the Development Management Local Plan
(November 2014).
6.

(a)

Details of the proposed boundary treatments including any gates, walls or
fences shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority prior to commencement of the C2 use hereby approved. The details
shall include treatment to the front boundary, to ensure a vehicle could not
access the front forecourt to park.

(b)

The approved boundary treatments shall be implemented prior to occupation of
the buildings and retained in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure that the boundary treatment is of adequate design in the
interests of visual and residential amenity and to comply with Policy 14 Sustainable
movement and transport and Policy 15 High quality design for Lewisham of the Core
Strategy (June 2011) and DM Policy 30 Urban design and local character of the
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014).
7.

No extensions or alterations to the building(s) hereby approved, whether or not
permitted under Article 3 to Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking, re-enacting or modifying

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 170

that Order) of that Order, shall be carried out without the prior written permission of
the local planning authority.
Reason: In order that, in view of the nature of the development hereby permitted, the
local planning authority may have the opportunity of assessing the impact of any
further development and to comply with Policy 15 High quality design for Lewisham of
the Core Strategy (June 2011).
8.

(a) The existing outbuilding must only be used for storage and utilities as specified in
the application hereby approved.
(b) The outbuilding must not be used by more than four persons at any one time.
(c) The outbuilding shall not be used other than between the hours of 8am and 10pm.
Reason: In the interest of safeguarding neighbouring residential amenity in
compliance with DM Policy 26 Noise and vibration, DM Policy 31 Alterations and
extensions to existing buildings including residential extensions, DM Policy 32
Housing design, layout and space standards of the Development Management Local
Plan (November 2014).

INFORMATIVES
1)

Positive and Proactive Statement: The Council engages with all applicants in a
positive and proactive way through specific pre-application enquiries and the
detailed advice available on the Council’s website. On this particular application,
positive discussions took place which resulted in further information being
submitted.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
152

(1) Submission Drawings

153

(2) Submission technical reports and documents

REPORT AUTHOR AND CONTACT
154

Samuel James, Samuel.james@lewisham.gov.uk, 020 8314 3742

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 171

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 173

This page is intentionally left blank

144 Hither Green Lane, SE13
Application No. DC/21/123739

Page 175

The change of use of 144 Hither Green Lane
SE13 from C3 (dwellinghouse) to C2
(residential institutions), comprising supported
living care rooms for 8 individuals.

This presentation forms no part of a planning application
and is for information only.
END

1 of 14

Page 176

N
Site Location Plan

END

2 of 14

Page 177

Existing aerial view of property

3 3 of 14

Page 178

Proposed C2 Floor Plans

4 4 of 14

Page 179

Existing and Proposed site layout plan, refuse and cycle storage

5 5 of 14

Key planning considerations
•Principle of Development

•Standard of Residential Accommodation
•Design and impact to appearance of surrounding area
Page 180

•Impact on Living Conditions of Neighbours
•Impact on Highways

Key Planning Issues

END

6 of 14

END
Page 181

END

7 of 14

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 183

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Planning Committee B

Report title:

1 PERRY RISE, LONDON, SE23 2QX
Date: 12 April 2022
Key decision: No
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: Perry Vale
Contributors: Zahra Rad

Outline and recommendations
This repost sets out the officer recommendation of approval for the above proposal
subject to conditions and informatives.
The case has been brought before members for a decision as objections have been
received from seven neighbouring properties.

Page 201

Application details
Application reference number(s): DC/21/121794
Application Date:

04 May 2021

Applicant:

Mr Wong

Proposal:

Construction of a two bedroom single storey, partially subterranean
dwellinghouse to the side of 1 Perry Rise SE23, associated
landscaping work and new boundary treatment.

Background Papers:

Submitted drawings and documents

Designation:

PTAL 2
Local Open Space Deficiency
Perry Fields Article 4 Direction
Perry Fields Conservation Area
Not a Listed Building

Screening:

N/A

SITE AND CONTEXT
Site description and current use

1

The proposed site is the garden to the North side of No1 Perry Rise which sits at the
edge of Perry Fields Conservation Area. The main entrance and car access to No1 is
from Perry Rise. The side garden is a triangle shaped site and is located at the corner of
Perry Rise and Allenby Road.

2

The main building at No 1 Perry Rise is a two-storey property, which is situated at the
southern end of the triangular shaped site.
Character of the Area

3

The building at No1 Perry Rise, is a good example of a late 19th Century suburban
residential development, the central core of which comprises of a coherent group of
Victorian villas, with the exception of the post-war development at the junction of Garlies
Road and Perry Rise, the whole estate has remained virtually intact stylistically, with a
narrow range of houses typical of the 1870-80s.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 202

Figure 1 Site Location Plan

Figure 2 View from Perry Rise

Heritage/Archaeology

4

The site is located within The Perry Fields Conservation Area, which is subject to an
Article 4 Direction. It is not a listed building. It sits less than 100m to the south east of the
grade II listed former fire station.
Surrounding area

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 203

5

The surrounding area towards Perry Rise and Allenby Road is predominantly residential.
Perry Rise Baptist Church and parade of shops are to the north of the subject site near
Perry Vale roundabout.
Transport

6

The site has Local Open Space Deficiency and a PTAL rate of 2, based on a scale of 06b with 6b having the highest degree of accessibility to public transport.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
7

8

05/058839/X- The construction of a two storey, four-bedroom, detached house with
garage at 1 Perry Rise SE23. Refused 18/03/2005 for:


The proposal, through its inappropriate siting, bulk and mass would result in the
loss of openness at the junction of Allenby Road and Perry Rise, would fail to
respect the siting and design characteristics of neighbouring properties and would
detract from the character or appearance of the Perry fields Conservation Area
and the Perry Rise/Allenby Road streetscene, contrary to Policies URB 2 Urban
Design, URB 15 New Development, Changes of Use and Alterations to Buildings
in Conservation Areas, HSG 4 Layout and Design of New Residential
Development and HSG 6 Backland and in-fill Development in the adopted Unitary
Development Plan (July 2004).



The proposed crossover would be located too close to the junction of Perry Rise
and Allenby Road, detrimental to highway safety and would interfere with the
safe movement of traffic and pedestrians at this busy intersection, contrary to
Policies HSG 3 Residential Amenity, HSG 6 Backland and in-fill Development
and TRN 20 Improving Road Safety in the adopted Unitary Development Plan
(July 2004).

DC/06/062303/X- The construction of a two storey three bedroom detached house, at
the side of 1 Perry Rise SE23, together with the provision of a car parking space to the
front. Refused 13 Jun 2006 for:


The proposal, through its inappropriate siting, appearance and design would
result in the loss of openness at the junction of Allenby Road and Perry Rise,
would fail to respect the siting and design characteristics of neighbouring
properties and would detract from the character or appearance of the Perry fields
Conservation Area and the Perry Rise / Allenby Road street scene, contrary to
Policies URB 3 Urban Design, URB 16 New Development, Changes of Use and
Alterations to Buildings in Conservation Areas, HSG 5 Layout and Design of New
Residential Development and HSG 8 Backland and in-fill Development in the
adopted Unitary Development Plan (July 2004).



The proposal would restrict the outlook of habitable rooms on the northern
elevation of the existing dwelling on the site, creating a sense of enclosure for
occupants of this dwelling and does not comply with policies URB 3 (Urban
Design), HSG 5 (Layout and Design of New Residential Development) and HSG
8 (Backland and Infill Development) in the adopted Unitary Development Plan
(July 2004).

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 204

9

PRE/19/114409 - the construction of a two-storey new dwelling with new 2-bedroom at
the garden at 1 Perry Rise, SE23. Letter was sent on 11/12/2019.

10

PRE/20/116054 – Construction of a new two storey dwelling/house with 2-bedrooms at
the existing garden of 1 Perry Rise, SE23. Letter was sent on 06/04/2020.

11

PRE/20/116089 - Follow up concept meeting- the construction of two storey 2-bedroom
dwelling at the side garden of No 1 Perry Rise, SE23. Letter was sent on 19/06/2020.

CURRENT PLANNING APPLICATION
THE PROPOSALS
12

It is proposed to construct a two bedroom for 4-person single family dwellinghouse. The
new dwelling would be single storey, but split level, and partially subterranean.

13

The proposal site is on the triangular plot (side garden) to the north of the main building
at No 1 Perry Rise, which would be separated from the rest of No 1 by timber fences.
The access to the site would be from the existing walkway on Perry Rise.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 205

14

The proposed dwelling would have a GIA of approx. 70m2 with a flat green roof. The
lower level would consist of a reception and a kitchen. On the upper level, it is proposed
to create two bedrooms and a bathroom.

15

Steps would connect the entrance to the site with a sunken terrace and decking which
would be the main entrance of the proposed dwelling. A sunken terrace and decking
would also provide access to the rear of the proposed dwelling (dining room).

16

There is no provision for off-street car parking proposed.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 206

17

Details are also provided for cycle and refuse storage space which would be near the
entrance gate.

REVISIONS
18

Amendments were carried out to reduce the height of the boundary fence along Perry
rise, changing the boundary arrangement on Allenby Road, and give full and due
consideration to maintenance and arrangements of the trees within the site in order to
reduce the number of trees which would be removed.

CONSULTATION
PRE-APPLICATION ENGAGEMENT
19

The concept of design in the current proposal is materially different from the preapplications. The pre-application enquiries were for two storeys dwelling with a sloped
roof, and side dormers. The proposed design within this application is for a single storey
new dwelling with a flat roof. The proposed material has also been amended and
altered.

APPLICATION PUBLICITY
20

Site notices were displayed on 06 Jul 2021 and a press notice was published on 07 Jul
2021.

21

Letters were sent to residents and business in the surrounding area and the relevant
ward Councillors on 30 June 2021.

22

Seven responses were received, objecting to the proposal.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 207

Comments in objection
Comment

Para where
addressed

Impact on Trees and Visible Greenery
Removal of trees which are such an important part of the nature and
wildlife of our neighbourhood.

143

lose a lot of privacy and their sound/pollution barrier by the felling of the
other trees

134

Will impact the wildlife by removing the habitat

143

Urban Design
the proposed 1.8m high masonry boundary wall not in keeping with the
area

101

The proposed structure is of poor architectural value

100

dwelling to be hard-up against the pavement will lead to mission-creep

101

The appearance of this corner of the conservation area will also be
destroyed.

97

Materials: windows, slimline aluminium is definitely not in keeping with
the area

89, 91

Traffic
this will not be appropriate and will cause yet more congestion at the
end of Allenby Road

129

Living conditions of neighbours
form fails to mention that there is Right of Way running directly across
the proposed site, with access granted to both Flats 1 and 1a Perry
Rise,

114

23

A number of other comments were also raised as follows:

24

Inaccurate details, typo errors and unclear information in planning statement and
Heritage statement.

25

In addition, there is a comment on the impact on the structure of the existing building at
No 1. This is a matter of building control and Officers do not consider this to be a
material planning consideration

INTERNAL CONSULTATION
26

The following internal consultees were notified:

27

Conservation Officers: initially raised concerns. After the amendments the officer
confirmed no objection. See para 97 for further details.

28

Highways Team: No comments.

29

Ecological Regeneration Team: raised no objections

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 208

30

Tree Officer: raised objections (please see para 134)

POLICY CONTEXT
LEGISLATION
31

Planning applications are required to be determined in accordance with the statutory
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise (S38(6) Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and S70 Town & Country Planning Act 1990).

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
32

A material consideration is anything that, if taken into account, creates the real possibility
that a decision-maker would reach a different conclusion to that which they would reach
if they did not take it into account.

33

Whether or not a consideration is a relevant material consideration is a question of law
for the courts. Decision-makers are under a duty to have regard to all applicable policy
as a material consideration.

34

The weight given to a relevant material consideration is a matter of planning judgement.
Matters of planning judgement are within the exclusive province of the LPA. This report
sets out the weight Officers have given relevant material considerations in making their
recommendation to Members. Members, as the decision-makers, are free to use their
planning judgement to attribute their own weight, subject to aforementioned directions
and the test of reasonableness.

NATIONAL POLICY & GUIDANCE




National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Guidance 2014 onwards (NPPG)
National Design Guidance 2019 (NDG)

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
35

The Development Plan comprises:







London Plan (March 2021) (LP)
Core Strategy (June 2011) (CSP)
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014) (DMP)
Site Allocations Local Plan (June 2013) (SALP)
Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan (February 2014) (LTCP)

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 209

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE
36

Lewisham SPG/SPD:






Small Sites Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document (October 2021)
London Plan SPG/SPD:
Character and Context (June 2014)
The control of dust and emissions during construction and demolition (July 2014)

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
37

The main issues are:









Principle of Development
Housing and Standard of Accommodation
Urban Design and Impact on heritage assets
Impact on Adjoining Properties
Highway and Transportation
Sustainable Development
Natural Environment

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT
General policy

38

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at paragraph 11, states that there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development and that proposals should be
approved without delay so long as they accord with the development plan.

39

The London Plan (LP) sets out a sequential spatial approach to making the best use of
land set out in LPP GG2 (Parts A to C) that should be followed.

40

Lewisham Core Strategy Spatial Policy 1 ‘Lewisham Spatial Strategy’ that links to Core
Strategy Objective 2 ‘Housing Provision and Distribution’ supports the delivery of new
housing to meet local need. Housing is therefore a priority use for the borough.

41

The London Plan at LP H1 and table 4.1 identifies a total ten-year housing target for net
housing completions (2019/20 – 2028/29) of 16,670 for Lewisham, equating to an annual
target of 1,667. To help achieve this target, a strategic priority of the LP is to increase the
rate of housing delivery from small sites. LP H2 and table 4.2 sets a ten-year minimum
target of 3,790 homes on small sites for Lewisham. H2 states Boroughs should proactively support well-designed new homes on small sites (below 0.25ha). In doing so,
Boroughs should recognise that local character evolves over time and will need to
change in appropriate locations to accommodate additional housing on small sites.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 210

42

Section 72 of the of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
gives LPAs the duty to have special regard to the desirability of preserving or enhancing
the character or appearance of Conservation Area.

43

Relevant paragraphs of Chapter 16 of the NPPF set out how LPAs should approach
determining applications that relate to heritage assets. This includes giving great weight
to the asset’s conservation, when considering the impact of a proposed development on
the significance of a designated heritage asset. Further, that where a development
proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset that harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal.
Policy

44

Lewisham Core Strategy Spatial Policy 1 ‘Lewisham Spatial Strategy’ that links to Core
Strategy Objective 2 ‘Housing Provision and Distribution’ supports the delivery of new
housing to meet local need. Housing is therefore a priority use for the borough.

45

DM Policy 33 States that if a site is considered suitable for development, planning
permission will not be granted unless the proposed development is of the highest design
quality and relates successfully and is sensitive to the existing design quality of the
streetscape.

46

This policy implements Core Strategy Spatial Policy 5 (Areas of Stability and Managed
Change) and Core Strategy Policy 15 (High quality design for Lewisham) which ensure
that new development in residential areas will protect their existing character and
residential quality.

47

This includes the spaces between buildings which may be as important as the character
of the buildings themselves, and the size and proportions of adjacent buildings.
Development on these sites must meet the policy requirements of DM Policy 30 (Urban
design and local character), DM Policy 32 (Housing design, layout and space
standards), DM Policy 25 (Landscaping and trees) and DM Policy 36 ‘New development,
changes of use and alterations affecting designated heritage assets and their setting:
conservation areas, listed buildings, schedule of ancient monuments and registered
parks and gardens’.
Discussion

48

DM Policy 33 sets out that infill sites are defined as sites within street frontages such as
former builder’s yards, small workshops and garages, gaps in terraces and gardens to
the side of houses. Infill sites may present urban design problems in harmonising the
development with the existing built form. As an area of land with a street frontage, this
site represents an infill site with residential development potential in theory. The existing
gate door to the side would be improved to give access to the site.

49

In addition, the site due to its location, the collection of trees and its character, is
considered as an "amenity area" of landscaped open space attached to No 1, as
outlined by DM 33. This policy requires sufficient garden amenity areas with a readily
accessible, secure, private and usable external space for the existing and new dwelling.
The proposed development would have access to the road from the existing gate. It
would have a good proportion of usable suitable open space for the intended occupants,
without severely affecting the open space amenity of dwellings at No 1. The proposed
scheme would not result in any loss of privacy and amenity due to its position, and as
the relation with the road and the back of the property would remain the same as

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 211

existing, it is not considered to result in any loss of security for adjoining residential
development and private back garden, and would be in line with the test set out in Policy
DM 33.

50

In order for the Council to be able to support a new dwelling in this prominent location,
good quality design of the new development is a core planning principle and this is
identified within section 12 of the NPPF. Also core Strategy Policy 16 specifies that in
Conservation Areas permission will not be granted for developments if it is not
compatible with the special characteristics of the area or the host building, and
emphasises that the Council encourages the retention of architectural and landscaping
features such as front gardens when it is important to the area’s character.

51

DM Policy 36 summarises the steps the borough will take to manage changes to
Conservation area by identifying harm as a result of alteration or destruction of the asset
or development within its setting. It is therefore important that the proposed development
does not detract from the prominence of the corner site between Perry Rise and Allenby
Road. The application site, is regarded as triple-fronted, however as the proposed
detached single storey would be in lower level from the surrounding roads and buildings,
it is not considered that the proposed physical alterations would detract from the
prominence of the corner site between Perry Rise and Allenby Road.

52

The principle of development is assessed fully against DM33 and 36 as outlined above,
the acceptability of the proposed development is dependent upon its ability to meet the
policy tests.

53

The scheme would add one family residential dwelling to the housing market within the
borough. Although this contribution would be small, it would be in line with the current
annual target for LBL.
Principle of development conclusions

54

The proposal would result in the construction of a 2 bedroom for 4 people single family
house and would provide a family sized dwelling (two-bedroom) in a predominately
residential area and would result in an increase in the number of residential units.

55

The site will make a positive contribution towards meeting housing needs in a
sustainable urban location, it is considered suitable for development in principle but
whether or not the proposal is acceptable will depend upon it meeting the other tests for
infill development set out in DM33 and the other policies stated above

HOUSING
56

This section covers: (i) the contribution to housing supply, including density; (ii) the
dwelling size mix; and (iii) the standard of accommodation; proposed and its tenure split.
Contribution to housing supply
Policy

57

National and regional policy promotes the most efficient use of land.

58

NPPF para 130 sets an expectation that new development will be designed to create
places that amongst other things have a ‘high standard’ of amenity for existing and
future users. This is reflected in relevant policies of the London Plan, the Core Strategy

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 212

(CS P15), the Local Plan (DMP 32) and associated guidance (Housing SPD 2017, GLA;
Alterations and Extensions SPD 2019, LBL).

59

LP GG4, H2 and H3 seeks to increase the housing supply and to optimise housing
output.

60

Core Strategy Policy 15 states that the Council will apply national and regional policy
and guidance to ensure highest quality design and the protection or enhancement of the
historic and natural environment, which is sustainable, accessible to all, optimises the
potential of sites and is sensitive to the local context and responds to local character.
Policy DM 30 of the Development Management Local Plan states that the Council will
require all developments to attain a high standard of design.

Discussion
61

The proposed density is considered to be optimal for this site, as it is in a sustainable
urban location where the density values are within the guidelines set out in the London
Plan 2021. The proposed dwelling would contribute to the borough’s housing supply and
significant weight is given to this in assessment of the proposal.
Standard of accommodation
General Policy

62

NPPF para 130 sets an expectation that new development will be designed to create
places that amongst other things have a ‘high standard’ of amenity for existing and
future users. This is reflected in relevant policies of the London Plan (LP D6), the Core
Strategy (CS P15), the Local Plan (DMP 32) and associated guidance (Housing SPD
2017, GLA; Alterations and Extensions SPD 2019, LBL).

63

The main components of residential quality are: (i) space standards; (ii) outlook and
privacy; (iii) daylight and sunlight; (iv) noise and disturbance; (v) accessibility and
inclusivity. The Small Sites SPD has an Inside and Out Toolkit at section 15
Internal space standards
Policy

64

London Plan Policy D6 and DM Policy 32 seek to achieve housing developments with
the highest quality internally and externally in relation to their context
Discussion

65

The table below sets out proposed dwelling sizes.
Table [2]: Internal space standards – proposed v target

No of
No. of
1 storey
bedrooms persons dwelling
(Proposed
(target))
Dwelling Size
(2B4P)

Proposal

Two storey
dwelling
(proposed
(target))

Assessment

71

70

pass

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 213

Single storey, twobedroom dwelling for
4 persons

Bedroom 1

12m2

7.5 m2 and at least pass
2.15m wide
7.5m2 and is at pass
least 2.15m wide

Bedroom 2

12m2

Floor to ceiling
height

Between
2.5m and
2.8m

2.5m for at least
75%

pass

Built in storage

2.5 m2

2m²

pass

Private amenity
space

161m2

7.5 m2 and at least
2.15m wide

pass

66

The new dwelling would be a single storey 2b4p with an area of 71m2 and would provide
a slightly greater area than the minimum required Gross Internal Area of 70m2. In this
respect, the standard of amenity would be acceptable. The rooms are all of a good
layout, and the individual bedrooms meet the standards. The minimum floor to ceiling
height would be between 2.5m at the lower ground floor and 2.8m at the ground floor,
which meets the London Plan requirements.

67

The single storey dwelling would have windows to the east and west and would be a
dual aspect building.
External space standards
Policy

68

Standard 4.10.1 of the Mayor’s Housing SPG states that ‘a minimum of 5sqm of private
outdoor space should be provided for 1-2 person dwellings and an extra 1sqm should be
provided for each additional occupant’. LP emphasises this minimum dimensions and
states that the private open space must achieve a minimum depth and width of 1.5m.

69

Discussion

70

The area of the private rear garden for the new property is approximately 161m2 which
is more than the minimum standard indicated above and is acceptable.

71

The remaining private amenity spaces for Nos 1 and 1a Perry Rise would be 315m2
which is sufficient.
Outlook & Privacy
Policy

72

LP D6 seeks high quality internal and external design of housing development and
require developments to achieve ‘appropriate outlook, privacy and amenity”. Section D6
of the LP, seeks to maximise the provision of dual-aspect dwellings (i.e. with openable
windows on opposite elevations).

73

The Lewisham Residential Development Standards SPD also requires a flexible 21m
distance between windows on the main rear elevations of habitable rooms.

74

DMP 32(1) (b) expects new developments to provide a ‘satisfactory level’ of privacy,
outlook and natural lighting for its future residents.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 214

Discussion

75

The bedrooms would have a window each facing the sunken terrace and the back
garden. The kitchen and living room would have windows to the side of the garden and
no opening towards the existing building at No 1 or Allenby Road. Therefore, the
dwelling would benefit from good levels of privacy.
Daylight and Sunlight
Policy

76

PL D1 (6) requires development to achieve ‘appropriate outlook, privacy and amenity”.
DMP 32(1)(b) expects new developments to provide a ‘satisfactory level’ of natural
lighting for its future residents. The London Housing SPD and the Lewisham Alterations
and Extensions SPD promote access to sunlight and natural daylight as important
amenity factors, particularly to living spaces.
Discussion

77

Given the provided plans by the applicant, the direction of all the openings, the height of
the single storey building, and its layout, Officers consider the levels of daylight and
sunlight to be acceptable, in line with Policy DM32.

Housing conclusion
78

Overall, the proposed development would provide a good standard of residential
accommodation in compliance with LP D6 and DMP, and is supported.

URBAN DESIGN
General Policy

79

The NPPF at para 126 states the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process
should achieve.

80

LP 7.4 requires development to have regard to the form, function, and structure of an
area, place or street and the scale, mass and orientation of surrounding buildings. Policy
D4 and D6 of the LP emphasis that ‘The scrutiny of a proposed development’s design
should cover its layout, scale, height, density, land uses, materials, architectural
treatment, detailing and landscaping’.

81

CSP 12 seeks to protect the character, historic interest and amenity of, and within, open
spaces, as well as the effects of development outside their boundaries. CSP 15 outlines
how the Council will apply national and regional policy and guidance to ensure highest
quality design and the protection or enhancement of the historic and natural
environment, which is sustainable, accessible to all, optimises the potential of sites, is
sensitive to the local context, and responds to local character.

82

DM 36 echoes national and regional policy and summarises the steps the borough will
take to manage changes to Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings, Scheduled Ancient
Monuments and Registered Parks and Gardens so that their value and significance as
designated heritage assets is maintained and enhanced.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 215

83

Relevant regional and local policies are LP D3, D6 and D14 and DM Policy 31 and 36.
Discussion

84

DM 30 requires planning applications to demonstrate a site-specific response, which
creates a positive relationship with the existing townscape and relates to the urban
typology of the area. DM 36 in order to aims to manage new development affecting
designated heritage assets, encourages new development to incompatible with the
special characteristics of the area, its buildings, spaces, settings and plot coverage,
scale, form and materials

Appearance and character
85

The site due to its location, and the trees and greenery, has a predominant position in
relation to the conservation area. Along both roads, the surrounding area is
characterised by majority of two storey residential building to the south, west and east.
The highest building beguiling is the Baptist Church to the north west of the proposal
site.

86

The development would be single storey, with a sunken section in two parts with a flat
roof, which would be different from the two storey dwellings on these roads. Whilst, the
single storey would be behind the fences, and would not align with the established front
line of properties along Perry Rise, Nos 1 to 17, due to the topology of the area, massing
and as the retained and newly proposed trees and fences would obscure it along Perry
Rise, its visual impact on the streetscene would be minimal as only occasionally the top
of the flat roof single storey building would be visible from the main road.

87

The existing boundary wall along Perry Rise is timber fence, and along Allenby Road is a
combination of concrete base and timber fence on the top. The proposal is to replace the
fence with similar height of the existing ones, therefore, its visual impact in terms of
height and materials would be the same, however, as it would replace old timber fence in
a poor condition it would enhance the streetscape. As fences are part of character of the
road, a condition would be imposed to ensure high quality of boundary treatment.
Layout

88

The proposed development would be away from the main building at No 1, by 4.9m. The
single storey building would be in two parts with approximately 7.5m frontage on Perry
Rise behind fencing. Both parts would be sunken in the ground, the part near Allenby
Road would be 1.3m lower than the current garden level and the other part would be
sunken by 0.8m. according to the plans and submitted documents, five trees would be
removed including T8 and T7 (as indicated on PL.06 Rev D) along Allenby Road, and
three would be replaced (for trees please see para 134).
Detailing and Materials

89

The facing materials would be bricks to be complementary to the existing brickwork of
No 1. The south elevation towards No 1 would be a green wall. The windows would be
slim aluminium frame in grey, and the doors would be solid timber.

90

The roof would be green roof with extensive planting. The boundary of the proposed
development along Allenby Road would be timber fencing on concrete blocks similar to
the existing. The shared fence with No 1 would be in timber.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 216

91

Details of the materials would be required to be submitted as part of the condition for all
of the external materials to ensure their quality.
Impact on Heritage Assets
Policy

92

Heritage assets may be designated—including Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings,
Scheduled Monuments, Registered Parks and Gardens, archaeological remains—or
non-designated.

93

Section 72 of the of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
gives LPAs the duty to have special regard to the desirability of preserving or enhancing
the character or appearance of Conservation Areas.

94

Relevant paragraphs of Chapter 16 of the NPPF set out how LPAs should approach
determining applications that relate to heritage assets. This includes giving great weight
to the asset’s conservation, when considering the impact of a proposed development on
the significance of a designated heritage asset. Further, that where a development
proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset that harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal.

95

CSP 16 ensures the value and significance of the borough’s heritage assets are among
things enhanced and conserved in line with national and regional policy.

96

DMP 36 echoes national and regional policy and summarises the steps the borough will
take to manage changes to Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings, Scheduled Ancient
Monuments and Registered Parks and Gardens so that their value and significance as
designated heritage assets is maintained and enhanced.
Discussion

97

The site is located in Perry Fields Conservation Area, consisting of a coherent suburban
development of villas dating to 1870-80s. The application site is located on the North
West edge of the Conservation Area on a corner plot facing Perry Rise and with its side
fronting Allenby Road, which is visible from both roads. The distinguishing character of
this corner is the greenery behind a plain timer fence. The trees have large canopy and
as one of the original houses in the conservation area it makes a positive contribution to
Perry Fields Conservation area but there are no TPOs.

98

Conservation Officer also has highlighted that the front, side and rear garden of 1 Perry
Rise is visible from Allenby and Perry Rise and contributes to the CA by virtue of
illustrating the spaciousness of the gardens; as one of a small number of greened
spaces at this edge of the conservation area. The proposal would remove five of the
trees along Allenby Road and in the back garden, including a mature tree. Replacement
of all 5 would be secured by a condition (see para 148)

99

Although, the loss of the trees is regrettable, as it would alter the visual landscape, the
trees would be replaced and given the proposed green roof, the impact is mitigated and
the Conservation Officers consider that this arrangement would cause no harm to the
NDHA nor conservation area and is acceptable.

100

The partially subterranean nature of the building would assist to minimise its visibility and
impact on Non-Designated Heritage Asset at No 1 Perry Rise and the wider

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 217

conservation area. This is successful in making it have less visual impact on the
entrance to the Conservation Area. The green roofs will also mitigate the presence of
built form in the garden, as will the green southern wall on the southern elevation of the
proposed scheme.

101

Conservation Officers were concerned about the proposed brick wall as part of the
boundary along Allenby Road, (which was also mentioned in an objection), would harm
the character of the conservation area. The amendments addressed the concerns, and
timber fences which could be acceptable along the side (fronting Allenby Road) for
privacy purposes are proposed. At the front (Perry Rise frontage) the fences were
lowered, similar to that existing at No 1. In additions, taller hedge would be provided
behind the fences for further privacy as desired. The amended boundary treatment
would be responsive to the conservation area and is acceptable.

102

Concerns were also raised regarding the remaining proportion of the back garden for the
existing property at No 1. Consequently, details were provided demonstrating an
acceptable proportion would remain for the property at No 1. Whilst the proposed
development would result in, a smaller garden for neighbours living at No 1, in
comparison with the existing arrangement officers consider that the reduction would
cause no harm to the architectural integrity of the property at No 1 nor to the character of
the conservation area.

103

The proposal will not harm the setting of the grade II listed building nearby.

104

Given the above, the proposed scheme, for a single storey sunken 2-bedroom family
house, with landscaping and replacement of boundary walls, due to its bulk and height
would not have a significant visual impact on the appearance of the surrounding area
and the conservation area. The removal of 5 trees and replacement of them would have
only minor visual impact therefore, on balance, the proposal is assessed to be
acceptable given that the conservation officer has identified no harm to the conservation
area and NDHA. Officers have also given weight to the positive impact on the
streetscene of Allenby Road and Perry Rise due to the upgrading of existing fences.
Moreover, the proposed green roof with the replacement of trees would preserve the
green character and appearance of the proposal site. Therefore, the scheme is
considered acceptable as it would not bring any harm to the integrity of Perry Field
conservation area and the setting of the NDHA.
Summary

105

Officers, having regard to the statutory duties in respect of listed buildings in the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and the relevant
paragraphs in the NPPF in relation to conserving the historic environment, are satisfied
the proposal would result in no harm to the character and appearance of the Perry Fields
Conservation Area and the setting of the NDHA.

Urban design conclusion
106

Subject to the final details being secured by condition the proposed development is
considered to have an acceptable impact on the appearance of the neighbouring
properties, the character of the streetscene and the conservation area and is acceptable.

LIVING CONDITIONS OF NEIGHBOURS
General Policy

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 218

107

NPPF para 126 and 130 sets an expectation that new development will be designed to
create places that amongst other things have a ‘high standard’ of amenity for existing
and future users. At para 185 it states decisions should ensure that new development is
appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative
effects) of pollution on health and living conditions.

108

This is reflected in relevant policies of the London Plan (D3), the Core Strategy (CP15),
the Local Plan (DMP 31) and associated guidance (Alterations and Extensions SPD
2019).

109

The Council has published the Alterations and Extensions SPD (2019) which establishes
generally acceptable standards relating to these matters (see below), although site
context will mean these standards could be tightened or relaxed accordingly.
Discussion

110

The new dwelling would not have any immediate adjacent neighbours to the rear and
northern side. The only neighbours would be flats at No 1 Perry Rise.

111

The new building would be away from No 1 by 4.9m, across a communal. Concerns
were raised by neighbours regarding the impact of the new development on windows to
the side at the ground floor of No 1. The new building would be partially lower than the
ground floor at No 1 by a minimum of 1.7m and would have a green wall to the side.
Although, the arrangement would change the existing side view of No 1 to the side
garden, it should be noted that changes to view is not a planning consideration, and by
providing green walls and green roofs, given that the proposed development is
considered not to be overbearing in terms of bulk and size it is not expected to create
sense of enclosure, or have impact on sunlight and daylight.

112

No opening would be to the side; therefore, it is not considered to have any
unacceptable impact on privacy of the neighbours at lower flat at No 1.

113

The new development is not expected to have any amenity impact on the upper floor
occupiers at No 1. The changes to the side garden would be mitigated by proposed
intensive green roofs.

114

Objections were raised regarding the communal access to the back garden of flats at No
1, consequently, amendments were carried out and the 1.9m wide walkway would be
retained as communal access.

115

A level of disruption is to be expected whilst building works are ongoing, and this cannot
be avoided and is not a material planning consideration. A construction management
plan would be submitted, which details how levels of disruption will be minimised. The
Management plan shall also demonstrate that deliveries will take place outside of school
peak arrival and departure times, in the interests of pedestrian safety. This would be
subject to a condition to ensure it is adhered to during all construction works.

Impact on neighbours conclusion
116

The proposed development, would not have any adverse impact on the amenities of its
neighbours, in terms of creating a sense of enclosure, impact on day light/ sun light and
impact on privacy and is therefore acceptable.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 219

TRANSPORT IMPACT
General policy

117

LP 6.1 sets out the Mayor’s strategic approach to transport which aims to encourage the
closer integration of transport and development. This is to be achieved by encouraging
patterns and nodes of development that reduce the need to travel, especially by car;
seeking to improve the capacity and accessibility of public transport, walking and cycling;
supporting measures that encourage shifts to more sustainable modes and appropriate
demand management; and promoting walking by ensuring an improved urban realm.

118

LP 6.13 seeks to ensure a balance is struck to prevent excessive car parking provision
that can undermine cycling, walking and public transport use. Through the use of travel
plans, it aims to reduce reliance on private means of transport.

119

CSP 14 ‘Sustainable movement and transport’ promotes more sustainable transport
choices through walking, cycling and public transport. It adopts a restricted approach on
parking to aid the promotion of sustainable transport and ensuring all new and existing
developments of a certain size have travel plans.

Local Transport Network
Discussion

120

The application site is in an area with a PTAL rate of 2, but there is a bus stops close to
the site (380m away) and the Forest Hill Train Station is 15 minutes away on foot.

Servicing and refuse
Policy

121

DM Policy 29 requires new development to have no negative impact upon the safety and
suitability of access and servicing.

122

Standard 22 and 23 of the London Plan Housing SPG provides guidance on refuse for
new residential development and references the British Standard BS5906:2005.
Discussion

123

An area is shown on plan for the storage of refuse and recycling at the front gate which
would be by the main entrance. The scheme proposes both refuse, and recycle waste
bins. A condition is proposed to ensure the provision of this storage area prior to
occupation of the development.

124

It is noted that the new arrangement of the waste recycling bins related to flats at No 1
has shown to the frontcourt of No 1. Officers raise no objection to this arrangement.
Car Parking
Policy

125

London Plan under sub-paragraph 6.3, Core Strategy Policy 14 and DM Policy 29
supports reducing the provision of on-site car parking where there are alternative
methods of travel.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 220

Discussion

126

The scheme would be car free, and there is no proposed provision for car parking as
part of this application. The proposal site is within PTAL 2; and there is on-street parking
available along Perry Rise and Allenby Road. Officers consider a car park free approach
to be acceptable.
Cycle Parking
Policy

127

Core Strategy Policy 14 states that Cycle parking will be required for new development
and TfL guidelines will be used to assess provision. Design will need to incorporate safe
and secure cycle storage.
Discussion

128

Two cycle spaces would be located within the entrance gate as has been shown on the
plans and in Design and Access statement. A condition is proposed to ensure the
provision of these spaces prior to occupation of the development.

Transport impact conclusion
129

The proposal would have an acceptable impact on transport in terms of car park free
approach, encouraging sustainable modes of movement and accommodating the sites
servicing needs, subject to conditions and a planning obligation.

NATURAL ENVIRONMENT
General Policy

130

Contributing to conserving and enhancing the natural environment and reducing
pollution is a core principle for planning.

131

The NPPF and NPPG promote the conservation and enhancement of the natural
environment (chapter 15) and set out several principles to support those objectives.

132

NPPF para 180 states decisions should ensure that new development is appropriate for
its location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution
on health, living conditions and the natural environment, as well as the sensitivity of the
site or wider area to impacts that could arise from the development.

133

LP G6 and G7 sets out the Mayor of London’s vision for Green Infrastructure as a
multifunctional network that brings a wide range of benefits including among other things
biodiversity, adapting to climate change, water management and individual and
community health and well-being.
Discussion

134

Ecology and biodiversity

135

PLPP G6 (under sub-paragraph D) states that ‘Development proposals should manage
impacts on biodiversity and aim to secure net biodiversity gain’.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 221

136

Discussion

137

The existing soft landscaping arrangement would be retained to a large extent, around
the proposed dwelling/house. No alteration would be made to the remaining open
amenity area to the front, side and rear of No 1. The open space around the new singles
storey dwelling would have a combination of arrangements in different levels, greenery,
flowerbeds, and green wall/green roof. According to the tree report, native trees and
hedges would be planted. The Ecology Officers raised no objection to new arrangement,
however, in order to minimise the potential impact of the proposal on the ecology a
condition would be added in regards to details of soft landscaping.

138

Trees
Policy

139

NPPF para 174 expects development to contribute to and enhance the natural and local
environment.

140

CSP 12 seeks to protect trees and prevent the loss of trees of amenity value, with
replacements where loss does occur.

141

DMP 25 sets out the required information for landscaping plans and their management,
along with the information required to support development affecting trees.
Discussion

142

The Council’s Tree Officer raised objections to the proposed development, the officer’s
main concern is that the proposal ignored the significance of landscape and amenity
features of trees on the side, and the contribution of the large canopy to the character of
the conservation area.

143

Ten number of trees are identified on the site, 6 No of trees under category C, 3 No of
trees under category U and one tree under category B. It is acknowledged that the
removal of 5 category ‘C’ trees identified as T4, T6, T7, T8 and T9 along Allenby Road
(3) and within the site (2) would alter the streetscape and the green introduction to the
corner of conservation area.

144

The scheme has proposed to plant 3 Silver Birch along Allenby Road. However, as
retaining of the existing trees of value is a requirement by Policy G7 Trees and
woodlands, the 5 removed trees should be replaced, and a condition would be added to
secure adequate replacement.

145

There is also one category B tree, and one category C tree which would be near the
construction which has been identified by the report, and should be given suitable
protection throughout the length of the development. To secure the protection of roots of
the trees during the construction period, conditions will be added.

146

Furthermore, as none of the trees on the site have TPOs, and No 1 Perry Rise is
considered a non-designated heritage asset, and is not a Site of Importance to Nature
Conservation and the proposed development does not detract from the prominence of
the corner site between Perry Rise and Allenby Road on balance, in this instance the
proposal would not have negative impact on natural environment. It is noted that the
proposal would contribute to meeting the Boroughs identified housing need in a

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 222

predominately residential and sustainable location, which carries substantial material
planning weight and is therefore considered to be acceptable.

147

As mentioned above, whilst it is acknowledged that the alteration to the trees along
Allenby Road would have impact on the character of the area, the Conservation Officer,
does not consider this impact too adverse and removed trees would be replaced –
secured by condition- no objections are raised to the proposed development as a result
of tree removals and replacement.

148

The Tree officer had further indicated that the approach of the applicant in filling the
application form, was not satisfactory and highlighted discrepancies within the report and
the drawings, on the details and numbers of trees. Amendments were carried out and
the report and drawings were corrected. A condition would be secured to ensure the
number, location and type of the trees would be retained. It is noted that the applicant
was advised at pre-application stage that the impact of trees is one of the main planning
considerations.

Living roofs

149

The flat roofs at the single storey would be green/living to promote biodiversity, minimize
the visual impact and help with air pollution, which is considered acceptable for a
scheme of this nature. The final details of the living roof are to be secured by condition.
Subject to details, the living roofs proposed would be acceptable, and would help to
ensure the site contributes positively to urban greening.
Conclusion

150

On balance, Officers consider that the proposed development would not adversely
impact the green spaces, trees, and natural diversity and the proposed scheme is
considered to be acceptable.

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS
151

Under Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), a local
finance consideration means:



a grant or other financial assistance that has been, or will or could be, provided to
a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown; or

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 223



sums that a relevant authority has received, or will or could receive, in payment of
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

152

The weight to be attached to a local finance consideration remains a matter for the
decision maker.

153

The CIL is therefore a material consideration.

154

CIL is chargeable on the net additional floor space of all new development. An
estimation which may change once it will be reviewed the case in detail for Borough CIL
is £6,281.08, and Mayor CIL is £4,150.00. The total estimated CIL is £10,431.08. This
would be confirmed at a later date in a Liability Notice.

EQUALITIES CONSIDERATIONS
155

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the equality
duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, disability,
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

156

In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its function, have due regard to the
need to:



eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act;



advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not;



foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

157

The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is a
matter for the decision maker, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and
proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination,
advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations.

158

The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical Guidance on
the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010
Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council must
have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is drawn
to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance
also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have
statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical
guidance can be found at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publicationdownload/technical-guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england

159

The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five guides
for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:



The essential guide to the public sector equality duty

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 224






Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making
Engagement and the equality duty
Equality objectives and the equality duty
Equality information and the equality duty

160

The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including the
general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what public
authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are legally required, as well as
recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on
key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources are available
at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equalityduty-guidance

161

The planning issues set out above do not include any factors that relate specifically to
any of the equalities categories set out in the Act, and therefore it has been concluded
that there is no impact on equality.

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS
162

In determining this application, the Council is required to have regard to the provisions of
the Human Rights Act 1998. Section 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 prohibits
authorities (including the Council as local planning authority) from acting in a way which
is incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. ‘’Convention’’ here
means the European Convention on Human Rights, certain parts of which were
incorporated into English law under the Human Rights Act 1998. Various Convention
rights are likely to be relevant including:




Article 8: Respect for your private and family life, home and correspondence
Protocol 1, Article 1: Right to peaceful enjoyment of your property

163

This report has outlined the consultation that has been undertaken on the planning
application and the opportunities for people to make representations to the Council as
Local Planning Authority.

164

Members need to satisfy themselves that the potential adverse amenity impacts are
acceptable and that any potential interference with the above Convention Rights will be
legitimate and justified. Both public and private interests are to be taken into account in
the exercise of the Local Planning Authority’s powers and duties. Any interference with a
Convention right must be necessary and proportionate. Members must therefore,
carefully consider the balance to be struck between individual rights and the wider public
interest.

165

This application has the legitimate aim of providing a loft extension. The rights potentially
engaged by this application, including Article 8 and Protocol 1 are not considered to be
unlawfully interfered with by this proposal.

CONCLUSION
166

This application has been considered in the light of policies set out in the development
plan and other material considerations, including the recently adopted Small Sites SPD.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 225

167

In urban design terms, the proposed development is considered to be high quality
proposal. It is of an appropriate height and scale, and would use suitable materials; no
objection has been raised by Conservation Officers, and therefore it is considered that
the proposed scheme would result in no harm on the character and appearance of the
Perry Field Conservation Area and the setting of the NDHA.

168

In terms of standard of accommodation, the development would fulfil the requirement
and is considered acceptable.

169

Regarding the concerns of the tree officers, given that the number of trees to be
replaced would be secured by a condition and the greater weight given to the positive
contribution that the proposal makes to the Housing target of Borough, and as there are
no objections from the conservation officer, on balance the proposed development is
supported.

170

Overall, the contribution to housing supply, efficient use of land, the high-quality design
of the proposed dwellinghouses with no adverse impact on natural environment,
highways and residential neighbouring amenities, the application is recommended for
approval subject to the conditions set out in section below.

RECOMMENDATION
171

That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to the following
conditions and informatives:

CONDITIONS
1)

FULL PLANNING PERMISSION TIME LIMIT
The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than
the expiration of three years beginning with the date on which the permission is
granted.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2)

APPROVED PLANS
The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the application
plans, drawings and documents hereby approved and as detailed below:
Design & Access Statement 8th May 2021; Design & Access Statement 8th May
2021 (received 17 May 2021)
PL.01; PL.02 Rev D; PL.03 Rev B; PL.04 Rev B; PL.05 Rev B; PL.06 Rev D;
PL.07 Rev D; PL.08 Rev B; PL.09 Rev B; PL.10 Rev B; PL.11 Rev B; PL.12 Rev
B; Tree Development and Arboricultural Method Statement (received 22 Dec
2021)

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 226

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved documents, plans and drawings submitted with the application and is
acceptable to the local planning authority.
3)

CONSTRUCTION LOGISTICS MANAGEMENT PLAN
No development shall commence on site until such time as a Construction
Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The plan shall cover:(a) Dust mitigation measures.
(b) The location and operation of plant and wheel washing facilities
(c) Details of best practical measures to be employed to mitigate noise and
vibration arising out of the construction process
(d) Details of construction traffic movements including cumulative impacts
which shall demonstrate the following:(i) Rationalise travel and traffic routes to and from the site.
(ii) Provide full details of the number and time of construction vehicle
trips to the site with the intention and aim of reducing the impact of
construction related activity.
(iii) Measures to deal with safe pedestrian movement.
(e) Security Management (to minimise risks to unauthorised personnel).
(f) Details of the training of site operatives to follow the Construction
Management Plan requirements and any Environmental Management
Plan requirements (delete reference to Environmental Management Plan
requirements if not relevant).
Reason: In order that the local planning authority may be satisfied that the
demolition and construction process is carried out in a manner which will minimise
possible noise, disturbance and pollution to neighbouring properties and to
comply with Policy SI1 Improving air quality and Policy T7 Deliveries, servicing
and construction of the London Plan (March 2021).).

4)

ARBORICULTURAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
No development shall take place until a full Arboricultural Impact Assessment
(AIA) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. Such study shall consider the exact relationship between the proposed
development and any existing trees on the site, in line with the recommendations
of BS 5837:2012 (Trees in Relation to design, demolition and construction Recommendations).
The AIA should include survey data on all trees on the site, with reference to the
British Standard and assess all interfaces between the development and trees,
their root zones and their crowns and branches, i.e.:•
•

Protection of trees within total exclusion zones.
The location and type of protective fencing.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 227

•
•
•
•

•
•

The location of the main sewerage and water services in relation to
trees.
The location of all other underground services, i.e. gas, electricity and
telecommunications.
The locations of roads, pathways, parking and other hard surfaces in
relation to tree root zones.
Provision of design and engineering solutions to the above, for
example, thrust boring for service runs; the use of porous surfaces for
roads etc. and the remedial work to maintain tree health such as
irrigation and fertilisation systems; the use of geotextile membranes to
control root spread.
Suggested locations for the site compound, office, parking and site
access.
The replacement planting necessary to compensate for any necessary
losses.

(b) Drawings should also be submitted to show the location of any protective
fencing, site compounds, means of access etc. and the study should contain a
method statement for arboricultural works which would apply to the site.
(c) The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
AIS.
Reason: To safeguard the health and safety of trees during building operations
and the visual amenities of the area generally and to comply with Policy 12 Open
space and environmental assets of the Core Strategy (June 2011) and
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014) DM Policy 25
Landscaping and trees, and DM Policy 30 Urban design and local character.

5)

TREE PROTECTION
No development shall commence on site until a Tree Protection Plan (TPP) has
been submitted to and approved by the Council. The TPP should follow the
recommendations set out in BS 5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition
and construction – Recommendations). The TPP should clearly indicate on a
dimensioned plan superimposed on the building layout plan and in a written
schedule details of the location and form of protective barriers to form a
construction exclusion zone, the extent and type of ground protection measures,
and any additional measures needed to protect vulnerable sections of trees and
their root protection areas where construction activity cannot be fully or
permanently excluded.
Reason: To safeguard the health and safety of trees during building operations
and the visual amenities of the area generally and to comply with Policy 12 Open
space and environmental assets of the Core Strategy (June 2011), and DM Policy
25 Landscaping and trees and DM Policy 30 Urban design and local character of
the Development Management Local Plan (November 2014).

6)

PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 228

No extensions or alterations to the building(s) hereby approved, whether or not
permitted under Article 3 to Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking, re-enacting
or modifying that Order) of that Order, shall be carried out without the prior written
permission of the local planning authority.
Reason: In order that, in view of the nature of the development hereby permitted,
the local planning authority may have the opportunity of assessing the impact of
any further development and to comply with Policy 15 High quality design for
Lewisham of the Core Strategy (June 2011).
7)

SCHEDULE Of MATERIALS
(a)
Notwithstanding the details hereby approved, no development above
ground level shall commence of the development until detailed plans at a scale of
1:10 and 1:20 showing windows/doors/terraces/entrances important joints/any
other important features as required on a site-by-site basis have been submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority
(b)
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.
Reason: In order that the local planning authority may be satisfied as to the
detailed treatment of the proposal and to comply with Policy 15 High quality
design for Lewisham of the Core Strategy (June 2011) and Development
Management Local Plan (November 2014) DM Policy 30 Urban design and local
character.

8)

HARD LANDSCAPING
(a)
Prior to above ground works/ superstructure works drawings showing
hard landscaping of any part of the site not occupied by buildings (including
details of the permeability of hard surfaces) shall be submitted and approved in
writing by the local planning authority.
(b)
All hard landscaping works which form part of the approved scheme
under part (a) shall be completed prior to occupation of the development.
Reason: In order that the local planning authority may be satisfied as to the
details of the proposal and to comply with Policies SI 12 Flood risk management
in the London Plan (March 2021), Policy 15 High quality design for Lewisham of
the Core Strategy (June 2011) and Development Management Local Plan
(November 2014) Policy 25 Landscaping and trees, and DM Policy 30 Urban
design and local character.

9)

SOFT LANDSCAPING
(a) A scheme of soft landscaping (including details of any trees or hedges to
be retained and proposed plant numbers, species, location), also,
should include a number of native trees of moderate size when fully
mature along with native hedging and shrubs to soften the
development and provide wildlife habitat. A detail of the management
and maintenance of the landscaping for a period of five years shall

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 229

(b)

be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority prior to construction of the above ground works.
All planting, seeding or turfing shall be carried out in the first planting and
seeding seasons following the completion of the development, in
accordance with the approved scheme under part (a). Any trees or
plants which within a period of five years from the completion of the
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or
diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of
similar size and species.

Reason: In order that the local planning authority may be satisfied as to the
details of the proposal and to comply with Policy G7 Trees and woodlands, Core
Strategy Policy 12 Open space and environmental assets, Policy 15 High quality
design for Lewisham of the Core Strategy (June 2011), and DM Policy 25
Landscaping and trees and DM Policy 30 Urban design and local character of the
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014).
10)

Replacement of Trees
A) Details for the replacements of the 5 removed trees, including the location,
species, size of new trees, tree pits, and management and maintenance of
the trees for the first 5 years shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the local planning authority prior to construction of the above ground works
B) The planting shall be carried out in the first planting season following the
completion of the development, in accordance with the approved scheme
under part (A). Any trees which within a period of five years from the
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously
damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with
others of similar size and species.
Reason: In order that the local planning authority may be satisfied as to the
details of the proposal and to comply with Policy G7 Trees and woodlands, Core
Strategy Policy 12 Open space and environmental assets, Policy 15 High quality
design for Lewisham of the Core Strategy (June 2011), and DM Policy 25
Landscaping and trees and DM Policy 30 Urban design and local character of the
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014).

11)

BOUNDARY TREATMENTS AND GATES
(a)
Details of the proposed boundary treatments including any gates, walls
or fences shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority prior to construction of the above ground works.
(b)
The approved boundary treatments shall be implemented prior to
occupation of the buildings and retained in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure that the boundary treatment is of adequate design in the
interests of visual and residential amenity and to comply with Policy 15 High
quality design for Lewisham of the Core Strategy (June 2011) and DM Policy 30
Urban design and local character of the Development Management Local Plan
(November 2014).

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 230

12)

LIVING ROOF
(a)
The development shall be constructed with a biodiversity living roof laid
out in accordance with plan no PL.07 Rev D hereby approved and maintained
thereafter.
(b)
The living roofs shall not be used as an amenity or sitting out space of
any kind whatsoever and shall only be used in the case of essential maintenance
or repair, or escape in case of emergency.
(c)
Evidence that the roof has been installed in accordance with (a) shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the
first occupation of the development hereby approved.
Reason: To comply with Policy G5 Urban greening in the London Plan (2021) ,
Policy 10 managing and reducing flood risk and Policy 12 Open space and
environmental assets of the Core Strategy (June 2011), and DM Policy 24
Biodiversity, living roofs and artificial playing pitches of the Development
Management Local Plan (November 2014).

13)

FLAT ROOF
Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that
Order), the use of the flat roof on the building(s) hereby approved shall be as set
out in the application and no development or the formation of any door providing
access to the roof shall be carried out, nor shall the roof area be used as a
balcony, roof garden or similar amenity area.
Reason: In order to prevent any unacceptable loss of privacy to adjoining
properties and the area generally and to comply with Policy 15 High Quality
design for Lewisham of the Core Strategy (June 2011), and DM Policy 31
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings including residential extensions,
DM Policy 32 Housing design, layout and space standards, and DM Policy 33
Development on infill sites, back gardens and amenity areas of the Development
Management Local Plan (November 2014).

14)

REFUSE AND RECYCLING
(a)
No development above ground level shall commence until details of
proposals for the storage of refuse and recycling facilities for each residential and
commercial unit hereby approved, have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority.
(b)
The facilities as approved under part (a) shall be provided in full prior to
occupation of the development and shall thereafter be permanently retained and
maintained.
Reason: In order that the local planning authority may be satisfied with the
provisions for recycling facilities and refuse storage in the interest of safeguarding
the amenities of neighbouring occupiers and the area in general, in compliance

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 231

with Development Management Local Plan (November 2014) DM Policy 30 Urban
design and local character and Core Strategy Policy 13 Addressing Lewisham
waste management requirements (2011).
15)

CYCLE PARKING
(a)
Prior to first occupation, full details of the cycle parking facilities shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
(b)
No development shall commence on site until the full details of the cycle
parking facilities have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority.
(c)
All cycle parking spaces shall be provided and made available for use
prior to occupation of the development and maintained thereafter.
Reason: In order to ensure adequate provision for cycle parking and to comply
with Policy T5 cycling and Table 10.2 of the London Plan (March 2021) and Policy
14: Sustainable movement and transport of the Core Strategy (2011).

INFORMATIVES
1)

Positive and Proactive Statement: The Council engages with all applicants in a
positive and proactive way through specific pre-application enquiries and the
detailed advice available on the Council’s website. On this particular application,
positive discussions took place which resulted in further information being
submitted.

2)

As you are aware the approved development is liable to pay the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) which will be payable on commencement of the
development. An 'assumption of liability form' must be completed and before
development commences you must submit a 'CIL Commencement Notice form' to
the council. You should note that any claims for relief, where they apply, must be
submitted and determined prior to commencement of the development. Failure to
follow the CIL payment process may result in penalties. More information on CIL
is available at: - http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/myservices/planning/apply-forplanning-permission/application-process/Pages/Community-InfrastructureLevy.aspx

3)

You are advised that all construction work should be undertaken in accordance
with the "London Borough of Lewisham Code of Practice for Control of Pollution
and Noise from Demolition and Construction Sites" available on the Lewisham
web page.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 232

BACKGROUND PAPERS
172

Submission Drawings and Photos

173

Submission Technical Reports and Documents

REPORT AUTHOR AND CONTACT
174

Zahra Rad (Planning Officer)
Email: Zahra.Rad@lewisham.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 831 49153

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 233

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 235

This page is intentionally left blank

Land at the side of No 1
PERRY RISE, LONDON, SE23
Page 237

Construction of a two bedroom single storey house sunken
into the side garden at 1 Perry Rise SE23, and associate
landscaping work (the title is amended on 31st August 2021).

Application Ref No. DC/21/121794

This presentation forms no part of a planning application
and is for information only.
END

1 of X

Site Location Plan

Page 238

END

2 of X

Site Location Arial- Context

Page 239

END

3 of X

Views from Perry Rise
Views from Allenby Road
Page 240

END

4 of X

4

Proposed Floor Plans

Page 241

END

5 of X

Trees on the site

Page 242

END

6 of X

Proposed Roof

Page 243

END

7 of X

Proposed Elevation
Front
Rear

Page 244

END

8 of X

8

Proposed Side Elevations

Page 245

END

9 of X

Key Planning Considerations

Page 246

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Principle of Development
Housing
Standard of Accommodation
Urban Design and Heritage Assets
Impact on Adjoining Properties
Highway and Transportation
Natural Environment and Trees

END

10 of X

10

Streetscene

Page 247

END

11 of X

Impact on Adjoining Properties

Page 248

END

12 of X

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 249

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Planning Committee B

153 SYDENHAM PARK ROAD, LONDON, SE26 4LP.
Date: 12 April 2022
Key decision: No.
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: Sydenham
Contributors: Estelle Pengelly

Outline and recommendations
This report sets out the officer’s recommendation of approval for this planning application,
subject to conditions. The case has been brought before members for a decision as one
objection was received from the Sydenham Society.

Page 267

Application details
Application reference number(s): DC/21/124773
Application Date:

15 December 2021

Applicant:

Kalaitzaki

Proposal:

Construction of a hip to gable extension and roof extension in the
rear roof slope incorporating a Juliet balcony at 153 Sydenham
Park Road SE26, together with the installation of 3 roof lights in the
front roof slope.

Background Papers:

Submission Drawings
Consultee Responses

Designation:

PTAL 3

Screening:

N/A

SITE AND CONTEXT
Site description and current use
This application relates to an end of terrace property on the southern side of Sydenham
Park Road at No. 153. The property benefits from a back garden and a single storey rear
extension. The property is not located within a conservation area, nor is it close to a
listed building. The property adjoins Cobb’s Corner Conservation Area at the rear.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 268

Figure 1: Site Plan

Character of area
The surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature comprising of terraced and
semi-detached properties.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 269

Figure 2: Aerial View

Surrounding area
The application site’s adjoining neighbour (at No. 155) has a hip to gable and rear roof
extension, similar to the current proposal for the application site. The neighbouring
property also adjoins Cobb’s Corner Conservation Area at the rear.
Transport
The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) score of 3 on a scale of 1-6b,
1 being lowest and 6b the highest.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
DC/14/090128 – The construction of a single-storey extension to the rear of 153
Sydenham Park Road SE26. Outcome: Granted.

CURRENT PLANNING APPLICATION
THE PROPOSALS
The proposal is for the construction of a hip to gable roof extension and rear roof
extension at 153 Sydenham Park Road SE26. The proposed rear roof extension would

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 270

be 4m deep, 5.6m wide and 2.9m high. The proposal also includes the installation of 3
rooflights in the front roof slope and a new window in the side elevation at loft level.
The proposal includes the replacement of the existing roof tiles with slate tiles to the rear
and front roof slope. The materials for the dormer would be slate tiles to the walls and an
anthracite grey window and composite sliding door with a glass Juliette balcony to rear
elevation. The proposed window in the side elevation at loft level would be white
composite, non-openable and obscure glazed. The gable wall would be pebbledash
render.

Figure 3: Proposed elevations

CONSULTATION
PRE-APPLICATION ENGAGEMENT
No pre-application advice was sought from the council regarding the proposal.

APPLICATION PUBLICITY
Letters were sent to residents and business in the surrounding area and the relevant
ward Councillors on 23 December 2021. A letter was sent to No. 151 Sydenham Park
Road on 10 February 2022. A press notice was published on 12 January 2022.
Two responses were received, comprising of two objections.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 271

Comments in objection (neighbour)
Comment

Para where addressed

The proposed hip to gable side extension and roof
extension at 153 will have a detrimental impact on the
conservation area and character of the area.

Para 31

Loss of daylight and sunlight

Para 45

The roofing materials proposed (Marley Thrutone Slate
tiles) will not match the existing terracotta tiles. The use
of black slate effect tiles will impact the appearance
and street scene of Sydenham Park Road.

Para 36

Loss of sense of openness

Para 34

The following comment was made:
The possible existence of bats and other wildlife should also be considered. Officer
comment: this issue is not relevant given the nature of the application.
Comments in objection (Sydenham Society)
Comment

Para where addressed

The proposed hip to gable side extension would
appear disproportionate, be an incongruous addition
and highly visible from the public realm.

Para 31

Proposed roof material would be out of character

Para 36

Proposed hip to gable would be an unneighbourly
element which, by reason of its excessive height,
would result in an overbearing visual impact on the
amenity of residents of 151 Sydenham Park Road.
Would be overshadowing and create a sense of
enclosure

Para 46

Loss of daylight and sunlight

Para 45

Overlooking

Para 44

Loss of openness

Para 34

The Sydenham Society made the following comments:
The Sydenham Society requested a condition to be added stating that the materials
should remain terracotta tiles and that a daylight survey should be provided by the
applicant. Officers note that a daylight/sunlight assessment is not required for a proposal
of this scale and a planning condition cannot amend proposed materials.

INTERNAL CONSULTATION
Conservation Officers: No comments received.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 272

EXTERNAL CONSULTATION
No External Consultees were notified given the nature of the application.

POLICY CONTEXT
LEGISLATION
Planning applications are required to be determined in accordance with the statutory
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise (S38(6) Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and S70 Town & Country Planning Act 1990).

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
A material consideration is anything that, if taken into account, creates the real possibility
that a decision-maker would reach a different conclusion to that which they would reach
if they did not take it into account.
Whether or not a consideration is a relevant material consideration is a question of law
for the courts. Decision-makers are under a duty to have regard to all applicable policy
as a material consideration.
The weight given to a relevant material consideration is a matter of planning judgement.
Matters of planning judgement are within the exclusive province of the LPA. This report
sets out the weight Officers have given relevant material considerations in making their
recommendation to Members. Members, as the decision-makers, are free to use their
planning judgement to attribute their own weight, subject to aforementioned directions
and the test of reasonableness.

NATIONAL POLICY & GUIDANCE




National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Guidance 2014 onwards (NPPG)
National Design Guidance 2019 (NDG)

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
The Development Plan comprises:







London Plan (March 2021) (LPP)
Core Strategy (June 2011) (CSP)
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014) (DMP)
Site Allocations Local Plan (June 2013) (SALP)
Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan (February 2014) (LTCP)

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 273

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE
Lewisham SPG/SPD:



Alterations and Extensions Supplementary Planning Document (April 2019)

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The main issues are:





Principle of Development
Urban Design
Impact on Adjoining Properties

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT
General policy
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at paragraph 11, states that there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development and that proposals should be
approved without delay so long as they accord with the development plan.
The London Plan (LP) sets out a sequential spatial approach to making the best use of
land set out in LPP GG2 (Parts A to C) that should be followed.
Principle of development conclusions
The Development Plan is generally supportive of people extending or altering their
homes. The principle of development is supported, subject to details.

URBAN DESIGN
General Policy
The NPPF at para 126 states the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process
should achieve.
CSP 15 outlines how the Council will apply national and regional policy and guidance to
ensure highest quality design and the protection or enhancement of the historic and
natural environment, which is sustainable, accessible to all, optimises the potential of
sites and is sensitive to the local context and responds to local character.
DMLP 30 states that all new developments should provide a high standard of design and
should respect the existing forms of development in the vicinity. The London Plan, Core
Strategy and DMLP policies further reinforce the principles of the NPPF setting out a
clear rationale for high quality urban design.
DMLP 31 states that extensions will not be permitted where they would adversely affect
the architectural integrity of a group of buildings as a whole or cause an incongruous
element in terms of the important features of a character area.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 274

Appearance and character
Discussion
The Alterations and Extensions SPD guidelines state that rear roof extensions should be
set in from the party wall on each side by at least 0.3m, a minimum of 0.3m below the
ridge line, 0.3m from the edge of any hip and at least 0.3m above the existing eaves line.
If neighbouring roofs have already extended their rear roof significantly, the proposed
roof form should take this into consideration to ensure it does not contribute to a group of
mismatched roof forms. The arrangement of windows within the rear of the extension
should relate to the arrangement on lower floors.
The proposed rear roof extension requires the roof form to be amended from hip to
gable. The rear roof extension would be set back 0.3m from the eaves and set down
0.3m from the ridge. It would be set in 0.2m from the proposed gable roof and 0.05m
from the neighbour at No. 151. The rear roof extension would have sliding doors with a
glass Juliette balcony and a window in the rear elevation. A window is also proposed for
the side elevation of the proposed gable roof.
The proposed rear roof extension does not technically comply with the SPD guidance in
terms of the required set in from the proposed gable roof or set in from the neighbouring
boundary with No. 151, however, due to its sufficient set down from the ridge and set
back from the eaves, and the fact that the Juliet balcony, door and window would be in
line with the windows at first floor level, Officers consider that the proposed rear roof
extension would not result in significant harm to the appearance of the host property.
Officers note that Nos. 104, 155, 88, 125, 119 and 103 have similar roof amendments
and extensions and therefore gable ended roofs and large rear roof extensions are a
characteristic of the surrounding area. For these reasons, Officers consider that the
proposed hip to gable roof alteration and rear roof extension would not harm the
surrounding area and therefore the proposed roof extensions are considered acceptable.
The SPD guidelines state that roof lights should be subordinate features on the roof and
align with windows or other features on the elevations below. Rooflights should ideally
be set flush but in any case should not extend more than 150mm above the slope of the
original roof.
The three rooflights in the front roof slope would be at the same height and be
subordinate features on the roof and align with the windows and features on the
elevations below. The proposed rooflights are therefore considered acceptable.
Concerns were raised from the objectors regarding the loss of openness the hip to gable
roof extension would cause due to the neighbour at No. 155 already benefitting form a
gable roof extension. Officers acknowledge that the two adjoining gable ended roofs
would impact the openness to some degree, however, the impact the hip to gable roof
extension would have on the openness of the area is considered to be negligible due to
the strong precedent of hip to gables in the area. It is noted that a hip to gable roof
extension could be achieved under permitted development at the application site.
The proposed window in the side elevation at loft level is considered acceptable.
The proposed materials are acceptable as the property is not located within a
Conservation Area. The street scene comprises of various roof materials. No. 155 has a
roof material similar to the proposal and therefore the proposed materials are not
considered to be unacceptable such as to warrant a reason for refusal on these grounds.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 275

The property adjoins the Cobb’s Corner Conservation Area at the rear. Officers consider
that the proposal would not cause harm to the Conservation Area due to the layout and
size of the rear gardens, the tree cover in the area and the fact that the proposed
extensions would not be visible from the public realm of the Conservation Area. As no
harm arises, a balancing exercise with regard to heritage is not required.
Summary
The design of the rear roof extension due to its set down from the roof ridge and set
back from the eaves, is considered to be of an acceptable scale, and on balance
considering the characteristics of the area, the roof extensions are acceptable and
supported.
Urban Design Conclusion
The proposed scheme would preserve the character and appearance of the host
dwelling and would not adversely impact the street scene. Officers conclude that the
proposal responds to its context and surrounding area and is therefore acceptable in
terms of its design.

LIVING CONDITIONS OF NEIGHBOURS
General Policy
NPPF para 130 sets an expectation that new development will be designed to create
places that amongst other things have a ‘high standard’ of amenity for existing and
future users. At para 185 it states decisions should ensure that new development is
appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative
effects) of pollution on health and living conditions.
This is reflected in relevant policies of the London Plan (D3), the Core Strategy (CP15),
the Local Plan (DMP 31) and associated guidance (Alterations and Extensions SPD
2019).
The Council has published the Alterations and Extensions SPD (2019) which establishes
generally acceptable standards relating to these matters (see below), although site
context will mean these standards could be tightened or relaxed accordingly.
Daylight and sunlight are generally measured against the Building Research
Establishment (BRE) standards however this is not formal planning guidance and should
be applied flexibly according to context. Due to the nature of the proposal a daylight and
sunlight assessment was not required as the impact on daylight and sunlight could be
assessed without it by planning Officers.
Discussion
The proposed rear roof extension is not considered to have an unacceptable impact on
neighbouring amenity. Officers acknowledge that the window and Juliet balcony at the
rear will nominally overlook the neighbours’ rear gardens, but consider that the outlook
would be similar to that of the existing first floor windows. There would therefore not be a
substantial increase in overlooking or loss of privacy. The new window in the side
elevation at loft level is not considered to have any impact on the neighbour at No. 155
as the window will be obscure glazed and non-openable to a height of 1.7m above floor
level. The proposed scheme is therefore not considered to have an unacceptable impact
with regards to overlooking or loss of privacy.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 276

The proposed amendments and additions to the roof would not cause an unacceptable
loss of daylight on the neighbours as the properties are facing north with the proposed
dormer facing south.
The proposed roof extensions are not considered to be overbearing or create a sense of
enclosure to its neighbours as the extensions would remain within the footprint of the
host dwelling.
Summary
On balance, the proposed scheme would not have any adverse impact on the amenities
of its neighbours, in terms of creating a sense of enclosure, impact on privacy or impact
on daylight/sunlight and is therefore acceptable.

Impact on neighbours conclusion
The proposed development would not introduce any unacceptably harmful impacts to
the living conditions of any of the neighbouring properties and therefore would be
compliant with LPP D3, CSP 15 and DMP 31.

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS
Under Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), a local
finance consideration means:



a grant or other financial assistance that has been, or will or could be, provided to
a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown; or



sums that a relevant authority has received, or will or could receive, in payment of
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

The weight to be attached to a local finance consideration remains a matter for the
decision maker.
The CIL is therefore a material consideration.
This application is householder development and does not attract a CIL charge.

EQUALITIES CONSIDERATIONS
The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the equality
duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, disability,
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.
In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its function, have due regard to the
need to:



eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act;



advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not;

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 277



foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is a
matter for the decision maker, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and
proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination,
advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations.
The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical Guidance on
the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010
Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council must
have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is drawn
to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance
also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have
statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical
guidance can be found at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publicationdownload/technical-guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england
The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five guides
for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:







The essential guide to the public sector equality duty
Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making
Engagement and the equality duty
Equality objectives and the equality duty
Equality information and the equality duty

The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including the
general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what public
authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are legally required, as well as
recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on
key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources are available
at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equalityduty-guidance
The planning issues set out above do not include any factors that relate specifically to
any of the equalities categories set out in the Act, and therefore it has been concluded
that there is no impact on equality.

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS
In determining this application the Council is required to have regard to the provisions of
the Human Rights Act 1998. Section 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 prohibits
authorities (including the Council as local planning authority) from acting in a way which
is incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. ‘’Convention’’ here
means the European Convention on Human Rights, certain parts of which were
incorporated into English law under the Human Rights Act 1998. Various Convention
rights are likely to be relevant including:



Article 8: Respect for your private and family life, home and correspondence

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 278



Protocol 1, Article 1: Right to peaceful enjoyment of your property

This report has outlined the consultation that has been undertaken on the planning
application and the opportunities for people to make representations to the Council as
Local Planning Authority.
Members need to satisfy themselves that the potential adverse amenity impacts are
acceptable and that any potential interference with the above Convention Rights will be
legitimate and justified. Both public and private interests are to be taken into account in
the exercise of the Local Planning Authority’s powers and duties. Any interference with a
Convention right must be necessary and proportionate. Members must therefore,
carefully consider the balance to be struck between individual rights and the wider public
interest.
This application has the legitimate aim of providing alterations to the existing building.
The rights potentially engaged by this application, including Article 8 and Protocol 1 are
not considered to be unlawfully interfered with by this proposal.

CONCLUSION
This application has been considered in the light of policies set out in the development
plan and other material considerations.
The proposed additions to the roof are acceptable in terms of scale, form, and design.
The proposal would have no unacceptable impact on neighbouring properties in terms of
overlooking, loss of daylight/sunlight or creating a sense of enclosure.
In light of the above, it is recommended that planning permission be granted.

RECOMMENDATION
That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to the following
conditions and informatives:

CONDITIONS
1)

FULL PLANNING PERMISSION TIME LIMIT
The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than
the expiration of three years beginning with the date on which the permission is
granted.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2)

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the application
plans, drawings and documents hereby approved and as detailed below:
P001; P002; P003; P004; P006; Site Location Plan (Received 15 December
2021).

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 279

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved documents, plans and drawings submitted with the application and is
acceptable to the local planning authority.
3)

Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that
Order), the new window to be installed in the western side elevation at loft level
hereby approved shall be fitted as obscure glazed to a minimum of Level 3 on the
‘Pilkington Scale’ and non-opening unless the parts of the window which can be
opened are more than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window
is installed.
Reason: To avoid the direct overlooking of adjoining properties and consequent
loss of privacy thereto and to comply with DM Policy 31 Alterations and
extensions to existing buildings including residential extensions of the
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014).

INFORMATIVES
1)

Positive and Proactive Statement: The Council engages with all applicants in a
positive and proactive way through specific pre-application enquiries and the
detailed advice available on the Council’s website. On this particular application,
no pre-application advice was sought. However, as the proposal was clearly in
accordance with the Development Plan, permission could be granted without any
further discussion.

2)

The Applicant is reminded that if bats are found during construction, the Applicant
is legally obligated to stop construction and seek immediate advice.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Submission Drawings
Consultee Responses

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 280

REPORT AUTHOR AND CONTACT
Estelle Pengelly
Email: Estelle.Pengelly@lewisham.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 831 49065

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 281

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 283

This page is intentionally left blank

153 SYDENHAM PARK ROAD,
LONDON, SE26 4LP
Page 285

Construction of a hip to gable extension and a roof extension
in the rear roof slope incorporating a Juliet balcony at 153
Sydenham Park Road SE26, together with the installation of 3
roof lights in the front roof slope.

Application Ref No. DC/21/124773
This presentation forms no part of a planning application
and is for information only.
END

1 of X

Site Location Plan

Page 286

END

2 of X

Site Location Arial- Context

Page 287

END

3 of X

Existing elevations

Page 288

END

4 of X

4

Proposed front and rear elevations

Page 289

Proposed front elevation

Proposed rear elevation
END

5 of X

5

Key Planning Considerations

Page 290

• Principle of Development
• Urban Design
• Impact on Adjoining Properties

END

6 of X

6

Page 291

End of presentation.

END

7 of X

7

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 293

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 297

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Planning Committee B

Report title:

21 Drakefell Road, London, SE14 5SL
Date: 12 April 2022
Key decision: No.
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: Telegraph Hill
Contributors: Max Curson

Outline and recommendations
This report sets out the Officer’s recommendation of approval for the above proposal. The
report has been brought before Committee for a decision as the Telegraph Hill Society
have objected to the proposal.

Page 303

Application details
Application reference number(s): DC/21/124360
Application Date:

16 November 2021

Applicant:

Aarvold McLean Architecture

Proposal:

Construction of a single storey rear and side extension,
construction of a rear roof dormer, insertion or two rooflights to the
hipped roof slope and replacement of the existing windows at all
elevations of 21 Drakefell Road, SE14.

Background Papers:

(1)
(2)
(3)

Designation:

PTAL 3
Air Quality
Telegraph Hill Article 4(2) Direction
Telegraph Hill Conservation Area
Not a Listed Building

Screening:

N/A

Submission drawings
Submission technical reports and documents
Statutory consultee responses

There was no site visit for the application due to travel restrictions related to the Covid19 global pandemic. The site photos provided by the applicant, aerial and recent images
available on Streetview and Google Earth are considered to be a sufficient basis to
make an informed recommendation.

SITE AND CONTEXT
Site description and current use

1

The application site is a two storey mid-terrace single family dwellinghouse located on
the northern side of Drakefell Road, between the junctions with Aspinall Road and Kitto
Road. Permission to construct the property, along with the adjoining No.19, was granted
in 1996. The properties are designed to be faithful replicas of those adjacent. It has two
storey outrigger typical of those built during the Victorian period. It has a two storey bay
window at the front elevation. The windows at all elevations are a timber sliding sash
style finished white.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 304

Figure 1: Site location plan
Character of area

2

The surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature and characterised by two
storey semi-detached Victorian dwellings.

3

The application site lies within the Telegraph Hill Conservation Area and is subject to an
Article 4 Direction. It is not a listed building nor in the vicinity of one.
Surrounding area

4

Telegraph Hill Upper Park is located directly behind the application site. Haverdashers’
Hatcham College (Pepys Road Site) is located 300m to the north-east of the application
site. There are a number of shops, takeaways and public houses within a 500m radius.
Local environment

5

The site falls within Air Quality Management Area.
Transport

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 305

6

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) score of 3 on a scale of 1-6b,
1 being lowest and 6b the highest.

7

Nunhead Railway Station is located approximately 335m to the south-west of the
application site.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
8

There is no recent relevant planning history for the application site.

CURRENT PLANNING APPLICATION
THE PROPOSALS
9

Construction of a single storey rear and side extension, construction of a rear roof
dormer, insertion or two rooflights to the hipped roof slope and replacement of the
existing windows at all elevations of 21 Drakefell Road, SE14.

Figure 2: Proposed rear elevation

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 306

CONSULTATION
PRE-APPLICATION ENGAGEMENT
10

No pre-application advice was sought from the council regarding the proposal.

APPLICATION PUBLICITY
11

Site notices were displayed on 09 December 2021 and a press notice was published on
15 December 2021.

12

Letters were sent to residents and business in the surrounding area, the relevant ward
Councillors and the Telegraph Hill Society on 06 December 2021.

13

One response was received from a neighbour giving support to the scheme. The
response also noted queries around construction noise and party wall issues. Neither
are material planning considerations and will not be considered in this report.

14

The Telegraph Hill Society objected to the proposal. Their objections are set out in the
table below.
Comments in objection
Comment

Para where addressed

The proposed materials of the single
storey rear extension are not typical of the
conservation area.
An objection in principle to the proposed
dormer extension, as it would be visible
from the public realm and set a precedent.

15

The Society also commented on the proposed changes to the front boundary treatment.
This aspect of the proposal has since been removed by the applicant.

INTERNAL CONSULTATION
16

The following internal consultees were notified on 06 December 2021:

17

Conservation: following constructive correspondence with the applicant, and
subsequent amendments to the proposal, Conservation are satisfied with the proposal
and have no objections. See paras 41 to 56 for further detail.

EXTERNAL CONSULTATION
18

No external consultees were notified given the nature of the application.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 307

POLICY CONTEXT
LEGISLATION
19

Planning applications are required to be determined in accordance with the statutory
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise (S38(6) Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and S70 Town & Country Planning Act 1990).

20

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990: S.66/S.72 gives the LPA
special duties in respect of heritage assets.

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
21

A material consideration is anything that, if taken into account, creates the real possibility
that a decision-maker would reach a different conclusion to that which they would reach
if they did not take it into account.

22

Whether or not a consideration is a relevant material consideration is a question of law
for the courts. Decision-makers are under a duty to have regard to all applicable policy
as a material consideration.

23

The weight given to a relevant material consideration is a matter of planning judgement.
Matters of planning judgement are within the exclusive province of the LPA. This report
sets out the weight Officers have given relevant material considerations in making their
recommendation to Members. Members, as the decision-makers, are free to use their
planning judgement to attribute their own weight, subject to aforementioned directions
and the test of reasonableness.

NATIONAL POLICY & GUIDANCE




National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Guidance 2014 onwards (NPPG)
National Design Guidance 2019 (NDG)

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
24

The Development Plan comprises:







London Plan (March 2021) (LPP)
Core Strategy (June 2011) (CSP)
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014) (DMP)
Site Allocations Local Plan (June 2013) (SALP)
Lewisham Town Centre Local Plan (February 2014) (LTCP)

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE
25

Lewisham SPG/SPD:

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 308



Alterations and Extensions Supplementary Planning Document (April 2019)

OTHER MATERIAL DOCUMENTS


Telegraph Hill Conservation Area Character Appraisal (2008)

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
26

The main issues are:





Principle of Development
Urban Design
Impact on Adjoining Properties

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT
General policy

27

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at paragraph 11, states that there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development and that proposals should be
approved without delay so long as they accord with the development plan.

28

The London Plan (LP) sets out a sequential spatial approach to making the best use of
land set out in LPP GG2 (Parts A to C) that should be followed.
Principle of development conclusions

29

The Development Plan is generally supportive of people extending or altering their
homes. The principle of development is supported, subject to details.

URBAN DESIGN
General Policy

30

The NPPF at para 126 states the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process
should achieve.

31

CSP 15 outlines how the Council will apply national and regional policy and guidance to
ensure highest quality design and the protection or enhancement of the historic and
natural environment, which is sustainable, accessible to all, optimises the potential of
sites and is sensitive to the local context and responds to local character.

32

DMLP 30 states that all new developments should provide a high standard of design and
should respect the existing forms of development in the vicinity. The London Plan, Core
Strategy and DMLP policies further reinforce the principles of the NPPF setting out a
clear rationale for high quality urban design.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 309

33

DMP 31 states that extensions will not be permitted where they would adversely affect
the architectural integrity of a group of buildings as a whole or cause an incongruous
element in terms of the important features of a character area.

34

DMP 36 echoes national and regional policy and summarises the steps the borough will
take to manage changes to Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings, Scheduled Ancient
Monuments and Registered Parks and Gardens so that their value and significance as
designated heritage assets is maintained and enhanced.

35

Paragraph 4.2.3 of Alterations and Extensions SPD (2019) sets out:

36

As a general rule, extensions extending up to 3m in length should be no more than 3m in
height on the boundary. Extensions which exceed this length and exceed a height of
2.5m on the boundary are unlikely to be supported.

37

Paragraph 4.2.4 sets out the following guidance for single storey rear extensions in
conservation areas:
Alterations within conservation areas should be of the highest quality design using high
quality materials. The rear building line, the size of the rear garden and the prevailing
characteristics of adjoining properties should all be taken into account.
Rear extensions should:

38

•

Remain clearly secondary to the host building in terms of location, form, scale and
detailing.

•

Respect the original design and architectural features of the existing building.

•

On semi-detached properties extensions should not extend beyond the main side
walls of the host building.

•

Have a ridge height visibly lower than the sill of the first floor windows (2 to 3 brick
courses) and roof pitches to complement those of the main building.

Paragraph 4.2.5 sets out that:
A modern, high quality design can be successful in achieving a clear distinction between
old and new. In some locations, a traditional approach can be a more sensitive response
to a historic building, particularly where homogeneity of groups of buildings is part of
their special character.

39

Paragraph 5.8.2 of the Alterations and Extensions SPD sets out the design principles for
rear roof extensions:
•

Set in from the party wall on each side by at least 0.3m, a minimum of 0.3m below
the ridge line, 0.3m from the edge of any hip and at least 0.3m above the existing
eaves line.

•

If neighbouring roofs have already extended their rear roof significantly, the
proposed roof form should take this into consideration to ensure it does not
contribute to a group of mismatched roof forms.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 310

•

A modern, high quality design is generally more successful when considering a
large rear roof extension. The contemporary design is more likely to contrast with
the property and maintain the original integrity of the dwelling.

•

Applications of a generic nature with tile cladding and UPVC windows will be
resisted.

•

The use of high quality materials is expected. Materials must be part of an
architectural response and details of each material and sample should be
submitted.

•

The arrangement of windows within the rear of the extension should relate to the
arrangement on lower floors.

•

The rear roof extension should not be visible from the street frontage.

•

The highest quality of design must be employed and pre-application advice should
be sought through the formal planning advice service.

Paragraph 5.8.3 sets out further design principles for rear roof extensions in
conservation areas.

40

In conservation areas rear roof extensions will only be considered where the applicant
can demonstrate exceptional design quality, high quality materials and its location is set
in significantly from the eaves, ridge and sides and where the dormer is no wider than
two thirds of the original, unextended roof. In these cases the onus is on the applicant to
demonstrate that the characteristics and integrity of the property is maintained and that
the impact on neighbouring properties is not significant. A modern, high quality design is
generally more successful when considering a large rear roof extension. The
contemporary design is more likely to contrast with the property and maintain the original
integrity of the dwelling.
Discussion

41

The proposal is for the construction of a single storey rear and side extension, the
construction of a rear roof dormer extension, the insertion of two rooflights to the hipped
roof slope, and the replacement of the existing windows at all elevations.

42

The single storey rear and side extension would have a flat roof and be 9.275m along its
eastern flank, 3.0m on its western flank, and extend a maximum of 3.75m from the rear
lien of the property. The proposal used a steeped design, where the easternmost section
of the extension extends 0.75m further than the western section. The extension would
be 3.0m in height, and set in from the shared boundary at No.23 by 1.0m. Whilst the side
element of the proposed extension, at 9.275m in depth and 3m in height is above the
guidelines of the Alterations and Extensions SPD, it is considered subordinate to, and
appropriate for, the large host building.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 311

Figure 3: Existing (Left) and proposed (Right) floor plans

43

Officers note that the Telegraph Hill Society have objected to the proposal on the
grounds that the materials proposed extension do not respect the host building. The
extension would be finished in a pale grey textured brick, with the roof pane clad in
vertical charred timber boards. Windows and a door would be inserted into the rear of
the extension, with two rooflights inserted into the proposed green roof. Four casement
windows would be inserted into the ground floor eastern side flank of the extension. The
pale grey textured brick was chosen to provide a contrasting but complimentary
aesthetic to the brickwork. The extension roof pane would be clad in vertical charred
timber boards, in keeping with other approved timber clad extensions, most notably at
No.25 Drakefell Road (ref DC/17/100883). The proposed extension would utilise high
quality design features and materials. As such, the proposed extension is considered to
be of high quality design that achieves a clear distinct between old and new in line with
paragraph 4.2.5 of the Alterations and Extensions SPD. As such, the design of the
proposed single storey ground floor extension is considered acceptable.

44

A small rear dormer extension is also proposed. The extension would have a pitched
roof and be a maximum of 1.38m at the pitch, 1.03m at the eaves, with a width of 1.53m
and a depth of 3.0m. The dormer would have white casement windows and be finished
in grey standing seam zinc cladding. The proposed rear roof extension would be visible
from Telegraph Hill Upper Park (shown at Figure 4 below). The Telegraph Society
objected to the proposal, stating that as the proposed roof extension would be visible
from the public realm, it would be an incongruous addition to the roofscape which
intrudes onto the skyline. Since reception of the objection, the proposed roof dormer has
been reduced in size.

45

Officers note that there are two recent permissions for roof dormer extensions on the
northern side of Drakefell Road, which are visible from the park (No.51 – DC/18/105959
and No.23 DC/19/113549 and DC/20/119148). The eastern neighbour, No.23, has been
granted two permissions in recent years for a roof dormer extension. The officer report
for permission DC/19/113549 notes that Conservation Officers believed that the design
would provide a useful design precedent that would enable loft conversions to the
houses on the northern side of Drakefell Road. The present application is smaller in size
than both of the permissions granted at No.23. Given the modest nature of the proposed
dormer, and the suitable design and high quality materials, Officers consider the
proposal to be compliant with the Alterations and Extensions SPD and acceptable.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 312

Figure 4: View of rear of property from Telegraph Hill Upper Park

46

The existing windows at all elevations would be replaced as part of the proposal. The
features of the proposed replacement double glazed windows would match the existing
in terms of style, materials and proportions and would be inserted into the existing
window openings. There would be no changes to the opening style. The meeting rail
height, at 34mm is suitable for Conservation Areas, as is the 14mm glazing width. The
windows would be finished white to match the existing. The horn would be an ‘ogee’
style in keeping with the Telegraph Hill Conservation Area. The proposed replacement
timber windows would be of sufficient quality and as such are considered acceptable.

47

Two rooflights would be inserted into the side hipped roof slope. The proposed rooflights
would be a conservation style and sit flush within the roof slope. Officers note that rear
rooflights are fairly common on Drakefell Road, with examples at Nos.7, 42 and 44 on
the surrounding properties, and permission for rooflights has recently been granted at
no.23. Given the modest size and sensitive placement the rooflights are considered
acceptable.
Impact on Heritage Assets
Policy

48

Heritage assets may be designated—including Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings,
Scheduled Monuments, Registered Parks and Gardens, archaeological remains—or
non-designated.

49

Section 72 of the of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
gives LPAs the duty to have special regard to the desirability of preserving or enhancing
the character or appearance of Conservation Areas.

50

Relevant paragraphs of Chapter 16 of the NPPF set out how LPAs should approach
determining applications that relate to heritage assets. This includes giving great weight
to the asset’s conservation, when considering the impact of a proposed development on
the significance of a designated heritage asset. Further, that where a development
proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset that harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 313

51

CSP 16 ensures the value and significance of the borough’s heritage assets are among
things enhanced and conserved in line with national and regional policy.

52

DMP 36 echoes national and regional policy and summarises the steps the borough will
take to manage changes to Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings, Scheduled Ancient
Monuments and Registered Parks and Gardens so that their value and significance as
designated heritage assets is maintained and enhanced.

53

Further guidance is given in the Telegraph Hill Conservation Area Character Appraisal
(2008).
Discussion

54

The application site was constructed in 1996 and designed to be a faithful replica of the
Victorian dwellings that characterise Drakefell Road. As such, there will be no loss of any
historical fabric as part of the proposal. Therefore, the only issue is the impact of the
proposal on the character and appearance of the Telegraph Hill Conservation Area.

55

As set out in the Urban Design section, the proposal complies with the guidelines of the
SPD, being of suitable design and utilising high quality materials. The dormer is visible
from the public realm, however, it is modest in scale, and smaller than that approved at
No.23. The replacement windows are suitable for the conservation area. As such,
Officers consider that the current proposal would lead to no harm to the Telegraph Hill
Conservation Area
Summary

56

Officers, having regard to the statutory duties in respect of listed buildings in the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and the relevant
paragraphs in the NPPF in relation to conserving the historic environment , are satisfied
the proposal would preserve the character and appearance of the Telegraph Hill
Conservation Area.

Urban design conclusion
57

In summary, the proposal, due to its design and use of high-quality materials, would
preserve the character and appearance of the host dwelling. The other alterations to
replace the windows and to insert new rooflights are also acceptable and would preserve
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

58

Officers conclude that the proposal responds sensitively to its context and the character
of the surrounding area and therefore is acceptable in terms of design.

LIVING CONDITIONS OF NEIGHBOURS
General Policy

59

NPPF para 130 sets an expectation that new development will be designed to create
places that amongst other things have a ‘high standard’ of amenity for existing and
future users. At para 185 it states decisions should ensure that new development is
appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including cumulative
effects) of pollution on health and living conditions

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 314

60

This is reflected in relevant policies of the London Plan (D3), the Core Strategy (CP15),
the Local Plan (DMP 31) and associated guidance (Alterations and Extensions SPD
2019).

61

The Council has published the Alterations and Extensions SPD (2019) which establishes
generally acceptable standards relating to these matters (see below), although site
context will mean these standards could be tightened or relaxed accordingly.

62

Daylight and sunlight are generally measured against the Building Research
Establishment (BRE) standards however this is not formal planning guidance and should
be applied flexibly according to context
Discussion

63

The proposed extension would be 3.0m in height and 9.275m in depth on its eastern
flank. It would be set in by 1.06m from the shared boundary with No.23. The 1.06m set in
is considered sufficient to prevent impact to the amenity of No.23 through loss of
daylight/sunlight, outlook or overbearing enclosure.

64

The proposed extension would be 3m in depth, and 3m in height on the shared
boundary with No.19. No.19 benefits from a typical sized garden. The dimensions of the
proposed extension are within the guidelines of the alterations and Extensions SPD,
and, accounting for the size of the garden, is considered sufficiently modest to prevent
any impact to the amenity at No.19 through loss of outlook or increased enclosure.

65

Officers note that there is a ground floor window in the rear elevation that could be
impacted by the proposed extension. Whilst it is expected that the proposed extension
may have a minor impact upon the level of daylight or sunlight available to the ground
floor rear window, on balance, this is considered acceptable given that the window is
located at ground level, and there is a window and two glazed doors located in the
western and rear elevation at No.19, which provide light to the rear of the ground floor of
the property.

66

The proposed dormer extension is modest in scale, and set well back from the eaves
and boundaries of the roof. As such, the proposed dormer extension would have no
impact on the neighbours through the loss of daylight/sunlight, outlook or overbearing
enclosure.

67

The four windows to be inserted into the flank of the ground floor rear extension would
not introduce any new liens of sight not already available from the existing windows or
garden. The proposed dormer extension would not face onto a residential property and
would not introduce any new lines of site not already available from the existing first floor
windows. As such, the proposal would not impact the privacy of the neighbours.

68

The application site will remain a single family dwellinghouse. No increase in noise or
disturbance is expected.

Impact on neighbours conclusion
69

The proposed development would not introduce any unacceptably harmful impacts to
the living conditions of any of the neighbouring properties and therefore would be
compliant with LPP D3, CSP 15 and DMP 31 and the provisions of the 2019 SPD.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 315

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS
70

Under Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), a local
finance consideration means:



a grant or other financial assistance that has been, or will or could be, provided to
a relevant authority by a Minister of the Crown; or



sums that a relevant authority has received, or will or could receive, in payment of
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

71

The weight to be attached to a local finance consideration remains a matter for the
decision maker.

72

The CIL is therefore a material consideration.

73

This application does not attract CIL.

EQUALITIES CONSIDERATIONS
74

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the equality
duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age, disability,
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

75

In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its function, have due regard to the
need to:



eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act;



advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not;



foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

76

The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is a
matter for the decision maker, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and
proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination,
advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations.

77

The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical Guidance on
the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010
Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council must
have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is drawn
to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance
also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not have
statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical
guidance can be found at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publicationdownload/technical-guidance-public-sector-equality-duty-england

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 316

78

The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five guides
for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:







The essential guide to the public sector equality duty
Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making
Engagement and the equality duty
Equality objectives and the equality duty
Equality information and the equality duty

79

The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including the
general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what public
authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are legally required, as well as
recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on
key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources are available
at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equalityduty-guidance

80

The planning issues set out above do not include any factors that relate specifically to
any of the equalities categories set out in the Act, and therefore it has been concluded
that there is no impact on equality.

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS
81

In determining this application the Council is required to have regard to the provisions of
the Human Rights Act 1998. Section 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 prohibits
authorities (including the Council as local planning authority) from acting in a way which
is incompatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. ‘’Convention’’ here
means the European Convention on Human Rights, certain parts of which were
incorporated into English law under the Human Rights Act 1998. Various Convention
rights are likely to be relevant including:




Article 8: Respect for your private and family life, home and correspondence
Protocol 1, Article 1: Right to peaceful enjoyment of your property

82

This report has outlined the consultation that has been undertaken on the planning
application and the opportunities for people to make representations to the Council as
Local Planning Authority.

83

Members need to satisfy themselves that the potential adverse amenity impacts are
acceptable and that any potential interference with the above Convention Rights will be
legitimate and justified. Both public and private interests are to be taken into account in
the exercise of the Local Planning Authority’s powers and duties. Any interference with a
Convention right must be necessary and proportionate. Members must therefore,
carefully consider the balance to be struck between individual rights and the wider public
interest.

84

This application has the legitimate aim of providing an extension to an existing
residential property. The rights potentially engaged by this application, including Article 8
and Protocol 1 are not considered to be unlawfully interfered with by this proposal.

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 317

CONCLUSION
85

This application has been considered in the light of policies set out in the development
plan and other material considerations.

86

In reaching this recommendation, Officers have given weight to the comments and
objections that were received regarding this application and consider the proposed
development would preserve the host building and Telegraph Hill Conservation Area in
terms of design. No unacceptable harm would arise to the living conditions of
neighbours, therefore Officers recommend that planning permission should be granted
subject to the imposition of suitable planning conditions.

RECOMMENDATION
87

That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to the following
conditions and informatives:

CONDITIONS
1)

FULL PLANNING PERMISSION TIME LIMIT
The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than
the expiration of three years beginning with the date on which the permission is
granted.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2)

DEVELOP IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROVED PLAN
The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the application
plans, drawings and documents hereby approved and as detailed below:
21DR-PL-001; 21DR-PL-002; 2ATR-GA-100; 2ATR-GA-101; 2ATR-GA-102;
2ATR-GA-103; 2ATR-GA-200; 2ATR-GA-201; 2ATR-GA-202; 2ATR-GA-203;
2ATR-GA-204; 2ATR-GA-205. Received 17 November 2021.
2ATR-GA-300 (Rev B); 2ATR-GA-301 (Rev B); 2ATR-GA-302 (Rev B); 2ATR-GA303 (Rev B); 2ATR-GA-400 (Rev B); 2ATR-GA-401 (Rev B); 2ATR-GA-402 (Rev
B); 2ATR-GA-403 (Rev B); 2ATR-GA-404 (Rev B); 2ATR-GA-405 (Rev B);
21DR-DD-800L; 21DR-DD-801; Window Elevations. Received 09 February
2022.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
approved documents, plans and drawings submitted with the application and is
acceptable to the local planning authority.

3)

MATERIALS
(a)

The development shall be constructed in those materials as submitted
namely: pale grey bricks, charred timber cladding and aluminium windows
at the single storey rear extension, grey standing seam zinc cladding and

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 318

white finished casement windows at the roof dormer extension, and
replacement timber sash windows at all elevations, and in full accordance
with the relevant plans.
(b)

The scheme shall be carried out in full accordance with those details, as
approved.

Reason: To ensure that the design is delivered in accordance with the details
submitted and assessed so that the development achieves the necessary high
standard and detailing in accordance with Policies 15 High quality design for
Lewisham of the Core Strategy (June 2011) and Development Management Local
Plan (November 2014) DM Policy 30 Urban design and local character.
4)

USE OF FLAT ROOF
Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that
Order), the use of the flat roofed extension hereby approved shall be as set out in
the application and no development or the formation of any door providing access
to the roof shall be carried out, nor shall the roof area be used as a balcony, roof
garden or similar amenity area.
Reason: In order to prevent any unacceptable loss of privacy to adjoining
properties and the area generally and to comply with Policy 15 High Quality
design for Lewisham of the Core Strategy (June 2011), and DM Policy 31
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings including residential extensions
and DM Policy 32 Housing design, layout and space standards of the
Development Management Local Plan (November 2014).

INFORMATIVES
1)

Positive and Proactive Statement: The Council engages with all applicants in a
positive and proactive way through specific pre-application enquiries and the
detailed advice available on the Council’s website. On this particular application,
positive discussions took place which resulted in further information being
submitted.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
88

(1) Submission drawings
(2) Submission technical reports and documents
(3) Statutory consultee responses

REPORT AUTHOR AND CONTACT
89

Report author: Max Curson (Planning Officer)

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 319

Email: max.curson@lewisham.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 8314 7219

Is this report easy to understand?
Please give us feedback so we can improve.
Go to https://lewisham.gov.uk/contact-us/send-us-feedback-on-our-reports
Page 320

Page 321

This page is intentionally left blank

21 Drakefell Road
SE14 5SL
Application No. DC/21/124360
Page 323

Construction of a single storey rear and side extension, construction of a rear roof dormer, insertion
or two rooflights to the hipped roof slope and replacement of the existing windows at all elevations
of 21 Drakefell Road, SE14.

This presentation forms no part of a planning application
and is for information only.
1 1 of 30

Page 324

Site Location Plan

2 2 of 30

Page 325

Existing Aerial View

3 3 of 30

Page 326

Existing Rear Elevation

4 4 of 30

Page 327

Proposed Rear Elevation

5 5 of 30

Page 328

Proposed Rear Elevation

6 6 of 30

Page 329

Existing and Proposed First Floor Plans

7 7 of 30

Key planning considerations
Page 330

• Principle of Development
• Urban Design and Heritage Impact
• Impact on living conditions of neighbours

8 8 of 30

Page 331

View from Telegraph Hill Upper Park

9 9 of 30

Page 332

Dormer granted permission at No.23

1010 of 30

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 333

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 337

This page is intentionally left blank

